THE STATE OF TEXAS §
COUNTY OF CAMERON §

BE IT REMEMBERED on the 14" day of August, 2014, there was conducted a Regular
Meeting of the Cameron County Regional Mobility Authority, at the Joe G. Rivera and
Aurora de la Garza County Annex thereof, in San Benito, Texas, for the purpose of
transacting any and all business that may lawfully be brought before the same.

THE BOARD MET AT: PRESENT:
12:03 PM HORACIO BARRERA

VICE CHAIRPERSON

MARK ESPARZA
DIRECTOR

DAVID N. GARZA
DIRECTOR

NAT LOPEZ
DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR

Secretary

RUBEN GALLEGOS, JR.
ABSENT

DAVID E. ALLEX
ABSENT

MICHAEL SCAIEF

ABSENT

The Meceting was called to order by Vice Chairman Horacio Barrera, at 12:03 PM. At this time, the Board
considered the following matters as per RMA Agenda posted and filed for Record in the Office of the County Clerk on
this 11" day of August 2014 at 9:07 A.M.
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CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILL TY AUT lﬁl Iy

AGENDA

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
of the
Cameron County Regional Mobility Authority

Joe G. Rivera and Aurora de la Garza County Annex
1390 West 169E
San Benito, Texas 78586

Thursday, August 14, 2014

HE RECD!
UFFICIRL U BLIC EECBRDS
12:00 Noon ni Aug 11,2004 ot 092074
Joe G Rivera
PUBLIC COMMENTS: County Clerk

Alajendro Cusllars Deputy
C
1. Public Comments e

PRESENTATIONS, RESOLUTIONS AND/OR PROCLAMATION ITEMS:

2. Presentations/Resolutions/Proclamations
A, Presentation and Acknowledgement of the GEC Report for July 2014
B. Presentation of the Status of the SH 550 Direct Connector for July 2014
C. Presentation of the Marketing Efforts

CONSENT ITEMS:

3. All Item(s) under the Consent RMA Agenda arec heard collectively unless opposition is
presented, in which case the contested Item will be considered, discussed, and appropriate
action taken separately

A. Consideration and Approval of the Minutes for:

July 10, 2014 — Regular Mceting



ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND ACTION:

4, Action Items

A.

B.

H.

Approval of Claims
Consideration and Approval of Financial Statements for July 2014

Consideration and Approval of Resolution Authorizing the Issuance of Cameron County
Regional Mobility Authority Vehicle Registration Fee Revenue Refunding Bonds in an
Amount Not to Exceed $7,000,000; Approving and Designating the Pricing Committec;
Approving the Transaction Documents And Making Other Findings and Provisions
Relating to the Subject And Matters Incident Thereto

Discussion and Possible Action Regarding the SH 32 Value Engineering
Recommendations

Consideration and Approval of Work Authorization No. 69 with HNTB for the West Rail
Relocation Project

Consideration and Approval of Supplemental Work Authorization No. 2 for Work
Authorization 40 With HNTB for the West Rail Relocation Project

Consideration and Authorization for the Cameron County Regional Mobility Authority
Exccutive Dircctor to request assistance from TxDOT for the CDA process for the SPI 2™
Access project and the Outer Parkway Project

Consideration and Approval of Change Order No. 18 for the SH 550 Port Spur Project

ADJOURNMENT: 4

Signed this / { day of August 2014

Y | 4o

David E. Alléx /
Chairman

NOTE:

Participation by Telephone Conference Call — One or more members of the CCRMA Board of
Directors may participate in this meeting through a telephone conference call, as authorized by Sec.
370.262, Texas Transportation Code. Each part of the telephone conference call meeting that by law
must be open to the public shall be audible to the public at the meeting location and will be recorded.

On conclusion of the meeting, the recording will be made available to the public.



PUBLIC COMMENTS
1 PUBLIC COMMENTS

None were presented.

PRESENTATIONS, RESOLUTIONS AND/OR PROCLAMATION ITEMS

2-A  Presentation and Acknowledgement of the GEC Report for July 2014

Mr. Richard Ridings with HNTB presented the GEC Report for the month of July 2014 and provided
a detailed report on the status of Cameron County Regional Mobility Authority Projects.

Director Garza moved to acknowledge the GEC Report for July 2014. The motion was seconded by
Director Esparza and carried unanimously.

The Report is as follows:

2-B  Presentation of the Status of the SH 550 Direct Connector Project for July 2014

Mr. Agustin Ramirez with S&B Infrastructure went over a power point presentation on the status of
the SH 550 Direct Connector project.

Director Esparza moved to acknowledge the status of the SH 550 Direct Connector project. The
motion was seconded by Director Lopez and carried unanimously.

The Report is as follows:

2-C  Presentation of Marketing Efforts

Mrs. Michelle Lopez, RMA Marketing and Communications Director went over a Report on
Marketing Efforts. The Report is attached to the minutes. Mr. Pete Sepulveda, Jr., RMA Executive Director
advised the Board about a visit from Lt. General Joe Weber, TxDOT Executive Director.

Director Esparza moved to acknowledge the Status Report for the Marketing Efforts for July 2014.
The motion was seconded by Director Garza and carried unanimously.

The Report is as follows:
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CONSENT ITEMS

ALL ITEM(S) UNDER THE CONSENT RMA AGENDA ARE HEARD COLLECTIVELY UNLESS
OPPOSITION IS PRESENTED, IN WHICH CASE THE CONTESTED ITEM WILL BE
CONSIDERED, DISCUSSED AND APPROPRIATE ACTION TAKEN SEPARATELY

3-A  Consideration and Approval of the Minutes for:

July 10, 2014 - Regular Meecting

Director Garza moved to approve the Minutes for July 10, 2014 Regular Meeting. The motion was
seconded by Director Esparza and carried unanimously.

ACTION ITEMS

4-A  Approval of Claims

The attached claims were presented to the Board of Directors for approval.
Mr. Pete Sepulveda, Jr., RMA Executive Director introduced the Claims into the record.

Director Esparza based on Staff’s recommendation moved to approve the Claims. The motion was
seconded by Director Garza and carried unanimously.

The Claims are as follows:

4-B  Consideration and Approval of Financial Statements for July 2014

Mr. Adrian Rincones, RMA Controller and Financial Officer went over the attached Financial
Statements for the month of July 2014.

Director Lopez moved to approve the Financial Statement for the month of July 2014, The motion
was seconded by Director Garza and carried unanimously.

The Financials are as follows:
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4-C  Consideration and Approval of Resolution Authorizing the Issnance of Cameron County
Regional Mobility Authority Vehicle Registration Fee Revenue Refunding Bonds in an Amount
Not to Exceed $7,000,000; Approving and Designing the pricing Committee; Approving the
Transaction Documents and Making Other Findings and Provisions Relating to the Subject and
Matters Incident Thereto

Mr, Pete Sepulveda, Jr., RMA Executive Director introduced the item and introduced Dave Gordon
with Estrada Hinojosa, CCRMA’s Financial Advisors. Mr. Gordon went through the attached presentation
and explained the refunding process to the Board of Directors. Mr. Gordon went through the process that will
be required to refund the bonds. Mr. Gordon advised the Board that the resolution was prepared by the
CCRMA's bond counsel. Mr. Gordon went through the schedule of the entire transaction. Mr. Gordon
recommended the refunding to the Board since it will result in savings to the CCRMA.

Director Esparza moved to approve the resolution subject to changes made by the CCRMA’s Bond
Counsel. The motion was seconded by Director Garza and carried unanimously.

The Resolution is as follows:

4-D  Discussion and Possible Action Regarding the SH 32 Value Engineering Recommendation

Mr. Pete Sepulveda, Jr.,, RMA Executive Director gave a report on the final recommendations for
value engineering services. Mr. Sepulveda provided a Memorandum with recommendations. Mr. Sepulveda
went over the recommendations with the Board. Mr. Sepulveda stated that TxDOT was in concurrence with
the recommendations on the value engineering recommendations. The Memorandum with recommendations

are attached to the minutes.

Director Esparza moved to approve the SH 32 Value Engineering recommendations as presented in
the Memorandum by the Executive Director, Pete Sepulveda, Jr. The motion was seconded by Director Lopez
and carried unanimously.

The Memorandum with Recommendations is as follows:

4-E  Consideration and Approval of Work Authorization No. 69 with HNTB for the West Rail
Relocation Project

Mr. Pete Sepulveda, Jr., RMA Executive Director went over the need for the Work Authorization and
stated that the Board had previously authorized him to negotiate the work authorization. Mr. Sepulveda stated
that the work covered under this work authorization was related to the fence, gate and lighting on the
international rail bridge. Mr. Sepulveda stated that TxDOT had approved the scope and fee for this work
authorization and it was his recommendation to the Board that the work authorization be approved as
presented.

Director Garza moved to approve Work Authorization No. 69 with HNTB for the West Rail
Relocation Project. The motion was seconded by Director Esparza and carried unanimously.

The Work Authorization is as follows:
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4-F  Consideration and Approval of Supplemental Work Authorization No. 2 to Work
Authorization No. 40 with HNTB for the West Rail Relocation Project

Mr, Richard Ridings with HNTB introduced the item and explained the reason for this supplemental
wok authorization. Mr. Ridings stated that this supplemental had to do in part with the issues associated with
Bent #41 by the Rio Grande River. A discussion ensued with the Board on the specifics of the issues
associated with the additional work required for Bent #41 including testing, design and construction
management. Mr. Ridings gave a history of the events that occurred and the discussions held with the Texas
Department of Transportation (TXxDOT). Mr. Sepulveda stated that TxDOT is still reviewing the
supplemental work authorization but that they were fully aware of the situation and cognizant of the facts and
events surrounding the issue with Bent #41. Mr. Sepulveda stated that the recommendation from staff was for
the Board to approve the supplemental work authorization subject to TxDOT’s final review and approval.

Director Garza move to approve the supplemental work authorization subject to TxDOT’s final
review and approval. The motion was seconded by Director Lopez and carried unanimously.

The Supplemental Work Authorization is as follows:

4-G  Consideration and Authorization for the Cameron County Regional Mobility Authority
Exccutive Director to request assistance from TxDOT for the CDA process for the SPI 2™
Access project and the Outer Parkway Project

Mr. Pete Sepulveda, Jr., RMA Executive Director advised the Board that he would like to receive
authority from the Board to start discussions with TxDOT to see if they are interested in assisting the
CCRMA with the CDA process for SPI 2™ Access and Quter Parkway projects. Mr. Sepulveda stated that
TxDOT had the expertise and financial capability to assist the CCRMA through the CDA process.

Director Garza moved to authorize the Executive Director to start discussions with TxDOT for CDA
assistance. The motion was seconded by Director Esparza and carried unanimously.

4-H  Consideration and Approval of Change Order No. 18 for the SH 550 Port Spur Project

Mr. Pete Sepulveda, Jr., RMA Executive Director advised the Board that this change order was to
close out the project. The CCRMA is not required to provide any financial assistance as it relates to this
change order.

Director Esparza moved to approve Change Order No. 18 for the SH 550 Port Spur project. The
motion was seconded by Director Garza and carried unanimously.

The Change Order is as follows:

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Board and upon meotion by Director Esparza
seconded by Director Lopez and carried unanimously the meeting was ADJOURNED at 1:22 P.M.
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APPROVED this Mday of ﬁ}/}kﬂﬁéf‘ 2014,

CHAIBRMAN DAVID E. ALLEX

ATTESTED: ﬂ
SECREVY fBEN GALLEGOS, JR.
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2-A. PRESENTATION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF GEC REPORT FOR
JULY 2014



HNTB Corporation 2494 Central Bivd. Telephone (956) 554-7508
Engineers Architects Planners Suite A Facsimile (956) 554-7509
Brownsville, Texas 78520 www.hntb.com

Pete Sepulveda, Jr. H NTB

Executive Director

Cameron County Regional Mobility Authority
1100 East Monroe Street

Brownsville, Texas 78520

August 8, 2014
Dear Mr. Sepulveda,

The following is a summary of our progress on the subject projects for the month of July 2014.

Project Management:
General GEC

o Prepared & submitted CCRMA GEC Invoice for work performed on various Work
Authorizations. Updated and submitted June 2014 GEC report.

e On July 1* Richard Ridings, Jimmy Berry and Greg Garcia attended the Special Meeting of the
CCRMA Board of Directors.

e On July 10" Richard Ridings and Jimmy Berry attended the Regular Meeting of the CCRMA
Board of Directors.

» Assisted CCRMA Controller on activities involving reporting and documentation of invoicing,
progress reports and other accounting/billing matters.

e HNTB hosted and attended the CCRMA/TxDOT coordination meetings on July 7* and 21*.

e i ion International rdination rk A i
This Work Authorization provides_appropriat nsultant r staff coordination with the Mexican
agencie, monitor and determine project schedules, permit requirements, funding technical agreement

and design for the West Rail Relocation around Brownsville, Texas. The project plans will require approval

by Secretaria de Comunicaciones y Transportes (SCT), Comisién Internacional de Limites ¥ Aguas (CILA)

and Kansas City Southern Mexico (KCSAM).

¢ Construction progress on the Mexican side:

> Bridge, 100%
> Patios and Roadway, 100%

¢ Regarding the eight minimum railworks to begin operation, it was reported that work began. A
visit to the courts on July 10 confirmed the following:

> Structure for reinstallation of Gamma Rays. Two meetings were held for this
purpose, as agreed at the 72 workshop.

On June 9%, at 10:30 a.m. a meeting was held with Mr. Oscar Peguero Medina,
Manager of Facilities and Infrastructure Team of the General Administration of
Customs in the Ministry of Finance and company officials from Caxcan and Carter
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General Development Steering, during which revisions and corrections for final
design were made and agreed to be one in which the SCT Center, Science
Applications Company, LTD, the Carter Development Board of Directors and
Caxcan were present in order to establish the critical path for the installation of
Gamma Rays.

Therefore, on July 3, a meeting was held during which the plans to which the
corresponding changes were to be made by the company Science Applications, LTD
were reviewed with Caxcan as final plans.

The SCT Tamaulipas Centre will carry out a signing of the agreement with the
company Science Applications, LTD. The tender will be issued for the structure at
the same time.

Once construction of the structure begins, photographs will be taken to the General
Administration of Customs for approval of the relocation of the team.

Once the structure is completed, authorization for the company's six weeks previous
activities, removal, relocation of equipment, installation, adjustment, testing and
delivery will be received.

If there are no delays in implementation, the Gamma Rays project will be completed
in November.

o Platforms and Customs Senasica review. Work is at the 30% progress point. The
remaining work is expected to be completed by the end of August.

o The perimeter fence required by Customs is being built and will be ready by mid-
August.

o The telecommunications tower. The base is finished, while the structure is being
assembled in a workshop in the city of Matamoros. It consists of 8 modules, of
which there are already six ready and two missing. Installation will be finalized
in late August.

o The PIV. The final design was completed and construction resources were
requested. It is expected to be completed next year.

o The arrangement of roads. Work began and is expected to be finished in mid-
August,

o The five guard houses. Two have already been built, compared to the other three:

The concept for the booth is ready and will be at point 6 +650 in the PIV of the
Matamoros-Reynosa highway. Final design will be created to begin construction.

]
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o The concept for the booth is ready and will be at point 8 +750 in the PIV of the
Matamoros-Reynosa highway. The final design will be created to begin
construction.

o The concept for the house that is in section 10 +360 in the PIV of the Reynosa-
Matamoros highway is ready and the final design will be created to begin
construction.

o The location of the five houses was agreed upon at the meeting held on May 14 in
Monterrey.

o Construction to prevent fiooding in the driveway. At its Tuesday, July 8 meeting,
Mr. Isidro A. Balderas Vite, Federal Highway general resident of the SCT Center
in Ciudad Victoria, Tamaulipas, stated the project would be completed in mid-
August.

Regarding the delivery-reception tables, the first Technical Working Committee was held with
the Secretary of Communications and Transportation of Kansas City Southern de Mexico, SA de
CV to review the Legal section of the divestiture of the KMF-328 +-17.60 to km 330 +570.00 F-
line “F” and Matamoros Delivery-Desk Rail Bypass, the New Rail Yard and the New International
Bridge. The meeting was held on Tuesday, July 8, 2014 at 11:00 a.m. at the offices of the Genderal
Administration of Railways and Multimodal. It was stated that the steps for final delivery to
KCSM are:

¢ Signing of KCSM/DGTFM.

¢ Verification of Total Liberation of DGTFM Right-of-Way/DC/CSCTT.

e Verification of Bypass Works Contracts, DGTFM/DC/CSCTT.

» Verification of the status of the Bypass KCSM/DGTFM/DC/CSCTT.

o Checking on existing facilities that keep KCSM/DGTFM/CSCTT.

o Application to KCSM DGTFM to modify its Concession Agreement.

*  Modify the Concession.

o  Physical delivery of Bypass KCSM.

s Delivery of current assets to INDAABIN.

¢ Agreement by destination INDAABIN to Road Development.

Furthermore, it was agreed that a meeting should be held in Monterrey on Tuesday, July 15 at 9
a.m. including officers of the infrastructure and operation team. It was requested that the
process be carried out with the rigor it deserves and noted that the entry of the company Kansas
City Southern de Mexico was carried out without delay and federal agencies have facilities that
will operate for safety reasons.

On June 9 at 10:30 a.m. a meeting with Mr. Oscar Peguero Medina, Manager of Equipment and
Infrastructure of the General Administration of Customs of the Ministry of Finance was held at
the Directorate General of Customs. During the meeting, corrections were made and the
commitment was set that final plans will be sent on Wednesday, June 11.

¢ Regarding the issue of security, a meeting was held with Minister Ana Luisa Fajer Flores, Executive

Director for the North of the Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Mr. Roman Alberto Fernandez
Lopez, Assistant Director of Frontier Affairs of the Ministry of Foreign Affairs in their offices. It
was agreed upon to hold a meeting with the interdepartmental group on international bridges and
crossings to address the issue, which was given at this table. Currently waiting for a date. For this
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purpose, he has asked the Ambassador of Mexico in Brownsville, Ambassador Rodolfo Quilantan
Arenas, to communicate to the Executive Director for North America, Councilor Ana Luisa Fajer
Flores, who is awaiting the date of the meeting, to determine the inter-secretarial International
Crossings and Bridges Group that will address this issue.

s The date for the 74" Technical Reunion will be Friday, August 15 at 10:30 a.m.

Padre Island Pha ization 1

This Work Authorization provides engineering and environmental services associated with the development
and advancement of the NEPA_process for the proposed South Padre Island (SPI) 2nd Access Project in

Cameron County, Texas. The proposed Project will provide an alternate route to the Queen Isabella

Memorial Causeway: thus, enhancing local and regional mobility, and facilitating effective evacuation of the
island in times of disaster, hurricanes, and other emergencies. This Work Authorization continues the

environmental and corridor alternatives a ment tasks necessary to advance the project to a selection of a

Recommended Preferred Alternative and ultimately to a Record of Decision (ROD). After the selection of a
Preferred Alternative a supplement for schematic design and the FEIS will be required.

o HNTB continues to provide assistance and information to CCRMA Board and staff, members of
the general public and stakeholders.

s Coordinated Supplemental Work Authorization with S&B, RODS and Belaire Environmental.

s Coordination, including weekly meetings, with TxDOT Pharr District, TxDOT ENV and FHWA
has been on-going regarding the FEIS tasks.

e HNTB and PSI continued to develop the Draft Financial Plan.

o Continued data collection and ROW research and mapping.

» Continued coordination with subconsultant to address TxDOT’s 60% schematic review
comments.

» Continued coordination with subconsultants on route and design studies for preparation of 90%
submittal (i.e. typical sections, geometric design, preliminary cross sections, preliminary traffic
control, 3D modeling, and schematic plan preparation, preliminary construction cost estimate,
hydrology, hydraulic studies, drainage design and preliminary bridge layouts).

¢ Revised master design schedule and submitted to subconsultants for review.

» Continued coordination with TxDOT Transportation Planning & Programming (TPP) and
subconsultants on traffic forecasting and operational analysis.

» Continued coordination with subconsultants on geotechnical services.

» Continued coordination with subconsultants on socio-economic services.

o Plans for Context Sensitive Solutions (CSS) advanced, meeting materials were finalized and
meetings were scheduled for August 5" and 6™.

» Continued preparation of FEIS and associated tasks.

» Coordinated with subconsultants on FEIS tasks.

e Continued coordination with regulatory agencies on MMPA, ESA, EFH compliance, including
mitigation. Meetings were scheduled in August with the USACE and NMFS in Galveston -
preparation of meeting agenda and coordination with TxDOT on attendees was completed.

* Completed Survey cross sections for the Laguna Madre.

e Met with CDM Smith to discuss the Economic Development growth projections for the T&R
Studies.
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General Brant Road/FM 106 Extension (Work Authorization No. 26)
This work authorization provides professional services and deliverables associated with the preparation of a

categorical exclusion_(t reviewed by the Federal Highway Administration in anticipation of possible
ederal funding) and the completion of the Section 404 permitting process (including the development of a
nceptual mitigation plan) for the project.

¢ No activity this billing period.

Imj itch Yard air-In- Facili rk Authorization 1
This work authorization provides engineering services throughout the construction duration of the Olmit
Switch Yard and Repair-In-Place (RIP) Facility by providing responses to the contractor’s Requests for

Information, Shop Drawing Review and As-Built construction plans.

e HNTB is assisting with the completion and close out of this project.
¢ On July 31, 2014 Brownsville PUB attempted to turn on the water to the RIP facility. There wasa
broken nut on the control wheel, they will fix the problem and try again.

il Bypass, CI k ization
This work authorization provides professional services associated with construction inspection phase work
r the West Rail Bypass.

e FHNTB started on Supplemental Work Authorization for the plans, procurement, and
construction of the Border Fencing on the UPRR Bridge. Items remaining to be completed are
Gate at bent 41, fence on the bridge, lighting on the bridge, security equipment in building,
communications wiring in the building, crossing for CCID #6, and VACIS system.

¢ The tamping of all rail has been completed, the UP maintenance and public crossings are now
installed, and inside guard rail has been completed.

o The contractor has achieved substantial completion with only minor corrections and cleanup
required.

e Mitigation coordination with USACE and CCRMA.

e HNTB is assisting with the completion and close out of this project.

Quter Parkway Study (Work Authorization No. 36)
This work authorization provides professional services and deliverables associated with a study for the Quter

Parkway. The study is to be performed in a three pha ri to deliver a schematic design for the Quter

Parkway project. The phases are:

e HNTB started on Supplemental Work Authorization for the Environmental Assessment and
Route Studies.

e  Draft Classification Letter was revised per TxDOT ENV comments and resubmitted to the Pharr
District for review.

ail RFIs, As-Buil k rization 4
This work authorization provid nstruction phase services throughout the construction of the West Rail
Relocation Project by providing responses to Requests for Information from the contractor and providing As-
Built construction drawings. Also, records keeping will rovided through the use of DashPort.
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e No tasks performed for this month.

H 32 rk Authorization 49 - Preliminary Schemati irgpnmental Approval
This work authorization_provides professional services for oversight, guidance, agency coordination, and
issue resolution, necessary to dite_the preliminary development pha ¢ fwo SH 32 projects only.
The_two projects, which each_have logical termini and independent_utiljt tend from US 77/83 to F

herein referred to as SH 32-West) and from F to SH 4 (herein referred to SH 32-East). The
roposed_projects are being developed by two prime subconsultants. (Se+B Infrastructure, Ltd. and Traffic
ngineers, Inc.) under the gversight of HNTB (GEC).

H nsultant - T i I r TEI):
* Continued project coordination with TEL
s Archeological field was was completed and report writing is underway.

2 - S&B Infrastructur r
e Continued project coordination with S&B.
» Biological Assessment was revised per TxDOT comments, reviewed by the GEC and resubmitted
to the TxDOT Pharr District for back check.

Inte i isor

This Work Authorization provides appropriate subconsultant(s) for staff coordination with the Mexican
agencigs to_develop and promote the Cammeron County as an International Multimodal Logistics Hub

IMLH), to service the international industry, developing plans to promote and improve the infrastructure

services and systems, to offer a highly competitive and flexible logistics services.

e Attended 4th meeting with CBP and Mexican trucking Companies at Los Tomates Bridge, more
than five trucking companies’ representatives attended the meeting with Officer Rafael Gonzalez
and three CBP officials. The new procedure to be used for the eManifest in order to speed up the
commercial traffic flow was discussed. The comments from the trucking Companies are that they
have been reducing the time of crossing at Los Tomates Bridge.

e Various meetings with Matamoros’s Officials and Commissioners to work on Los Indios Bridge
projects were held. They are helping to research all the land next to Los Indios Bridge on the
Mexican side, and are sending to the Tamaulipas Government records from several lots around
the bridge.

e Meeting with Harlingen EDC and the Industrial Development Foundation, plan of action from
the CC Logistics Alliance was presented.

e Coordinated a meeting with Judge Carlos Cascos, Ralph Cowen and Eduardo Campirano from
the Port of Brownsville to start the planning process for a future visit to the Cameron County
region from officials and businessman from Mazatlan and the State of Sinaloa, which is scheduled
for next September.

e Weekly meetings and conference calls with Cameron County, Port of Brownsville and Harlingen
EDC were conducted to follow up on different projects.

e Continue working with Tamaulipas Economic Development and Public Works officials to follow
up on the Projects at Los Indios Bridge. Searching a State and Private partnership that was
formed when the bridge was built, they own some of the land around the bridge. A meeting will
be set in Cd. Victoria for the second week of August.
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Coordinate various meetings with the Port of Brownsville, Harlingen EDC and Cameron County
officials to prepare the plan for the first International Trade Session to be host by the CC Logistics
Alliance during the month of September.

The second Training session with DPS and the Mexican Trucking Companies Association
(Canacar) was held on July 16 at the DPS Los Tomates station; more than 25 participants attend
the session. The comments from the trucking companies are very positive on the DPS inspection
process.

A meeting was coordinated with the Maquila Association and Canacar (Mex. Trucking
Companies). We are trying to work together in our effort to reduce the Commercial traffic
crossing time.

Continue working with Harlingen EDC to coordinate promotional trips to Guanajuato, Mexico
to visit produce companies. Several meetings have been set with Cold Storage Companies,
Trucking Companies and custom brokers.

Together with Tony Rodriguez (POB), attended the Pharr Bridge trade session in Pharr TX. They
publish a magazine called “Pharr Trade Numbers” with all the Port International trade
information and statistics.

Attended a meeting with the Brownsville Customs Broker Association. We present the CC
logistics Alliance plan of action and our efforts to reduce the commercial traffic crossing time
with CBP and DPS. They are ready to participate with us in our effort to promote the
International Trade and Logistics business in the Region.

Attended the monthly meeting with the International Trade Committee at the Brownsville
Chamber of Commerce.

Consultant Management:

Continued coordination with subconsultants and S&B Infrastructure as prime consultant on SH
550 Construction management including discussions with USACE officials on wetland mitigation
that was performed as part of this project.

Agency Coordination:

Conducted ongoing discussions with CCRMA staff, TxDOT staff and subconsultants for
preparation of SPI 2 Access project, SH 550, Olmito Switch Yard Repair-In-Place Facility
construction project, West Rail construction project, SH 32 East Loop EAs and other
miscellaneous items.

Best regards,

HLST Al sz

Richard L. Ridings, P.E.
Vice President

cc:

Carlos Lopez, P.E.



July Status Report HNTB

Project West Rail Relocation
Work Authorization [ ] Intemational Advisor Services Wa Cost: _$ 166.579.00
Supplemental m International Advisor Services SACost._$ §7.264.00
Supplemental [2] .ntemational Advisor Services SA Cost:_$ 87.163.00
Supplemental [3] intemational Advisor Services SACost _$ 67.225.00
Supplemental [&] Inemational Advisor Services SACost_$ £7.939.00
Supplemental =] Iniemational Advisor Services SA Cost: _$ 87.839.00
Supplemental [&] Intemnational Advisar Servicas SA Cost:_$ 67.839.00
Supplemental [ 7] Intemalional Advisor Services SA Cost:_$ 67.939.00
Supplemental [&] International Advisor Servicas SA Cost: _$ 67.930.00
Supplemental (3] Intematicnat Advisar Services SA Cost:_§ §9.054.00
Supplemental Intemationat Advisor Services SA Cost: _§ £9,054.00
Supplemental International Advisor Services SACost: § 65,924.00
Supplemental [z} Intemational Advisor Servicas SA Cost:_$ 66.924.00
Supplemental (53] Intemational Advisor Services SA Cost: _S 66.824.00
Total Cost: _§ 1,075 ,806.00

Description: The West Rail Relocallon project provides appropriale subconsultant (s} for slaff coordination with the Mexican agencies to
'manitor and determine project schedules, permii requirements, funding technical agreements and design for the West Rail Relocalion around
Brownsville, Texas. This subconsultant is Arluro de las Fuentes of Caminos Y Puentes Intemacionaies. The project plans will require approval
by Secretaria de Comunicaciones y Transpories (SCT), Comision intemacional de Limits Y Aguas (CILA) and Kansas City Southem Maxico
(KCSM)

Scope: Provide professional services and deliverables required for project administralion and coordination for the Cameron County Regional
Mobility Authority

|Deliverable: Monthly Project Progress Reports and meeting minules thal details activities performed by task (Spanish and English versions will]
be provided). Monthly involce/blilings with list of tasks performed and products delivered per Invoice billing cycle {English version will be
provided)

Ongolng.
Recent Activity:| Detailed report available
Upcoming Aciivity: |Attend coordination meslings
: 0_u“' __ ._.. o -
Iﬂ::mm:i‘f—.m—ﬂ:&';w ey mkﬁb'_.m.ﬁ'-?ﬂ]
—- T
i
= b
e T e N T reT T T o y  T e T
Date
Anticipatad
Task Status Completion % Complete
Intemational Services Ongoing 63072014 1005
WAAn'lounl.|1- 1,075,808.00 Number DaysOld Invoice Amount
Bliled To Dae 1.075.806 00
1.075,6068.00
| Funding Sourca: Cameron County

Tolak § x




July Status Report HNTB

Project Sowth Padre Isand Phase 3A & 38

Wark Authonization  [37] WA Cost: _$ 2.865.831 00
Supplemental [Z] Attectad Env & Env Consequences SA Cost: _$ 165.885.00
Supplemental [2] Attectad Env & Env Consequences SA Cost: _$ 415.622.00
Supplemental 5] Attected Env & Env Consequences SACost: _§ 09.870.00
Supplemental [&] Affected Env & Env Consequences SACost: _§ 1686.686.00
Supplemental [Z] Atfected Env & Env Consequencas SA Cost: _$ 40.290.00
Supplemental =] Aftectad Env & Env Consequences SACost: _§ 59.094.00
Supplemental [E] Aftected Env & Env Consequences SA Cost: _$ 37.334,00
Supplemental [G=] Attected Env & Env Conseguences SACest: S 4.488.102 00
Supplemental EI Affected Env & Env Consequances SA Cost: _§ 118.255.00
Supplemental E Aftected Env & Env Consaguences 5A Cost: _§ 15,827.00
Supplemental El Affected Env & Env Consequances 5A Cost; _$ 244,821.00

TotalCost §____8.527,400.00

lcrlption:'frTil Work Authorization provides engineenng and environmeantal sarices assocatad with the development and advancement of
a NEPA process lor the proposed South Padre Island (SPI) 2nd Access Project in Cameron County, Texas. The proposed Project will provide

n altemate route to the Queen isabella Memorial C. y; thus, enhancing local and regional mability, and facilitating affective avacuation of
@ island in timas of di hurm . and glher gencias. This Work Authorization continuas the engineering and envirenmental tasks
necassary (o advanca tha project to a schematic design of the R ded Praferred iver, FEIS and utimately to & Record of Decision

ROD)

Ecnpl' Prepare schematic, FEIS and Surveying

Hiverable: Project admin ion and I schematic design of the Enmmrnended Praferrad Allemative, VE study, toll facilty study
intedim financial and projest managamant plan, base and soil testing and cone drilling. tratfic ing, tralfic operational study, Pl. CSS, FEIS,
Record of Decision (ROD) and survaying

“Janended USFWS Mitigation Masting with CCRMA, TxDOT, USFWS and FHWA et the Laguna Alascosa Wildiife Refuge
‘Recent Activty-jon 32422014 Continued to inate with itants on schematic, financial plan, traffic analysis and gectachnical |
{surveys.

Coordination with sub: diant en develop of 0% submittal, financial plan and tratfic analysis. §0% intemnal
mu«"ﬂuﬂmﬂul dus on /167201 and E0% TxDOT submittal dus on 4/30:2014. Complete geatechnical surveys.

Continued work on SWA #10 activities, lnduqu weeidy meenngn with TxDOT and FHWA. Meeting with TxDOT and
‘[FHWA on indirect and Cumulative Imp. \ with sub-cor

ty:| Continue work an SWA #10 activities.

:[None.

oordmnbon with subconsuliants on fisld surveying. Coordmaunn with
=="TIROE. Photogrammeiry. LIDAR and bathymatry surveys are compiata.
-[Perform field surveying

Continue to coordinata with affected proparty owners on ROE

| Date of
Anticipated
Task | Status Complstion | % Complate
Elull and Dasign Studies : Qmm 101 4/2014 80%
Secial. Environmental and Economic Studies | Qngoing 82015 50%
Fiekd Surveying ant Photogrammetry 4 Ongoing 402014 95%
. — - E——

[ WA Amoucl 8 BETA000|  Momber | D Ot nvolcn Amound___
| pillad To Duriec] S 6.540.562.58 |103-40814-PL-017 81 H 420.189 91

. Pl To Duie] 3 5.351.345.56 [104.-40618-PL-017 56 $ 385,565.35
| Unpaid Balancae] § 1.289,217,02 |105-40618-PL-017 21 $ 483.481 78

Tatal § 1,208,217.02 |




July Status Report HNTB

Project West Rail Construction & Inspection Services

Work Authorization @ Construction & Inspection Services WA Cost:_$ 1.255,920.00
Supplemental [2] Construction & Inspection Services SACost: _$ 358.021.00
Supplementat m Construction & Inspection Services SACost § 48,623.00

Total Cost: § 1.662,564.00

Description: This Work Authorization is to provide construction inspection (CI) for the Union Pacific Railroad (UPEﬁ) West Rail Bypass. The
construction of these additional tracks will allow the UPRR to abandon their current location between Mexico and Olmito eliminating several
grade crossings.

Scope: Construction administration for the construction of the West Rail relocation. The construction includes track, drainage, construction
sequencing, SWPPP, pay estimates, quantities, and schedule. This includes the DHS facility on the north side of US 281.

erwork, and construction schedule.
Project Actlvityﬁ

ay estimates, ARRA pa

_|Contractor has completed track construction and is performing a final cleaning up. Coordination with USACE on
RecentAchivity:| . - " . )
- mitigation site non-compliance.
Upcoming Activity:|Clean up
Qutstanding Issues: | Awaiting resolution of DHS change order items and the associated funding. Awaiting approval of outstanding SWAs.
Anticipated
Task Status Completion | % Complete
[WestRail Construction Inspection Services (C1)
Project Management, Administration, QA/QC Complete 10/21/2013 100%
Process Invoices and Progress Reports Complete 10/21/2013 100%
Construction Inspaction Sarvices 100%
Construction Management Complete 10/21/2013 100%
Construction Observaiion and Inspection Complete 10/24/2013 100%
Record Keeping and File Management Complete 10/21/2013 100%
Schedule Complete 102312013 100%
Project Close-Out
Canstruction Management Complete 10/21/2013 100%
Record Keeping and File Management Complete 10/2172013 100%
Post Construction Servicas Ongoing 10/21/2013 90%
WA Amount:|. 1,662 564.00 Number Days Oid Invoice Amount
Biftled To Dats:| $ 1,650,298.05
Paid To Date:| $ 1,650,298.05
Unpaki Balance:| $ =
Funding Source:
Total: § -




July Status Report HNTB

Project Quter Parkway Planning Study

Work Authorization Outer Parkway Planning Study WA Cost _5 103,838 00
Supplemental D SA Cost:

Supplemental :] SA Cost:

Total Cost: $ 103,839 00

Description: This work authorization provides profassional services and deliverables associated with a study for the Quter Parkway The study
is to be performed in a three phase effort to deliver a schematic design for the Quter Parkway project.

Scope: This Wark Authonzation includes the development of an anvironmental and engineering constraints map, environmental constrainls
report, and corndor identification report to ad in the establishment of the alignment of the Outer Parkway

|Deliverable: Constraints map, environmental constraints/comridar identification report.

Drafted Environmental Classification letter for FHWA concurrence on EA classification

Recant Activity:

Submit Classification letter to FHWA,
Upcoming Activity:

 Cutstanding tssuss|None

Date of
Anticipated
Task Status Completion | % Complete
Project Management and Coordination Complete 3112011 100%
Compilete 3112011 100%
Complete 31/2011 100%
| outstanding invoice
5 103,839.00 Mumber | =~~~ DaysOid Invoica Amount
3 103.839.00
3 103.839.00
;) §




July Status Report HNTB

Project West Rail RF], As-Builts
Work Authonzation West Rail RF]. As-Builts WA Cost: _$ 171.150.00
Supplemental [:] SA Cost:
Supplemental |:| SA Cost:
Supplemental I:] SA Cost:
Total Cost: _$ 171.150.00

Description: This Work Authorization is to provide response to questions related to the plans and specifications as needed throughout the
duration of the construction and review of shop drawings.

Scope: Project Manager shall be the point of contact for the AUTHORITY to address issues regarding project staff, progress, response to
guestions related to the plans and specifications as needed throughout the duration of the construction

Recent Activityz| Project management (see GEC Progress Report)

Upcoming Activity: |Respond to RFIs on an as-needed basis.

Ounstanding Issues: |Awaiting approval for SWAs {additional RFls/shop drawing review/DHS coordination).

Anticipated
Task Status Completion | % Complete
'ast Rall RFI, Shop Drawin
Project Management Complete 10/21/2013 100%
Respond to Requests for Information Complate 10/21/2013 100%
WA Amount: 171,150.00 | Imvoice Nurnber Daays Old Irvolce Amount
_Billed To Date:] $ 171,150.00
To il § 171,150.00
Unpaid Balance:] $ c
Total: $ 5




July Status Report

HNTB

Project Olmito RIP CI Services
Work Authorization Construction & Inspection Services WA Cost 134,538.00
Supplemental D SACost: $ -
Supplemental D SA Cost:
Supplemental |:| SA Cost:

Total Cost. _$ 134,538 00

and expand their capabilities.

Description: This Work Authorization is to provida construction inspection (Cl} for the Union Pacific Rairoad {UPRR) Olmito Yard ﬁepa rin
Place (RIP} Facility. The construction of this facility allow the UPRR (o relocate their current repair in place operations from Harlingen to Olmito

drainage, construction sequencing, SWPPP, pay estimates, quantities, and schedule

Scope: Construction administration for the Olmito Yard repair-in-place (RIP) facility and lighting This includes build ng, equipment, track,

onstruction at 98% complete.

Recen_t |Nona

Upcoming Al:li\'fity:lBPUB to energize water ling. Schaduia final walk through with UPRR for facility acceptance.

[Awaiting resolution on culstanding SWA. The County had been sent a request o provide warranty deed or metes and

Outstandim!ssue: bounds for water/sewer line and submit payment on impact fees for both to BPUB.
Anticipated
Task Status Completion | % Complete
Olmita RIP Facility Construction Inspaction Services (Cl)
IProject Management, Administration, QA/QC Ongoing 1/31/2013 95%
Process Invoices and Progress Reporls Ongoing 1/31/2013 95%
Eonstructlon Inspaction Services Ongeing 1/31/2013 95%
Construction Managament Ongoing 1/31/2013 95%
Construction Observat_ion and Inspection Ongeing 1/31/2013 95%
|Record Keeping and File Managament Ongoing 1/31/2013 95%
{Schedule Ongoing 1/31/2013 95%
|Project Close-Out
Construction Management Ongoing 143172013 20%
Record Keeping and File Management Ongaing 1131/2013 20%
WA Amount:| § 134539.00 ).  Number = | . Days O Invoice Amount
‘Biled To Date:] 5 134,538.00
Psid To Dets:] $ 134,538.00
Linpaid Balance:| $ -
Funding Source:
~ Jotal § -




July Status Report HNTB

Project SH 32 GEC

Work Authorization SH 32 GEC WA Cost: _§ 1.86%,997.00

Supplemental E SH 32 GEC SA Cost, § 18,277.00

Supplemental |Z] SH 32 GEC SACost; § 243,638.00
Total Cost:_$ 2.223.913.00

Description: This work authorization provides professional services for oversight, guidance, agency coordination, and issue resolution, necessary to
expedite the preliminary development phases of these two SH 32 projects only The two projects, which each have logical termini and independent

utility, extend from US 77/83 fo FM 3068 (herein referred to as SH 32-West) and from FM 3088 fo SH 4 (herein referred to SH 32-East). The proposed)
proiects are being developed by two prime subconsultants, (S&8 Infrastruciure, Lid. and Traffic Engineers. Inc.) under the oversight of HNTB (GEC).

Scopa: This Work Authorization allows the GEC to oversee/manage the development of two environmental assessments being prepared for SH 32.
The environmental assessments are being prepared by other firms.,

|oetiveranie: Meeting netes, schedules, document reviews, permitting strategies.

“{Submittal of SH 32 East SBiological Assessment and Antiquities Permit application to TxDOT. Submittal of Antiquities Permit
application for SH 32 West ta TxDOT. Value Engineering study occurred between 4/18/14 to 4/17/14.

|| Submittals of EA, BA and archeology results.

Upcoming Activity:
Outstanding fssues :INm:e
Date of
Antlcipated
_ Task Status Completion | % Complete
East Loop EA
Project Management and Coordination B8%
2223913.00 Number Deys Ok Involos Amount |
2,099,033.87 | 104-40619-PI-049 56 $ 2438390
201376022 105-40619-PL-049 21 5 80.909 75
| 85,273 85

cla: § 85,273.65




July Status Report HNTB

Project Internatipna! Advisor Services - Mulimadal Logistic HUB
Work Authorization Cameron County Interat.onal HUB WA Cost: _§ 86,393 00
Supplemental I: SACost _§ -
Supplemeantal |:] SACost_$

Total Cost:_$ BE6,393.00

promaote the Cameron County as an International Muitimodal Logistics Hub (IMLH), to service the international industry. developing plans to

|-Dls|:riplion: This work authorization provides appropriate subconsultant(s) for staff coordination with the Mexican agencies to develop and
sromote and improve the infrastructure, services and systems, to offer a highly competitive and flaxible logistics services.

s e o s T L e L e )
Scope: This work authorization will develop and consult with the Cameron County International Multimodal Logistic HUB (IMLH) to service the

International Industry and to develop marketing plans to promote and improve the infrastructure. as well as services and systems to offer highly
compelitive and flexible logistics services

|Detiverable: Meeting notes, schedules, document reviews, pemmitting stralegies.

ect Activib

'[Stakeho!der meetings

Continue stakehalder mestings and workshops

Upcoming Activity;
Outsianding lssues:
Date of
Anticipated
Task Status Completion | % Complate
_I_ntemaﬁonnl Advisory Services
Project Management and Coordination 445
.......... tanding -
£6,353.00 'Numbar Days Oid Invoice Amount
38.388.00
38,388 00

Tol § .




2-B. PRESENTATION OF THE STATUS OF THE SH 550 DIRECT
CONNECTOR FOR JULY 2014
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2-C. PRESENTATION OF THE MARKETING REPORT



August 2014 Marketing Report
Michelle A. Lopez

Marketing & Communications Director




1. Disabled Veterans Program:

Ul’litedﬁ)r
Veterans

[ e o e e e e
Better Mobility for the Heroes of our Nation

Sepall boga {os Useind for T onvanr

» Purpose:

o) United for Veterans is a program designed to provide veterans with the chance to
be exempt from paying our toll road. At the moment, the State of Texas does not
offer accommodations for veterans concerning better travel through safer roads.
CCRMA has taken the initiative to assist our community with this program.

o We will look at our data, select those with disabled tags and cover their fees.

e Contribution:

o) Through United for Veterans, contributions will be open for anyone who'd like to
donate in the community. Any contribution is welcome, from $100 to $1,000.
Your business will be recognized in our social networking sites as well as in a
dedicated page in our website. Any public presentation performed by CCRMA
will have a mention to the special businesses who have assisted in bettering our
communities with programs such as this one.

o] When a business donates, as a token of appreciation, we’ll give them a decal or
sticker to put on their windows. {small logo)



o Initiated dialogue between the Cameron County Regional Mobility Authority and
dealerships established in Cameron County. I'm setting up appointments to meet
with General Managers as they're the decision makers.

o United for Veterans: Better Mobility for the Heroes of our Nation Logo has been
created. Branding has begun and program page has been integrated to
www.ccrma.org. Packet has been developed — pending Pete Sepulveda’s letter
to begin circulation. Facebook marketing has been initiated.

2. TxTag/Dealerships:

o As we visit each dealership for United for Veterans campaign, we'll also discuss
the possibility of working together to offer new car customers a TxTag.

3. TxTag/Rental companies:

o We'll be visiting different car rental locations throughout the Valley for TxTag
purchases.



4. Facebook Marketing:

Page Aty Insights Setungs Buid Aucience v Hetp -
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ABOUT

o We've reached 100 likes! We're up to 111. Consistent social networking
presence has been maintained. We have a weekly total reach of 964 active
members from July 7, 2014 - August 3, 2014.

5. Website:

» CCRMA website is scheduled for completion on August 18", On the new website, CCRMA
is linked with every post made through its social networking footprint (e.g. Facebook,
LinkedIn). Continuity and brand exposure has been evident - please see Facebook
Analytics Report & Google Analytics for details.



6. Mass Email Campaign

o A design has been produced for a potential mass email campaign targeted for Cameron
County. Estimated potential reach is 19,310 based on an email list last updated on July 26,
2014. Initial fees and cost per email have not been discussed yet - pending direction and
final approval.

SH 530

EAHERE‘I CCUNTY SRAST EVER THLL ROAD

: LEABN HDW T0 QBTAIN YOUR TXTAG

10 TAKE FULL ADVANTAGE DF ALLS
TEXAS UL ROADS ACRCSS THE STM[

BETTER INFRASTRUCTURE

FOR ALL RESIDENTS GF CAMERON COUNTY

SH 550

Connectng you from 169 o the Porl of
Brownsvile, hassle freel Here are some
quick benefits

1 Fast, Safe Easy non-giop roule
from I1G9E la the: Port of Brownsville

2 Cashiess Toll System, no need to
slow down for tolf booths.

3 Using a TxTaQ can save you tme
2nd money. up o 25% on all Texas
Tol Roads

Obtain your TITag

Message from cur Chalrman:

‘Together we share 3 cormmaon vison of
sttamahle infrastructure nebwork that
well advance the economc vitatity and
future of our region for generations to
come.”

Davit Aex. CCRMA Chasrman



7. Billboards

 Billboards found on HWY 100 and Merryman Road have been kept in immaculate condition
since day one of its installation. No maintenance required.

o New marketing report has not been provided by Lamar yet, but it is expected to have the
same impressions per week. An increase may be found as we approach the end of
summer.

FAST | SAFE | EASY

1 comnne £97

I.  1-69W; near Merryman exit sign, across Brownsville Sportspark
Il.  Total weekly impressions: 200,880

7. W stiv UPDATED WiTH DUR PROJECTS!

. Hwy. 100 in Los Fresnos, headed towards South Padre Island
Il. Total weekly impressions: 49,120



4-A. APPROVAL OF CLAIMS



/
CAMERON COUNTY REGIO

TO:

MEMORANDUM

Chairman and Board Members
"

FROM: Pete Sepulveda, Jr. F&)
RE: Claims Item 4-A
DATE: August 14, 2014

Attached are the Claims being presented for consideration and payment:

The Claims include;

Controller and Marketing Director — July Mileage and phene reimbursement and office
supplies

Anderson Columbia — SH 550 Direct Connector for June 2014

CAN Surety — Surety payments

Cameron County — CAF for 2012 Bonds

Executive Director — Travel Reimbursement

Fagan Consulting, LLC — Consulting on Toll Operations and DC ILA

HNTB - SPI, West Rail & East Loop

Rentfro Law Firm — West Rail

S&B Infrastructure — FM 803 Mitigation Services and SH 550 Construction Management
for July 2014

Sullivan Public Affairs — Government Relations Consulting Services for July 2014

The Brownsville Herald — Advertising SPI CSS Meetings

Xerox — Copier Lease

Ziegner — Software hosting

I recommend approval of the invoices.



(5.19) 1114

CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
Invoices Selected for Payment - Claims to be Paid

Vendor ID Vendor Name Invaice Number Cash Required Invoice/Credit Description
Ablla Abila QU0012406 1,714.00 Maintenance & Support for Acct
Software
Cameron County Cameron County April 2014 6.48 Cameron County Mail Room Services
CTRMA Central Texas Regional 53-46837-0M 746.01 Support for Closeout of Port Spur ILA
Mobility Authority
Estrada & Hinojosa Estrada Hinojosa & Company 1637 5,000.00 Continuing Disclosure Fee FYE 2013
Inc
GES Gonzalez Engineering & 204801 5,664.00 Survey and map work on West Rail
Surveying, Inc. Parcels
GES Gonzalez Engineering & 204823 3,972.00 Survey and map work on West Rail
Surveying, Inc. Parcels
HNTB HNTB CORPORATION 104-40619-PL-008 10,473.30 International Advisory Services on West
Rail
HNTB HNTB CORPORATION 104-40619-PL-073 8,797.25 International Advisory Services for May
2014
HNTB HNTB CORPORATION 105-40619-PL-073 7,997.50 International Advisory Services on Multi
Modal Hub
HNTB HNTB CORPORATION 40619 1,050.00 Office Sharing agreement for CCRMA
staff Jul-Sep 2014
PEDRO SEPULVE... PEDRO SEPULVEDA JR. PS) - 7-15-14 789,92 ED Travel to Austin for Border Trade
Alliance
RGV Spotlight RGV Spotlight INV-0A12922B 625.00  Website development services
RGV Spotlight RGV Spotlight REIM-CCRMA-001B 69.85 Reimbursement for Advertising Services
The Herald AIM Media Texas 40016751-0614 3,137.70 RFQ Services for 550 and SPI value
engineering
Xerox Xerox 074722807 457.89 Monthly lease for copy/print machine
Report Total 50,500.90

Date:; 7/17/14 11:47:00 AM Page: 1



Vendor ID

Vendor Name

CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY

Invoices Selected for Payment - Claims to be Paid

Invoice Number

Cash Required

Invoice/Credit Description

Adrian
Ange: T Perez

Blanca C. Betanco...
Daniel Huerta

PEDRO SEPULVE...
PUB
TML Emp Health

™U
United Rentals

Report Total

Date: 7/31/14 09:58:11 AM

Agdrian Rincones
Angel Timoteo Perez

Blanca C. Betancourt
Danie! Huerta

PEDRO SEPULVEDA JR.
Public Utilities Board
TML Intergovernmental
Employee Benefits Pool
TXU Energy

United Rentals

AR - 7-29-14
AP - 7-29-14

E
DH - 7-29-14

Ps] 7-22-14
PUB July 2014
2014-08

055801239423
121236313-001

524.85
140.00

2,950.00
140.00

2,284.82
279.53
2,315.82

651.30
275.15

9,565.47

Reimbursement for Office Supplies,
Webhasting, etc...

Sherriff Deputy Services on road
closure for maintenance
Administrative support for month of July
Sherriff Deputy Services on road
closure for maintenance

Travel for ED to IBTTA Conference
Utilities on 5H 550

Health Insurance Expense for
Employees August 2014

Utilities on SH 550

Rental Equipment for Toll Maintenance

Page: 1



CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY

Invoices Selected for Payment - Claims to be Pald

Vendor ID Vendor Name Invoice Number Cash Required Invoice/Credit Description

Adrian Adrian Rincones AR 7-31-14 162.49 Mileage Reimbursement July - Controller

Adrian Adrian Rincones AR 8-14-14 117.22 Reimbursement for Marketing and Web
hosting

Adrian Adrian Rincones AR Cell July 100.00 Cell phone reimbursement for July 2014

Anderson Columbla  Anderson Columbia Co., Inc 3622-01-003-17 957,503.81  Direct Connector Construction July 2014

Cameron County Cameron County CAF 2012 Bonds 16,666.66  CAF for 2012 Bonds

CNA Surety CNA Surety 71344654 161.88  Bond insurance for BOD member Mark
Esparza

dBac Software Roberto Salazar DBA dBaC DBAC - 2 750.00 Final Payment for Web/Email setup

Software

DYLBIA L. VEGA DYLBIA L JEFFERIES VEGA DV - July 2014 1,100.00 Legal services for month of July

Fagan Consulting Fagan Consulting LLC 192 4,916.00 Toll ILA oversight for Direct Connector
month of July 2014

Franco San Miguel FRANCISCO ] SANMIGUEL FS - July 2014 1,750.00 Toll Maintenance Support for July

HNTB HNTB CORPORATION 103-40619-PL-01... 420,169.91 Environmental Services and Project
Oversight SPI 2nd access

HNTB HNTB CORPORATION 104-40619-PL-017 385,565.35 Environmental services performed on
SPI for May 2014

HNTB HNTB CORPORATION 104-40619-PL-049 24,363.90 GEC Oversight on SH 32 for May

HNTB HNTB CORPORATION 105-40619-PL-049 60,909.75  GEC Oversight on SH32 for June 2014

HNTB HNTB CORPORATION 106-40619-PL-008 12,610.80  International Advisor Service West Rail
Project

HNTB HNTB CORPORATION 106-40619-PL-049 24,363.90  GEC Oversight SH32 project

HNTB HNTB CORPORATION 106-40619-PL-073 7,997.50  Intemational Advisor Services
MultiModal HUB

Michelle Lopez Michelle Lopez ML B-11-14 49.79 Reimbursement for Marketing material

Michelle Lopez Michelle Lopez ML Cell July 100.00 Cell phone reimbursement for July 2014

Michelle Lopez Michelle Lopez ML July 118.54 Mileage Relmbursement July Marketing
Director

PEDRO SEPULVE... PEDRO SEPULVEDA JR. PS5} 7-31-14 798.24 ED Travel to Austin Txdot Meeting

PEDRO SEPULVE... PEDRO SEPULVEDA JR. PS] 8-12-14 561.18 ED Travel to San Antonio for TxDot
meeting

S&B S8B Infrastructure, LTD U1818-20 8,080.71 Environmental Services FMB03 Project

588 S&8B Infrastructure, LTD J1965-18 96,493.18 Construction Management Services
SH550 July

Sullivan Public Affa Sullivan Public Affairs €C072014 7,500.00  Government Relations Consulting July
2014

TEDSI TEDSI Infrastructure Group, 20142016 46,767.20 Environmental services parformed on

Inc. Port Isabel Access Rd Pr

The Herald AIM Media Texas 40016751-0714 1,568.85  AIM Media - SP1 Advertisement for CSS

The Rentrfro Law ...  The Rentfro Law Firm, PLLC. 017769-017770 1,198.60  Legal services on West Rall project

Xerox Xerox 075253719 457.89  Monthly Copler Lease

ZIEGNER ZIEGNER TECHNOLOGIES 102731 402.00 Monthly Acct Software Hosting Sep 2014

Report Total 2,083,305.35

Date; 8/13/14 08:41:55 AM



4-B. CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
JULY 2014
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CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
CCRMA Claims Account
CCRMA Operating Fund
TxTag - Replenishment Account
CCRMA Bond/Debt Funds
Total Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash accounts - debt service
CCRMA Tall Revenue Funds
2010 A & B Pledged Revenue Funds
2010 A Debt Reserve
2010 A Debt Service
2010 B Debt Reserve
2010 B Debt Service
2012 Bond CAPI funds
2012 Bond Operating Fund
2012 Bond Project Funds
2012 Bonds Rate Stabillzation Fund
2012 Bond Pledged Revenue
Total Restricted cash accounts - debt service
Accounts receivable
Accounts Receivable - Customers
Vehicle Registration Fees - Receivable
Total Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable - other agencies
Accounts Receivable - Other Agencies
Due from Other Agencies
Total Accounts receivable - other agencies
Prepaid expenses
Prepaid Other Expense
Total Prepaid expenses
Total Current Assets:
Non Current Assets:
Capital assets, net
Furnishings & Equipment
Accumulated Depreciation-Furnishings & Equipment
Infrastructure & Utilities
Accumulated Depreciation-Infrastructure
Total Capital assets, net
Capital projects in progress
CIP - Planning & Coordination
CIP - Preliminary Engineering & Design
CIP - Environmental Studies
CIP - Mitigation
CIP - Right of Way
CIP - Utilities
CIP - Construction
CIP - Construction Engineering
CIP - Construction Management
CIP - Direct Legal Costs
CIP - Capitalized Interest

Balance Sheet
As of 7/31/2014
(In Whole Numbers)

Current Year

18,864
5,521,267
1,254
793,388
6,334,772

37,511

1
1,038,587
663,343
1,218,154
508,926
2,251,558
123,022
13,766,960
843,469

51,558

20,503,088

252,679

487,400

740,079

1,159,889

145,415

1,305,304

7,798

7,798

28,891,042

4,040,588
(319,322)
12,958,232

(323,556)
16,355,542

280,875
3,165,422
12,220,252
93,373
357,237
171,015
34,738,468
17,481
2,087,849
438,811
1,403,620



CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY

CIP - Indirect Administration and Overhead
Total Capital projects in progress
Other assets
Cther Assets
Total Other assets
Unamortized bond issue costs
2012 Unamortized Discount
Total Unamortized bond issue costs
Total Non Current Assets:
Total ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accounts Payable
Total Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
TxTag Customer Deposits
Toll Refunds from MSB
Total Accrued expenses
Payroll liabilities
Federal Tax Withholding
Payroll Tax Payable
Retirement Contribution Payable
Total Payroll liabilities
Deferred revenue
Deferred Revenue
Total Deferred revenue
Total Current Liabllities
Non Current Liabilities
Due to other agencies
Cameron County
Due to other Govts
Total Due to other agencies
Due to TxDot
Unien Pacific - West Rail Project
Union Pacific - Olmito Switchyard
TxDot FAA - South Padre Island
TxDot FAA - West Parkway
Total Due to TxDot
Long term bond payable
2010A Bonds Payable
2010A Unamortized Premium
20108 Bonds Payable
2012 Bands Payable
2012 Unamortized Premium
2014 Bonds Payable
2014 Bond Premium
2014 Bond Prepaid Insurance
Total Long term bond payable
Total Non Current Liabilities
Total LIABILITIES

As of 7/31/2014
(In Whole Numbers)

Current Year

71,100

55,045,504

39,392,799

39,392,799

120,545
120,545
110,914,389
139,805,431

3,030,644

3,030,644

310
377
687

1,790
2,225

976
4,990

1,528

1,528
3,037,849

250,000

2,014,428

2,264,428

25,178,814
9,844,058
7,893,870

2,244,589

45,161,331

12,245,000
70,327
15,535,000
40,000,000
4,309,435
5,000,000
155,424
{12,303)

77,302,884
124,728,642
127,766,491



CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY

Balance Sheet
As of 7/31/2014
{In Whole Numbers)
Current Year
NET POSITION
Beginning net position

7,812,522

Total Baginning net position 7,812,522
Changes in net position

4,226,418

Total Changes In net position 4,226,418
Total NET POSITION 12,038,940
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET PQSITION 139,805,431



CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures And Changes in Net Assets - Unposted Transactions Included In Report
From 7/1/2014 Through 7/31/2014

(In Whole Numbers)
Current Period Total Budget - Total Budget
Actual Current Year Actual Original Variance - Original
QOperating Revenues
Vehicle registration fees 253,830 2,477,253 2,800,000 {322,747)
Toll revenues 29,848 225,439 200,000 25,439
TRZ revenue i} 304,276 300,000 4,276
Other revenue 165,299 4,177,830 0 4,177,830
Total Operating Revenues 448,977 7,184,798 3,300,000 3,684,798
Operating Expenses
Personnel costs 19,880 344,845 571,800 226,955
Prafessional services 0 22,500 25,000 2,500
Contractual services 18,448 214,125 267,200 53,074
Debt Interest (7.462) 2,203,344 4,061,700 1,858,356
Project expenses 0 0 75,000 75,000
Advertising & marketing 2,799 16,927 40,000 23,073
Data processing 1,744 6,190 10,000 3,810
Dues & memberships 0 6,490 9,500 3,010
Education & training 0 2,578 11,000 8,422
Fiscal agent fees 5,000 9,016 15,000 5,984
Insurance 162 22,078 31,800 9,722
Office supplies 111 8,019 10,000 1,981
Road maintenance 559 17,202 150,000 132,798
Rent 1,966 7,863 11,000 3,137
Toll services 4,581 46,543 50,000 3,457
Travel 4,384 29,787 40,000 10,213
Utilities 1,131 7,858 15,000 7,142
Total Operating Expenses 53,302 2,965,367 5,394,000 2,428 633
Non Operating Revenue
Interest income 636 6,986 0 6,986
Total Non Operating Revenue 636 6,986 0 6,986
Changes in Net Assets 396,311 4,226,418 (2,094,000) 6,320,418
Net Assets Beginning of Year
11,642,628 7,812,522 0 7,812,522

Net Assets End of Year 12,038,940 12,038,860 (2,094,000) 14,132 860



CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY

Statement of Cash Flows
As of 7/31/2014
Current Period
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Vehicle Registration Fees 140,056.74
Receipts from Toll Revenues 29,847.98
Receipts from TRZ Revenue 0.00
Receipts from Grants and other Income 165,807.25
Payments to Vendors 106,808.19
Payments to Employees (19,841.76)

Total Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and related Financing Activities
Acquisitions of Property and Equipment
Payments on Interest
Acquisitions of Construction in Progress
Principal Payments on Bonds
Proceeds from TxDot FAA
Proceeds from Other Governments
Total Cash Flows from Capital and related Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents

Beginning Cash B Cash Equivalents

Ending Cash & Cash Equivalents

422,678.40

(4,915.00)
7,461.86
(1,595,374.51)
0.00
805,735.26
144,773.26

(642,320.13})
(219,641.73)

27,057,502.03

26,837,860.30



Capital Projects
South Padre Island 2nd Access
West Parkway Project
Outer Parkway
West Rail Relocation
Olmito Switchyard
SH 550
SH 32 (East Loop)
FM 803
General Brant
Port Isabel Access Rd
Total Capltal Projects

CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILETY AUTHORITY
Capital Projects in Progress - Unposted Transactions Included In Report

From 7/1/2014 Through 7/31/2014

{In Whole Numbers)
Total Budget
Current Period Current Year Total Budget - Variance -

Actual Actual Original Qriginal
444,384 3,028,422 5,200,000 2,171,578
0 980 0 (980)
0 26,542 2,500,000 2,473,458
17,781 2,221,535 5,000,000 2,778,465
0 144,773 0 (144,773)
1,053,997 20,847,094 34,450,000 13,602,906
24,364 230,012 225,000 {5,012)
8,081 79,566 35,000 (44,566)
(] 1,976 50,000 48,024
46,767 46,767 300,000 253,233
1,595,375 26,627,668 47,760,000 21,132,332




CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY

Capital Projects In Pragress - Unposted Transactions Included In Report
From 7/1/2014 Through 7/31/2014

(In Whole Numbers)
Total Budget
Current Period Current Year Total Budget - Variance -
Actual Actual QOriginal Original
Capital Projects
South Padre Isfand 2nd Access 2000
CAPITALIZED PROJECT COSTS 01CAP
CIP - Planning & Coordination 15100 0 122,311 1] (122,311)
CIP - Preliminary Engineering & 15110 3,512 72,310 1,500,000 1,427,690
Design
CIP - Environmental Studies 15120 440,872 2,823,335 3,500,000 676,665
CIP - Direct Legal Costs 15300 0 10,436 50,000 39,564
CIP - Direct Administration 15320 0 0 75,000 75,000
CIP - Indirect Administration and 15330 0 30 75,000 74,970
Overhead
Total South Padre Island 2nd Access 444,384 3,028,422 5,200,000 2,171,578
West Parkway Project 2025
CAPITALIZED PROJECT COSTS 01CAP
CIP - Direct Legal Costs 15300 1] 980 0 {980)
Total West Parkway Project 0 980 1] (980)
Outer Parkway 2050
CAPITALIZED PROJECT COSTS 01CAP
CIP - Planning & Coordination 15100 0 24,700 0 (24,700)
CIP - Preliminary Engineering & 15110 0 0 1,000,000 1,000,000
Design
CIP - Environmental Studies 15120 0 0 1,400,000 1,400,000
CIP - Direct Legal Costs 15300 0 1,842 20,000 18,158
CIP - Direct Administration 15320 0 0 40,000 40,000
CIP - Indirect Administration and 15330 0 0 40,000 40,000
Overhead
Tatal Quter Parkway 0 26,542 2,500,000 2,473,458
West Rail Relocation 2100
CAPITALIZED PROJECT COSTS 01CAP
CIP - Planning & Coordination 15100 0 12,500 0 (12,500)
CIP - Mitigation 15130 0 1,564 250,000 248,436
CIP - Right of Way 15200 3,972 356,581 250,000 (106,581)
CIP - Utilities 15210 0 0 350,000 350,000
CIP - Construction 15220 0 1,651,883 3,500,000 1,848,117
CIP - Construction Engineering 15230 1] 17,461 0 (17,481}
CIP - Construction Management 15240 12,611 173,823 500,000 326,177
CIP - Direct Legal Costs 15300 1,199 7,704 50,000 42,296
CIP - Direct Administration 15320 0 0 50,000 50,000
CIP - Indirect Administration and 15330 0 0 50,000 50,000
Overhead
Total West Rail Relocation 17,78t 2,221,535 5,000,000 2,778,465
Olmito Switchyard 2150
CAPITALIZED PROJECT COSTS 01CAP
CIP - Utilities 15210 1] 144,773 0 (144,773)
Total Olmito Switchyard o 144,773 1] (144,773)
SH 550 2200
CAPITALIZED PROJECT COSTS D1CAP
CIP - Planning & Coordination 15100 0 12,500 0 (12,500}
CIP - Mitigation 15130 0 33,975 0 (33,975)
CIP - Utilities 15210 0 0 500,000 500,000
CIP - Construction 15220 957,504 19,668,337 32,500,000 12,831,663
CIP - Construction Management 15240 96,493 1,095,620 1,300,000 204,380
CIP - Direct Legal Costs 15300 0 36,662 75,000 38,338
CIP - Direct Administration 15320 0 0 50,000 50,000
CIP - Indirect Administration and 15330 0 0 25,000 25,000
Overhead



CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY

Total SH 550

SH 32 (East Loop)

CAPITALIZED PROJECT COSTS
CIP - Planning & Coordination
CIP - Preliminary Engineering &
Pesign
CIP - Environmental Studies
CIP - Direct Legal Costs
CIP - Direct Administration
CIP - Indirect Administration and
Overhead

Total SH 32 (East Loop)

FM 803

CAPITALIZED PROIECT COSTS
CIP - Preliminary Engineering &
Design
CIP - Mitigation
CIP - Direct Legal Costs
CIP - Direct Administration
CIP - Indirect Administration and
Overhead

Total FM 803

General Brant

CAPITALIZED PROJECT COSTS
CIP - Preliminary Engineering &
Design
CIP - Environmental Studies
CIP ~ Direct Legal Costs
CIP - Direct Administration
CIP - Indirect Administration and
QOverhead

Total General Brant

Port Isabel Access Rd

CAPITALIZED PROJECT COSTS
CIP - Preliminary Engineering &
Design
CIP - Environmentat Studies
CIP - Direct Legal Costs
CIP - Direct Administration
CIP - Indirect Administration and
Overhead

Total Port Isabel Access Rd

Total Capital Projects

Capital Projects in Progress - Unposted Transactions Included In Report

2250
01CAP
15100
15110

15120
15300
15320
15330

2300
D1CAP
15110

15130
15300
15320
15330

2350
o1CcAP
15110

15120
15300
15320
15330

2400
01CAP
15110

15120
15300
15320
15330

From 7/1/2014 Through 7/31/2014

{In Whaole Numbers)
Total Budget
Current Period Current Year Total Budget - Variance -
Actual Actual Original Original

— 1053997 __20847094 __34450,000 __ 13,602,906
12,182 108,865 0 (108,865)

0 29,782 75,000 45,218

12,182 91,365 100,000 8,635

0 0 15,000 15,000

0 1] 17,500 17,500

0 0 17,500 17,500
24,364 230,012 225,000 (5,012)
0 21,732 10,000 (11,732)
8,081 57,834 0 {57,834}

0 0 5,000 5,000

0 0 10,000 10,000

0 0 10,000 10,000
8,081 79,566 35,000 (44,566)

0 1,976 12,500 10,524

0 0 12,500 12,500

0 0 5,000 5,000

0 0 10,000 10,000

0 0 10,000 10,000

0 1,976 50,000 48,024

o 0 100,000 100,000

46,767 46,767 150,000 103,233

0 0 10,000 10,000

0 0 20,000 20,000

0 0 20,000 20,000

46,767 46,767 300,000 253,233

1,595,375

26,627,668

47,760,000

21,132,332



CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
Toll Revenues and Expenditures
From 7/1/2014 Through 7/31/2014

Current Period YTD Budget - YTD Budget
Actual Current Year Actual Original Variance - Original
Toll Ravenues
Toll Revenue 29,847.98 225,439.27 200,000.00 25,439.27
Total Toll Revenues 29,847.98 225,435.27 200,000.00 25,439.27
Toll Expenditures
Toll services
Toll Services 4,580.82 46,543.16 50,000.00 3,456.84
Total Toll services 4,580.82 46,543.16 50,000.00 3,456.84
Toll maintenance
Maintenance - SH 550 559.15 17,201.60 150,000.00 132,798.40
Total Toll maintenance 559.15 17,201.60 150,000.00 132,798.40
Total Toli Expenditures 5,139.97 63,744.76 200,000.00 136,255.24
Net Change in Toll Services 24,708.01 161,694.51 0.00 161,694.51




4-C. CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE
ISSUANCE OF CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBIITY AUTHORITY
VEHICLE REGISTRATION FEE REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS IN AN
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $7,000,000; APPROVING AND DESIGNATING THE
PRICING COMMITTEE; APPROVING THE TRANSACTION DOCUMENTS
AND MAKING OTHER FINDINGS AND PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE
SUBJECT AND MATTERS INCIDENT THERETO



OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED SEPTEMBER 11, 2014

NEW ISSUE - Book-Entry-Only RATING:
S&P: “AA-"
(See “OTHER
INFORMATION — Rating™
herein.)

In the opinion of Co-Bond Counsel, under existing law, interest on the Bonds is excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes and is
not a specific preference item or included in a corporation’s adfusted current earnings for purposes of the alternative minimum tax. See "TAX
MATTERS — The Bonds — Tax Exemption " herein for a discussian of the opinion of Co-Bond Connsel.

THE BONDS HAVE BEEN DESIGNATED AS “QUALIFIED TAX-EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS” FOR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS.

§6,325,000
CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
VEHICLE REGISTRATION FEE REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS,
SERIES 2014

Enterest Accrues: Issuance Date Due: February 15, as shown on inside cover

AUTHORITY FOR ISSUANCE . . . The $6,325,000 Cameron County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Autherity” or “Issuer™) Vehicle Registration
Fee Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2014 (the “Bonds™) are being issued pursuant to Chapters 370 and 502, Texas Transponation Code, as
amended; Chapter 1207, Texas Governmeni Code, as nmended, on Indenture of Trust dated as of April 1, 2010, as amended (the *Indenture”) by and
between the Authority and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., Houston, Texas, as trusiee (the “Trustee™}; a resclution adopted by
the Board of Directors of the Authority on August 14, 2014 authonizing the issvance and delivery of the Bonds (the “Resolution™), and a pricing
certificate executed by certain officers of the Authority on September 11, 2014. See "THE BONDS- Authority for Issuance” herein. The Resolution
authorizes 1he issuance of the Bonds payable solely from a first lien on certain revenue, consisting of (i} all Pledged Vehicle Fees (as defined in the
Indenture and subject to the requirements for certain transfers set forth in the [ndenture}; (ii) all money, including investment eamings, deposited into
accounis or funds held by the Trustee and available for payment of debt service on the Bends pursuant to the Indenture; and (iii) any proceeds and
other money required 1o be deposited in such accounts and funds by the Indenture or the pravisions of a supplemental indenture (coliectively, the
“Pledged Revenue™). Pursuant to Chapler 1207, Texas Government Code, as amended, the Board delegated the authority 1o ceriain officers of the
Authority 1o complete 1the sale of the Bonds.

THE BONDS ARE SPECIAL LIMITED OBLIGATIONS OF THE AUTHORITY, PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE PLEDGED REVENUES
DESCRIBED IN THE INDENTURE. NO ASSURANCE CAN BE GIVEN THAT THE PLEDGED REVENUES WILL REMAIN SUFFICIENT
FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF OR INTEREST ON THE BONDS, AND TEXAS LAW LIMITS ANY ABILITY TO INCREASE
THE RATE OF PLEDGED REVENUES. SEE “RISK FACTORS™ HEREIN. THE BONDS DO NOT CONSTITUTE A GENERAL
OBLIGATION OF INDEBTEDNESS NOR A PLEDGE OF THE AD VALOREM TAXING POWER OR THE FULL FAITH AND CREDIT OF
CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS, THE STATE OF TEXAS, OR ANY OTHER POLITICAL SUBDIVISION, AGENCY OR GOVERNMENTAL
ENTITY OF THE STATE OF TEXAS. THE AUTHORITY WILL NOT MORTGAGE OR GRANT ANY SECURITY INTEREST IN THE
PROJECTS FINANCED WITH THE PROCEEDS OF THE BONDS OR ANY PORTION THEREQF TO SECURE PAYMENT OF THE BONDS.
SEE “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS" HEREIN. THE COUNTY IS LIMITED BY LAW IN ITS ABILITY TO INCREASE THE RATE OF
PLEDGED REVENUES.

PAYMENT TERMS . . . Inlercst on the Bonds will accrue from their date of initial delivery (the “1ssuance Date™) and will be paysble on February 15
and August 15 of each year, commencing February 15, 2015, and will be catculated on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months. The
definitive Bonds are initially issuable only 1o Cede & Co., the nominee of The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), New York, New York, pursuant
to the Book-Entry-Only System described herein.  Beneficin! ownership of the Bonds may be acquired in denominations of $5,000 or integral
multiples thereof. No physical delivery of the Bonds will be made to the purchasers thereof. Principal of and interest on the Bonds will be
payable by the Trustee, acling as the initia! Paying Agent/Registrar, 10 Cede & Co., which will make distribution of the amounts so paid to the
beneficial owners of the Bonds (see "THE BONDS - Book-Entry-Only Sysiem” herein).

PURPOSE . . . Proceeds from sale of the Bonds will be used ta (1) advance refund a portion of the Authority's vehicle registration fee revenue bonds
for debt service savings and (ii) pay costs of issuance of the Bonds (see *PLAN OF FINANCE").

STATED MATURITY SCHEDULE, INTEREST RATES, INITIAL YIELDS, CUSIP NUMBERS, AND REDEMPTION PROVISIONS
(On Inside Cover)

LEGALITY . .. The Bonds are offered for delivery when, as, and if issued and received by the original purchasers named below (the “Underwriters™),
and subject to the approving opinion of the Atomey General of the State of Texas and the legal opirion of Bracewell & Giuliani LLP, Houston,
Texas, and The Lucio Group PLLC, Brownsville, Texas, (collectively, “Co-Bond Counsel”). See Appendix D - "Form of Co-Bond Counsel
Opinions” herein, Cerain legal matters will be passed upon for the underwriters by their counsel, Winstead PC, San Antonio, Texas

DELIVERY . . . It is expected that the Bonds will be available for delivery through the services of DTC on or about October 9, 2014 (the “Issuance
Date™).

COMERICA SECURITIES STEPHENS INC.



MATURITY SCHEDULE, INTEREST RATES, INITIAL YIELDS AND CUSIP NUMBERS "

CUSIP® Prefix: 133353
$6,325,000
CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
VEHICLE REGISTRATION FEE REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS,

SERIES 2014
Maturity Principal Interest Initial  CUSIP?

(February 15) Amount Rate Yield'! Suffix
2016 $ 850,000 2.000%  0.450%  AP7
2017 865,000 2000%  0D.720%  AQS
2018 885,000 2000%  1.060%  AR3
2019 505,000 2000%  1.320% ASl
2020 520,000 2000%  1.630%  ATY
2021 940,000 2250%  1.930%  AU6
2022 960,000 2250%  170% AV4

{Interest to acerue from Jssuance Date)
No OrmioNAL REDEMPTION. . . The Bonds are riot subject to optional redemption prior to their stated maturity,

T ¥ield represents the imtial offering yield to the public which has been established by the Underwriters for offers to the public and which may
be subsequently changed by the Underwriters and is the sole responsibility of the Underwriters.

@ CUSIP numbers have been assigned 1o this issue by CUSIP Global Sources, managed by Standard & Poor's Services LLC on behalf of The
Amcrican Bankers Association, and are included solely for the convenience of the owners of the Bonds. Neither the Authority nor the
Underwnters shall be responsible for the selection or comectness of the CUSIP pumbers sel forth herein. The CUSIP numbers for a specific
maturity is subject to being changed afler the execution and delivery of the Bonds as a resull of various subsequent actions, including, but not
limited to, a refunding in whele or in pant of such maturity, or a5 n result of the procurement of secondary market portfolie insurance or other
similar enkancement by investors that 15 applicable 1o all or a portion of the Bonds.

[The remainder of this page imentionally left blank]



This Official Statement is not to be used in connection with an offer 10 sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy in any state in which such offer or
salicitation is nol authorized or in which the person moking such offer or solicitation is not qualified to do so or to any person to whom it is
unlawful to make such offer or solicitation. Any information and expressions of opinien herein contained are subject to change without notice,
and ncither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder will, under any circumstances, create any implication that there
has been no change in the affairs of the Authority or other matiers described herein since the date hereof. See “CONTINUING DISCLOSURE
OF INFORMATION" for a description of the Authority's underiaking to provide certain information on a continuing basis.

The prices and other terms respecting the offering and sale of the Bonds may be changed from time 10 time by the Underwriters afler the Bonds
are released for sale, and the Bonds may be offercd and sold at prices other than the initial offering prices, including sales to dealers who may sell
the Bonds into investment accounts.

The information and expressions of opinion contained herein ore subject to change without notice, and neither the defivery of this Official
Statement nor any sale made hereunder will, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the
Authority or other matters described.

IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING, THE UNDERWRITERS MAY OVER-ALLOT OR EFFECT TRANSACTIONS WHICH
STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICE OF THE BONDS AT A LEVEL ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT PREVAIL IN THE
OPEN MARKET. SUCH STABILIZING, IF COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME.

THE BONDS ARE EXEMPT FROM REGISTRATION WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION AND
CONSEQUENTLY HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED THEREWITH. THE REGISTRATION, QUALIFICATION, OR EXEMPTION OF
THE BONDS IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE SECURITIES LAW PROVISIONS OF THE JURISDICTIONS IN WHICH THESE
SECURITIES HAVE BEEN REGISTERED, QUALIFIED, OR EXEMPTED SHOULD NOT BE REGARDED AS A RECOMMENDATION
THEREOF.

None of the Authority, the Financial Advisor, nor the Underwriters make any representation or warranty with respect to the information
contained in this OfMicial Statement regarding The Depository Trust Company (DTC) or its Book-Entry-Only System.

The information set forth herein has been obtained from the Authority and other sources believed 1o be reliable, but such information is not
puaraniced as to accuracy or completeness and is not to be construed as the promise or guaraniee of the Financial Advisor or the
Undenwrilers. This Official Statement contains, in pan, estimates and matters of opinion which are not intended as statements of fact, and no
representalion is made as 1o the carreciness of such estimates and opinions, or that they will be realized.

The Undenvriters have provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Oficial Statement. The Undenwriters have reviewed the
information in this Officiol Statement in accordance with, and as pan of, their respective responsibilities 10 investors under the federal
securilies laws os applied to the facls and circumstances of this transaction, but the Underwriters do not gusrantce the sccuracy or
completeness of such information.

The agreements of the Autharity and others related to the Bonds are contained solely in the documents described herein. Neither this Official
Stetement nor any other statement made in connection with the offer or sale of the Bonds is to be construed as ap agreement with the
Underwriters of the Bonds. INVESTORS SHOULD READ THE ENTIRE OFFICIAL STATEMENT, INCLUDING ALL APPENDICES
ATTACHED HERETOQ, TO OBTAIN INFORMATION ESSENTIAL TO MAKING AN INFORMATED INVESTMENT DECISION.

The information contained in this Official Statement has been fumished by the Authority, DTC and other sources that are believed to be
reliable. No desler, broker, salesperson, or other person has been authorized by the Authority or the underwriter to give any information or to
muke any representations other than those made herein. Any such other information or representations must not be relied upon as having
been authorized. This Official Statement does nol constitute an offer to sell or solicitation of on offer to buy, nor shall there be any sale of the
Bonds by any person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such person to make such offer, solicitation or sale. The information and
expressions of opinions herein are subject 1o change without notice and neither the delivery of this document nor the sale of any of the Bonds
shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that the information herein is comect as of any lime subsequent Lo the dale hereof.

The Bonds wili nol be regisiered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or any stete securities law and will not be listed on any stock
or other securities exchange, Neilher the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any stale securities commission has passed upon the
accuracy or adequacy of this document. Any representation io the contrary is unlawful.

The yields a1 which the Bonds are offered 1o the public may vary from the initial reoffering yields on the inside cover page of this Official
Statement. In addition, the Undenwriters may allow concessions of discounts from the initial offering prices of the Bonds to dealers and
others. In connection wilh the offering of the Bonds, the Underwriters may effect transaclions that stabilize or maintain the market price of
the Bonds al a leve] above Lhat which might otherwise prevail in the open market. Such stabilizing, if commenced, may be discontinued at
any time.

e
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT SUMMARY

This summary is subject in all respects to the more complete information and definitions contained or incorporated in this Officiel Statement.
The offering of the Bonds to potential investors is made only by means of this entire Official Statement. No person is authorized to detach this
summary from this Official Statement or to otherwise use it without the entire Official Statement.

THE AUTHORITY cooconmniiiiisanne The Cameron County Regional Mobility Authority {the “Authority™) is a political subdivision of the State of
Texas located in Cameren County {the “County™). The Autharity was created in 2004 under Chapler 370 of
the Texas Transportation Code to finance, acquire, design, construct, operate, maintain, expand, or extend
toll or non-toll transportation projects.

THE COUNTY .comerrermrirrensersanions The County was created in 1848, ond is the southernmost county in Texas. The U.S. Census Bureau's 2010
population estimate for the County was 406,220, an increase of 21.2% over the 2000 population estimate of
335,227. The area of the County is approximately 1,276 square miles, comprising the Brownsville-
Harlingen-San Benito Metropolilan Area. The largest cily in the County is Brownsville, which serves as the
county seat.

THE BONDS.....oveerersnsscssnsnnaniens The Bonds are being issuved in the principal amount of $6,325,000 Vehicle Regisiration Fee Revenue
Refunding Bends, Series 2014 pursuant to the general [aws of the State of Texas, including Chaplers 370
and 502, Texas Transportation Code, as amended; Chapter 1207, Texas Government Code, as amended;
an Indenture of Trust doted os of April 1, 2010, as amended, {the “Indenture™) by and belween the
Authority and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., Houston, Texas, as trustee (the
“Trustee™); o resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of the Authority on Auvgust 14, 2014
authorizing the issuance and delivery of the Bonds (the “Resolution™); and o pricing certificate executed
by certain officers of the Authority (see "THE BONDS — Authonity for Issuance of the Bonds"). THE
BONDS DO NOT CONSTITUTE OBLIGATIONS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, CAMERON COUNTY,
TEXAS OR ANY OTHER POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF THE STATE OF TEXAS AND NEITHER
THE CREDIT NOR THE TAXING POWER OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, CAMERON COUNTY,
TEXAS OR ANY OTHER POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOQF 1S PLEDGED AS SECURITY FOR
THE PAYMENT OF THE BONDS (sec “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS"™ and “INVESTMENT
CONSIDERATIONS" herein). Pursuant to Chopter 1207, Texas Government Code, as amended, the Board
delegaled the aulhority to certain officers of the Authorily 1o complete the sale of the Bonds,

PAYMENT OF INTEREST ...cv.c... Interest on the Bonds will accrue from the Issuance Dale, and is initially payoble February 15, 2015, and each
August 15 and February 15 thereafler until maturity or prior redemption (see "THE BONDS - Description of
the Bonds").

SECURITY FOR THE

BONDS .evsversassreerssssrsssssssssssisnss The Bonds, together with any Parity Bonds or Additional Parity Bonds, are payable from the “Pledged

Revenues™, which consist of 100% of the remitted revenues received by the Autherity from the Pledged
Vehicle Fee imposed and collecied by the County and the Texes Department of Molor Vehicles on behalf
of the Authority pursuant to Section 502.402, Texas Transportation Code, and that certain Transporiation
Project and Pledge Agreement dated as of March 4, 2010 belween the Authority and the County, and
certgin other funds described in the Indentre (see “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS - Pledged

Revenues™).
No OPTIONAL REDEMPTION OF
THE BONDS. ...cotcinmcmrrmermeranns The Bonds are not subject o optiona! redemption prior 1o their stated maturity.
USE OF PROCEEDS OF THE
BONDS.......oonrrrmersisraresnin Proceeds from sale of the Bonds will be used to (i) odvance refund a portion of the Authority’s vehicle
registration fee revenue bonds for debt service savings and (i) pay costs of issuance of the Bonds (see
“PLAN OF FINANCE").

TAN EXEMPTION «.cvirceicneniincnene In the opinion of Co-Bond Counsel, under existing law, interest on the Bonds is excludable from gross
income for federnl income tax purposes and is not a specific preference item or included in a carporation’s
adjusted current ecammings for purposes of the altermative minimum tax (“TAX MATTERS -Tax
Exemption").

RATING ..o vernresineresssnsssssissin The Bonds have been raled “AA-" by Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC, a pan of McGraw-Hill

Financial {(*5&P"). The presentiy outsianding Parity Bonds are also rated “AA-" by S&P. See "OTHER
INFORMATION-Roting™.



Book-ENTRY-ONLY
SYSTEM

The definitive Bonds will be initially registered ond defivered only to Cede & Co., the nominee of DTC,
pursuant to the Book-Entry-Only System described herein. Beneficial ownership of the Bonds may be
ncquired in denominations of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof. No physical delivery of the Bonds will be
made to the owners thereol. Principal of and interest on the Bonds will be payable by the Paying
Apent/Registrar to Cede & Co., which will make distribution of the amounts so paid to the participating
members of DTC for subsequent payment to the beneficial owners of the Bonds (see "THE BONDS - Book-
Entry-Only System").

DELIVERY .onvrurcrasanssnnsrnseneasanns Delivery of the Bonds is anticipated on or about October 9, 2014.

[The remainder of this page imtentionally lefi blank]



AUTHORITY ADMINISTRATION

BoaRD OF DIRECTORS
Length of
Occupation Service Term Expires
David E. Allex Industrial 10 years 2016
Chairman Developer
Mark Esparza Advertising 3 years 2016
Business
Duvid N, Garza Aviation 10 years 2015
Fixed Based
Operator
Michae! Scaiel Financial 10 years 2015
Consultant
Ruben Gallegas, Ir, Education B years 2015
Agency
Owner
Nat Lopez Retired 2 years 2016
Insurance
Apent
Horacio Barrera Aliorney 2 years 2016
CONSULTANTS AND ADVISORS

Co-Bond Counsel

Cenified Public Accountants

Financial Advisor

For additional information regarding the County, please conlact:

Pele Sepulveda, Jr.

Execulive Director

Cameron County Regienal Mobility Authority
1390 West Expressway 83

San Benito, Texas 78586

(956) 982-54 14 - Phone

(956) 983-5099 - Fax

i

David Gordon

Estrada Hinojosa & Company, Inc.
1717 Main Street, Suite 4700
Dallas, Texas 75201

{214) 658-1670 - Phone

(214) 658-1671 - Fax

Bracewell & Giuliani LLP

Housion, Texas

The Lucio Group, PLLC

Brownsville, Texas

casssasrsanearsass LONG Chilton, LLP

Brownsville, Texas

Estrada Hinojosa & Company, Inc.

Dallas, Texas
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT
RELATING TO

56,325,000
CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
VEHICLE REGISTRATION FEE REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS,
SERIES 2014

INTRODUCTION

This Official Statement of the Cameron County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”) is provided to furnish certain information in
connection with the sale of its Vehicle Registration Fee Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2014 (the “Bands®), in the principal amount of
$6,325,000. The Bonds arc being issued are being issued pursuant 1o Chapters 370 and 502, Texas Transportation Code, as amended; Chapler
1207, Texas Gavemment Code, a5 amended; an Indenture of Trust dated as of April 1, 2010, as amended, {the “Indenture™) by and between the
Authority and The Bank ol New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., Houston, Texas, as trustee (the “Tiustee™); a resolulion adopted by the
Board of Directors of the Authority on August 14, 2014 authorizing the issuance and delivery of the Bonds (the “Resolution™); and a pricing
certificate executed by certain oflicers of the Authority. The Resolution nuthorizes the issuance of obligations payable from payments to be
received by the Authority pursuant to Chapters 502, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (see “THE BONDS - Authority for Issuance of
the Bonds™ herein). Pursuant to Chapter 1207, Texas Government Code, as amended, the Board delegated the authority 1o certain officers of
the Authority to complete the sale of the Bonds.

This Officiel Statement contains descriptions of the Bonds and certain other information sbout the Authority and its finances. All descriptions
of documents contained herein are only summaries and are qualified in their entirety by reference to each such document. Copies of such
documents may be oblained from the Authority's Financial Advisor, Estrada Hincjosa & Company, Inc., 1707 Main Street, Suite 4700, Dallas,
Texas 75201, upon payment of reasonable copying, mailing, and handling charges.

This Ofiicial Statement speaks only as to its date, and the information contained herein is subject to change. Capies of the this Official
Stalement will be deposited with the Municipal Securilics Rulemaking Board, 1900 Duke Street, Suite 600, Alexandris, Virginia 22314,

PLAN OF FINANCE

PURPOSE . . . The Bonds are being issued 10: (i) edvance refund certain outstanding obligations of the County (the “Refunded Obligations™),
a5 more particularly described in “SCHEDULE | - Schedule of Refunded Obligations™ and (is) pay the costs of issunnce relsted to the
Bonds. The refunding is being undertaken to realize debit service savings for the Authonity.

REFUNDED OQBLIGATIONS . . . The Refunded Obligations, and interest due thereon, are 1o be paid on the scheduled redemption date from
funds to be deposited with The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., Dallas, Texas as escrow agent (the “Escrow Agent”)
pursuant 1o an Escrow Agreement dated as of September I, 2014 (the “Escrow Agreement”) between the Authority and the Escrow Agenl.
The Resolution provides that the Authority will deposit certain proceeds of the sale of the Bonds along with other lawfully availeble funds
of the Authority with the Escrow Agent in the amounl necessary to accomplish the redemption, discharge and final payment of the
Refunded Obligntions. Such funds will be held by the Escrow Agent in an escrow fund (the “Escrow Fund™) isrevacably pledged to the
payment of principal of and interest on the Refunded Obligations and will be used 1o purchase certain obligations defined as “Escrowed
Securities” in the Escrow Agreement. Simuliancously with the issuance of the Bonds, the Authority will give irmevecable instructions to the
paying ogent for the Refunded Obligations and provide notice, if any, to the owners of the Refunded Obligations that the Refunded
Obligations will be redeemed prior 1o stated malurity on which date money will be made available 10 redeem the Refunded Obligations
from maney beld under the Escrow Agreement. The Indenture provides that “Escrowed Securilies™ means (a) direcl noncaliable obligations
of the United Stotes of America, including obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed by the United Stales of America, (b) noncailable
obligations of an agency or instrumentality of the United States of America, including obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed or
insured by the agency or instrumentality and that, on the date the Authority authorizes the defeasance by deposit of any or all of the Bonds
are rated as 1o investment quality by a nationzlly recognized investment rating firm not less than “AAA" or its equivalent, and (c)
noncallable obligations of a state or an agency or a county, municipality, or other political subdivision of a stote that have been refunded
and that, on the date the Authority authorizes the defeasance by deposit of any or all of the Bonds are rated as 1o investment quality by o
nationzlly recognized investmenl rating firm nol less than “AAA™ or ils equivalent.

Grant Thormton LLP, Minneapolis, Minnesota, will verify at the time of the delivery of the Bonds to the Underwriters the mathematical
asceuracy of the schedules that demonstrate thet the Escrowed Securitics 1o be acquired and held in the Escrow Fund under the Escrow
Agreement will mature and pay interest in such amounts which, together with uninvesied funds, if any, in the Escrow Fund, will be
sufficient to pay, when due, the principal of and interest on the Refunded Obligations. The Escrow Fund and the maturing principal of and
interest on the Escrowed Securities will not be available to pay the Bonds.

By the deposit of the Escrowed Securities and cash with the Escrow Agent pursuant to the Escrow Agreement, the Authority will have
effected the redemplion and defeesance of the Refunded Obligations in accordance with law. In the opinion of Co-Bond Counsel, in
reliance upon the report of Gram Thornton LLP, firm banking and financial arrangements will have been made for the discharge and final
payment of the Refunded Obligations pursuant to the Escrow Agreement, and, therefore. the Refunded Obligations will be deemed 1o be
fully paid and no longer outstanding excepl for the purpose of being paid from the Escrowed Securities and funds provided in the Escrow
Agreement {(see "APPENDIX C - Form of Co-Bond Counsel’s Opinion").



The Authority has covenanted in the Escrow Agreement to make timely deposits to the Escrow Fund of any additional amounis required to
pay the principal of and interest on the Refunded Obligations if, for any reason, the cash balances on deposit or scheduled to be on deposit
in the Escrow Fund are insufficient to make such payment.

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS. . . The proceeds of the Bonds and the issuer contribution will be applied as follows:

The Bonds
Sources of Funds:
Principal Amount § 6,325,000.00
Net Premium 137,091.60
issuer Contribution 33,581.25
Total Sources of Funds § 6,495672.85
Uses of Funds:
Deposit lo Escrow Fund $ 6,331,267.21
Costs of Issuance Including Underwriters' Discount 164,405.64
Total Uses of Funds § 649567285

THE BONDS

DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS . . . The Bonds mature on February 15 in each of the years and in the amounts shown on the inside cover page
hereof. Interest will accrue from the dote of initinl delivery (the “Essuance Daie™). Interest will be compuied on the basis of a 360-day year of
twelve 30-day months, and will be payable on February 15 and August 15, commencing February 15, 2015. The Bonds will be issued only in
fully registered form in any integral multiple of $5,000 for any one maturity and series and will be initially regisicred and delivered only to
Cede & Co., the nominee of The Depository Trust Company ("DTC*"), pursuant to the Book-Entry-Only System described herein. No physical
telivery of the Bonds will be made to the owners thercol. Principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds will be poyable by the
Paying Agent/Registror 10 Cede & Co., which will make distribution of the amounis so paid 1o the paricipating members of DTC for
subsequent payment to the beneficial owners of the Bonds. See "Book-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM" hereir.

AUTHORITY FOR ISSUANCE OF THE BoONDs . . . The Bonds are being issued are being issued pursuant 1o Chapters 370 and 502, Texas
Tronsportation Code, as amended; Chopter 1207, Texas Govemment Code, as amended; an Indenture of Trust dated as of April 1, 2010, as
amended, (the *“Indenturc™) by and between the Authority and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., Houston, Texas, as
trustee (the *“Trustee™): o resolution adopted by the Board of Direciors of the Authority on August 14, 2014 nuthorizing the issuance and
delivery of the Bonds (lhe “Resolution™); and a pricing certificate executed by certain officers of the Authority, THE BONDS DO NOT
CONSTITUTE OBLIGATIONS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS OR ANY OTHER POLITICAL
SUBDIVISION OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, AND NEITHER THE CREDIT NOR THE TAXING POWER OF THE STATE OF
TEXAS, CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS OR ANY OTHER POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF IS PLEDGED AS SECURITY
FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE BONDS. See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS" herein.

DEFEASANCE . . . The Indenture provides for the defeasance of the Bonds when the payment of the principal of the Bonds, plus interesl
thereon to the due dale thereof (whether such due daie be by reason of maturity, redemplion, or othenwise), is provided by irrevocably
depositing with the Paying Agent/Registrar (1) money sufficient to make such payment or cash in an amount equal 10 the principal amount
plus intcrest on such Bonds to the dalc of maturity or redemption, or money sufficicnt to make such payment or (2) pursvant lo an escrow
or trust ogreement, cash and / or investments in principal amounts ond maturities and bearing interest at roles sufficient {in the opinion of an
independent certified public accounlant} to provide for the timely payment of the principal amount plus interest thereon to the date of
maturity or redemption. The Indenture provides that “Investments™ means (a) direct noncallable obligations of the United States of
America, including obligations that are unconditionally guaraniced by the United Siales of Americe, (b) noncallable obligations of an
agency or instrumentalily of the United Slates of America, including obligalions that are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the
agency or instrumentolity and that, on the date the Authority suthorizes the defeasance by deposit of any or all of the Bonds are rated as lo
investment quality by a nationally recognized invesument rating firm not less than “AAA”™ or its equivalent, and (c) noncallable obligations
of a sinte or an agency or a county, municipality, or other political subdivision ol a state that have been refunded and that, on the date the
Authority outhorizes the defeasance by deposit of any or all of the Bonds are roted as 1o investment qualily by a nationally recognized
investment rating finm not less than “AAA" or its equivalent.

Upon such deposit a5 described above, such Bonds will no longer be regarded to be outstonding or wnpaid; provided, however, the Authority
has reserved the option, 10 be exercised al the time of the defeasance of the Bonds, to call for redemplion, al an earlier date, those Bonds which
have been defeased to their maturity date, if the Authority: {1) in the proceedings providing for the firm banking and financial amangements,
expressly reserves the right o call the Bonds for redemplion: (2) gives notice of the reservation of thal right to the owners of the Bonds
immediately following the making of the firm banking and financial arrangements; and {3) directs that notice of the reservation be included in
any redemplion nolices that it authorizes,



BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM

The Bonds will be available only in book-emtry form. Consequently, purchasers of awnership interests in the Bonds will nor receive
certificates represeniing their respeciive interests in the Bonds. This section describes how ownership of the Bonds is 1o be transferred and
how the principal of and interest on the Bonds are to be poid 10 and credited by The Depository Trust Company (“DTC"), New York, New
York, while the Bonds are registered in the name of Cede & Co., its nominee name. The information in this section concerning DTC and
the Book-Entry-Only System has been provided by DTC for use in disclosure documents such as this Qfficial Statement. The Authority, the
Authority's Financial Advisor and the Underwriters believe the source of such information (o be reliable, but 1ake no responsibility for the
gccuracy or compleleness thereof.

The Authority cannot and does not give any assurance that (1) DTC will distribute paymenis of debt service on the Bonds, or redemption or
other notices, to DTC Participanis {hereinafter defined), (2} DTC Participants or athers will distribute debt service payments paid to DTC
or its nominee (as the registered owner of the Bonds), or redemption or other notices, 1o the Beneficial Owners (hereingfier defined), or
that they will do so on a timely basis, or (3) DTC will serve and act in the manner described in this Official Statemeni. The current rules
applicable io DTC are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and the current procedures of DTC to be followed in dealing
with DTC Participanis are on file with DTC.

DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds. The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede
& Co. (DTC's partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an autherized representative of DTC. One fully-registered
Bond certificate will be issued for each maturity of the Bonds, each in the aggregaie principal amount of such maturity, and will be
deposited with DTC.

DTC, the world's largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company erganized under the New York Banking Law, a “banking
organizalion” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corparalion™ within
the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency™ registered pursvant 1o the provisions of Section 17A of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of Uniled States and non-United
States equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC’s participants
(“Direct Participants™} deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other
securilies lransactions in deposited securities, through clectronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct
Participants’ accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities centificates. Direct Participants include both United
States and non-United States securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and cenain other organizations.
DTC is a wholly owned subsidiory of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC™). DTCC is the holding company for DTC,
Nutional Securitics Clearing Corporation ond Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is
owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access (o the DTC system is also available to others such as both United Stetes ond non-
United Stotes securities brokers and dealers, benks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial
relationship with a Direct Panticipant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants™, DTC has & Standard & Poor's rating of "AA+."
The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchonge Commission. More information about DTC can
be found at www.dtcc.com.

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC sysiem must be made by or through Direct Panticipants, which will receive a credit for the Bonds on
DTC's records. The ownership interest of cach actual purchaser of the Bonds (“Beneficial Owner™) is in tum to be recorded on the Direct
or Indirect Participants’ records. Beneficial Owners will niot receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase, Beneficiol Owners
are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings,
from the Direct and Indirect Paricipant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction, Transfers of ownership interests
in the Bonds are to be accomplished by emries made on the books of Direct Participants and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of
Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Qwners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in the Bonds, except in the event
thal use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent Lransfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Panicipants with DTC are registered in the name of DTC's partnership
nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an asuthorized representative of DTC. The deposit of Bonds with DTC
and their registration in the name of Cede & Ca. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has
no knowledge of the aciual Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC's records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participanis to whose
accounts such Bands are crediled, which may or may not be the Bencficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain
responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direcl Participants 1o Indirect Participants, ond by
Direct Participants and Indirect Panticipants 1o Beneficiai Owners will be govemed by arrangements among them, subject Lo any statutory
or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish 1o take certain steps lo augment
the transmission lo them of notices of significant events with respect 1o the Bonds, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed
amendments to the Bond documents. For example, Beneficial Crwners of Bonds may wish to ascertain thal the nominee holding the Bonds
for their benefit has agreed 10 obtain and transmit notices to Benelicial Owners. In the altemative, Beneficial Cwners may wish o provide
their nomes and addresses to the regisirar and reques that copies of notices be provided directly to them.

Redemption notices will be sent 10 DTC. Il less than all of the Bends within a maturity are being redeemed, DTC's practice is 1o determine
by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such maturity to be redeemed.
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Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. {nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vole with respect 10 the Bonds unless authorized by a Direct
Participant in accordance with DTC's MMI Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the Authonty as
soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voling righis to those Direct Participants to
whose accounts the Bonds are credited on the recard date (identified in a listing atiached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be
requested by an gutharized representative of DTC. DTC's practice is lo credit Direct Participants’ accounts upon DTC's receipt of funds
and corresponding detail information from the Paying Agent/Registrar, on payable dale in accordance with their respective holdings shown
on DTC’s records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary praclices, as is
the case with securities held for the sceounts of customers in beerer form or registered in “sireet name,” and will be the responsibility of
such Participant and not of DTC (nor its nominee), the Paying Agent/Regisirar or the Authority, subject to any statutory or regulatory
requirements 25 may be in cffect from lime to time. Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments to Cede & Ce.
{or such other nomines as may be requesied by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the Autherity or Paying
Agent/Regisirar, disbursement of such poyments to Direct Porticipants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such
payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing ils services as securities depository with respect to the Bonds at any time by giving rezsonable notice to
the Authority and the Paying Agent/Registrar. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor deposilory is nol obtained, Bonds
are required 1o be printed and delivered.

Subject to DTC’s policies and guidelines, the Authority may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry transfers through DTC
{or & successor securilies depository). in that event, Bonds will be printed and delivered.

UsE oF CERTAIN TERMS IN OTHER SECTIONS OF THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT . . . In reading this Official Statement it should be understood
that while the Bonds are in the Book-Entry-Only System, references in other sections of this OfTicinl Statement 1o registered owners should be
read 1o include the person for which the Direct or Indirect Participant acquires an interest in the Bonds, but {1) all rights of ownership must be
exercised through DTC and the Book-Entry-Only System, and {2) except as described above, notices that are to be given to registered owners
under the Resolution will be given only to DTC.

PAVING AGENT/REGISTRAR. .. Pursuant lo the Paying Agent/Registrar Apreement, dated September [, 2014, the initinl Paying
Agent/Registrar for the Bonds is The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., Houston, Texas (the “Paying Agent/Regisirar™}. [n the
Resolulion, the Authonty retains the tight to replace the Paying AgenV/Registrur. The Authorily covenants to maintain and provide a Paying
Agent/Registrar ot all times until the Bonds are duly paid and any successor Paying Agent/Registrar shall be a commercial bank, trust
company, financiol institution or other entity duly qualified and legally authorized to serve ns and perform the duties and services of Paying
Agent/Registrar. Upon any change in the Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds, the Authorily ogrees o prompily cause o wrilien notice
thereofl Lo be sent Lo each registered owner of the Bonds by United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, which notice shall also give the
address of the new Paying Agent/Registrar,

In the event the Book-Entry-Only System should be discontinued, interest on the Bonds shall be paid to the regisiered owners appearing on the
registration books of the Paying Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the Record Date (defined below), and such interest shall be paid (i)
by check sent United States, first class postage prepaid to the address of the registered owner recorded in the registration books of the Paying
Agent/Registrar or (ii) by such ather method, acceptable to the Paying Agent/Regisirar. Principal of the Bonds will be paid 1o the registered
owners at their stated malurity or prior redemption upen presentation at the designated paymenviransfer office of the Paying Agent/Registrar.
IT a date for the payment of principal and/or interest on the Bonds shall be a Saturday, Sunday, a legal holiday, or 2 day when banking
institutions in the city where the designated payment/transfer office ol the Paying Agent/Registrar is located are authorized to close, then the
date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not such a day, and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect
as if made on the date payment was due.

TRANSFER, EXCHANGE AND REGISTRATION

In the evert the Book-Entry-Only System is disconlinued, the Bonds may be Lranslerred and re-registered on the registration books of the
Paying Agent/Registrar only upon presentation and surrender thereof 10 the Paying AgentV/Registrar a1 the designated corporate trust office. A
Bond also may be exchanged for a Bond of like maturity and interest and having a like aggregate principal amount or maturity amount, as the
case may be, upon presentation and surrender al the designated corporate trust office. All Bonds surrendered for transfer or exchange must be
endorsed for assignment by the exccution by the registered owner or his duly authorized agent of an assignment form on the Bonds or other
instruction of transfer acceplable to the Paying Agent/Registrar, Transfer and exchange of Bonds will be without expense or service charge te
the registered owner, except for any lax or other governmental charges required to be paid with respect to such transfer or exchange. A new
Bond or Bonds, in lieu of the Bond or Bonds being transferred or exchanged, will be delivered by the Paying Agent/Registrar to the registered
owner, a! the designated corporale wrust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar or by United States mail, first class, postage prepaid. To the
extent possible, new Bonds issued in an exchange or Lransfer of Bonds will be delivered to the registered owner or assignee of the registered
owner nol more than Lhree business days afler the receipt of the Bonds to be canceled in the exchanpe or transfer and the denominations of
$5.000 or any integral multiple thereof.



REPLACEMENT OF BONDS . . . [0 Bond is mutilated, the Paying Agent/Registrar will provide a replacement Bond in exchange. 172 Bond is
destroyed, lost or stolen, the Paying Agent/Registrar will provide a replacement Bond upon (1) filing by the registered owner with the Paying
AgenV/Registrar and the Authorily of evidence salisfactory to the Paying/Agent Registrar and the Authority of the circumstances of the
destruction, loss or thefl of the Bond and the authenticity of the registered owner's owncrship and (2) the fumishing to the Paying
Apent/Registrar security or indemnity as may be required to hold the Paying Agent/Registrar and the Authority harmless. All expenses and
charges associated with such indemnity and with the preparation, execution and delivery of a replacement Bond may be required to be bone by
the registered owner. The provisions of the Resolution relating to the replacement Bond are exclusive and, to the extent lawful, preclude all
other rights and remedies with respect 1o the replacement and payment of mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Bonds.

AMENDMENTS . . . The Authority may amend the Indenture without the consent of er notice to any registered owners in any manner not
detrimental 1o the interests of the registersd owners, including the curing of any ambiguity, inconsistency, or formal defect or omission therein.
In addition, the Authority may, with the written consent of the holders of & majority in aggrepate principal amount of the Bonds then
outstanding affected thereby, amend, add to, or rescind any of the provisions of the Indenture; except that, without the consent of the registered
owners of all of the Bonds affected, no such amendment, addition, or rescission may (1) change the date specified as the date on which the
principal of, maturity, or any installment of inierest on any Bond is due and payable, reduce the principal amount thereof, matucity, or the rate
of interest thereon, or the coin or currency in which any Bond or interest thereon is payable, or in any other way modify the terms of payment
of the principal of, maturity valuve, or interest on the Bonds, (2) give eny preference to any Bond over ony other Bond, or (3) reduce the
aggregale principel amount of Bonds required for consent to any amendment, addition, or waiver, See Appendix € — Summary of Certain
Provisions of Indenture of Trust.

RECORD DATE . . . The date for determining the person to whom the interest is payeble on the Bands on any intcrest payment date means the
first calendar day of the month next preceding the date that each interest poyment is due (the "Record Date”).

SPECIAL RECORD DATE FOR INTVEREST PAYMENT . . . In the event of a non-payment of interest on a scheduled payment date, and for 30
days thereafter, a new record daie for such interest payment (a “Special Record Dote”) will be established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if
and when funds for the payment of such interest have been received from the Authority. Notice of the Special Record Date and of the
scheduled payment date of the past due interest (the “Special Payment Date™ which must be 15 days ofter the Special Record Date) will be
sent no later than five business days prior 1o the Special Payment Date by United States mail, first class, postoge prepaid, to the address of
coch registered owner of a Bond appearing on the registration books of the Paying Agent/Registrar at the clase of business on the last
business day next preceding the date of mailing of such notice.

DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES . . . The Indenture establishes specific events of default with respect 1o the Bonds. 1T the Authority defaults in the
payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds when due; fails 10 deposit 10 the Debt Service Fund (defined herein) money sufficient
for the payment ol any principal and interest payment on the Bonds by no foter than the date when such payment becomes due and payable,
or defoults in the performance of any covenant contracted in the Indenture (and continues ofler the applicable cure peried), the Indenture
provides thal any registered owner is entilled lo seek a writ of mandamus from a court of proper jurisdiction requiring the Authority to
make such payment or deposit such funds or compel performance of such covenant or obligation. The issuance of a writ of mandamus may
be sought if there is no other available remedy at law to compe| performance in accordance with the Bonds or the Indenture and the
Authority"s obligations are not unceriain or disputed. The remedy of mandamus is controlled by equitable principles, so rests with the
discretion of the court, but may not be arbitrarily refused. There is no acceleration of maturity of the Bonds in the event of default and,
censequently, the remedy of mandamus may have (o be relied upon from yeor ta year, The Indenture provides for the appointment of a
receiver of the Pledged Revenues and the income, rents, profits and use thereof pending such proceeds with such powers as the court
muking such appointment shall confer. Any judgment against the Authority could not be enforced by direct levy and cxecution sgainst the
Authority’s property. Furthermaore, the Authorily is eligible to seek relief from its creditors under Chapler 9 of the U.S. Bankruptey Code
(“Chapter 9"). Chapier 9 includes an automatic stay pravision thal would prohibit, without Bankrupicy Court approval, the prasecution of
any other legal action by credilors or Bondholders of an entity which has sought protection under Chapter 9. Therefore, should the
Authority avail itseif of Chapter 9 prolection from creditors, the ability to enforce would be subject to the approval of the Bankruptcy Coun
(which could require that the action be heard in Bankruptey Courl insiead of other federal or state court); and the Bonkruptcy Code
provides for broad discretionary powers of a Bankruptcy Court in administering any proceeding brought before it. The opinion of Co-Bond
Counsel will note thot all opinions relative to the enforceability of the Bonds are qualified with respeci to the customary rights of debiors
relalive 1o their creditors.

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS

PLERGE UNDER THE INDENTURE . . . The Bonds, together with any outstanding Parity Bonds or Additional Parily Bonds, ore special limited
obligations of the Authority, payable solely from and secured solely by, o first lien on the Pledged Vehicle Fees and other monies, securilies,
and cerigin other funds described in the Indenture (the “Pledged Revenues™). The Piedged Revenues consist of 100%s of the revenues received
by the Authority from the Pledged Vehicle Fee, imposed by the Counly on behalf of the Authority pursuan to Section 502.402, Texas
Transportation Code (the “Act™). No assurance can be given that the Pledged Revenues will remain sufficient for the payment of the principal
or interest on the Bonds, The Bonds do not constitute general obligation indebtedness, a pledge of the ad valorem taxing pawer or the full faith
and credit of the Stote of Texas or the County, and are not obligations of the State of Texas, the County, or any other agency or other political
subdivision or entity of the Siate of Texas. The Authority will not mortgage or grant any security inlerest in the improvements financed with
the proceeds of the Bonds or any portion thereof ta secure payment of the Bonds. (See “RISK FACTORS” herein).




NONE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, THE COUNTY, OR ANY OTHER AGENCY OR POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF THE STATE OF
TEXAS OTHER THAN THE AUTHORITY IS OBLIGATED TO PAY THE PRINCIPAL OF OR INTEREST ON THE BONDS. THE
BONDS ARE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE PLEDGED REVENUES. NEITHER THE FULL FAITH AND CREDIT NOR TiE
TAXING POWER OF THE STATE OF TEXAS OR ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF 1S PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF
THE PRINCIPAL OF OR INTEREST ON THE BONDS, THE AUTHORITY DOES NOT HAVE TAXING POWER. THE INDENTURE
DOES NOT CREATE A MORTGAGE ON THE PROJECT.

NO RECOURSE UNDER THE BONDS SHALL BE HAD AGAINST ANY PAST, PRESENT, OR FUTURE OFFICER OF THE
AUTHORITY. THE BONDS MAY NEVER BE PAID IN WHOLE OR IN PART OUT OF ANY FUNDS OUT OF ANY OTHER
REVENUES OF THE AUTHORITY EXCEPT THOSE REVENUES PLEDGED BY THE INDENTURE.

Other than the pledge of the Pledged Revenues, the Authority has not mortgaged, assigned, or pledged any interest in any real or
personal property or improvements, including any interest on the project or any expansions or extensions thercto, as sceurity for
payment of the Bonds.

PLEDGED REVENUES . .. The Act authorizes certain counties to impose additional vehicle registration fees to fund transportation projects, The
Commissioners Court of the County by order imposed such additional fee, initially in the amount of $5.00 subsequently increased to $10.00,
effective January 1, 2009, for registering a vehicle in the County {the *“Vehicle Regisiration Fees™). Revenues of the Pledged Vehicle Fees (the
“Pledged Vehicle Fees™) are remitted by the County to the Authority to fund long-term transporiation projects pursuant to the Act and the
Transportation Project and Pledge Agreement (the “Project Agreement™). The Project Agreement was eniered into by the Authority and the
County effective as of March 4, 2010. Such fees are subject (o maximum amounts as authorized by the Act, which currently is $10.00. In
addition 1o the Pledged Vehicle Fees, Stale law authorizes the imposition of other vehicle regisiration fees, which are nol included in the
Pledged Vehicle Fees or Pledged Revenues,

The Pledged Vehicle Fees are collected primarily by the County’s Assessor-Collector along with other siale motor vehicle fees. Pledged
Vehicle Fees are remitted directly to the Authority. However, Pledged Vehicle Fees for vehicles registered directly with the Texas Department
of Motor Vehicles (“TDMV™) are collected by TDMY and remitted to the County for the benefit of the Authority pursuant to the Act. See
“THE VEHICLE REGISTRATION FEE - Vehicle Registration Fee" for additional information regarding such fees and collection procedures.
Although the County is authorized 1o rescind the Vehicle Registration Fees pursuant 1o the Act, the Amhority and the County have entered into
the Praject Agreement in order for the Authority 10 pledge the Pledged Vehicle Fees pursuant 1o Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, until
any Parity Bonds mature, are paid or are defeased.

For purpeses of this Official Stalement, the Authorily estimates thal the Pledged Revenues for fiseal year 2014 will be approximately
§2,900,000 (the “Estimated 2014 Pledged Revenues™), See “TABLE 3 - Pro ForMA DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE" for an illustrotion of debt
service coverage under different growth scenarios.

PERFECTION OF SECURITY . . . Chapter 1208, Texas Government Code, as amended, applies to the issuance of the Bonds and the pledge of
the proceeds ol the Pledged Vehicle Fees thereto, and such pledge is, thercfore, valid, cifective, and perfected, Should Texas low be
amended at any time while the Bonds or any Parity Bonds are outstanding and unpaid, the resuft of such amendment being that the pledge
of the Pledged Vehicle Fees is to be subject 10 the filing requirements of Chapter 9, Texns Business & Commerce Cede, in order 1o
preserve Lo the registered owners of the Bonds and any Parity Bonds a security interest in such pledge, the Authority agrees lo take such
megsures os it determines are reasonable and necessary 1o enable o filing of a security interest in said pledge to occur.

TRANSPORTATION PROJECT AND PLEDGE AGREEMENT . .. The Project Agreement provides that in consideration of the construction of certain
projects by the Authority, the County covenants and agrees 1o take al) steps necessary and outhorized under the Act and other applicable laws (o
continuously impose, collect and remit the Pledged Vehicle Fees as long as the Bonds and any Parity Bonds remain outstanding in the manner
and 1o the maximum extent permitted. The County further agrees that during the term of the Project Agreement, it wilt pay 1o the Authority
100% of the Pledged Vehicle Fees the County collects.

{The remainder of this page intentionally lefi blank]



FLow oF FUNDS . .. All Pledged Revenues received by the Trustee are 1o be deposited to the credit of a Pledged Revenve Fund maintained
by the Trustee for the benefit of the Bondholders. Amounts depoasited to the Pledged Revenue Fund are 1o be pledged and appropriated to
the following uses, in arder of the priorily shown:

Eirst; To the payment of fees and expenses which are due or payable to the Trustee and Paying AgentRegistrar;

Second: To the payment of the amounts required o be deposited in the Debt Service Fund for the payment of Debt
Service on the Bonds and any Parity Bonds as the same becomes due ond payable (see “SECURITY FOR BONDS- Monthly
Deposits™);

Third: To the payment of the amounts required 1o be deposited in the Debt Service Reserve Fund to establish and
maintain the Reserve Requirement in eccordance with the provisions of the Resolution and the Indenture; and

Eourth: To the extent required, 1o the Rebate Fund any amounts required to be deposiled therein; and

Fifth: Tao the Project Fund or the Surplus Fund for use by the Authority for any lawful purpose. Money can be
transferved from the Pledged Revenue Fund to either the Praject Fund or the Surplus Revenue Fund, at the discretion of
the Authority, provided that the deposits delailed above have been provided for or made.

For more delailed discussion of the application of monics deposited in the various funds and sccounts, and the purposes thercof, see
“APPENDIX C - SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF INDENTURE OF TRUST".

MoNTHLY DEPOSITS . .. On no less than a monthly basis, the Trustee will deposit funds from the Revenue Fund into the Debt Service Fund
in an amount equal to the sum of the following:

i approximalely one-sixth (1/6) of the inlerest coming due on the Parity Bonds on the next succeeding Interest Payment Date
established for the Parity Bonds (or, if the first Interest Payment Date is less than six (6) months awey, the Trustee will
allocate a pro rala mount from the Pledged Revenue Fund in an emeunt sufficient to total the interest payable on the
Parity Bonds in equal monthly installments);

(ii) approximately one-twelflh (1/12) of the principal coming due on the Parity Bonds on the next succeeding Principal
Installment Payment Date established for the Parity Bonds that is within twelve (12) months (or, if the first principal
payable on the Parity Bonds is less than twelve (12) months away, the Trustee will allocale 2 pro rata amount from the
Revenue Fund in an amount sufficient to lotal the principal payable on the Parity Bonds in equal monthly instaltments);

(iii) il a Mandatory Redemption Installment is due on the Parity Bonds within the next succeeding lwelve (12) months,
approximately one-twelRth (1/12) of the Mandatory Redemption Instzliment coming due on the next succeeding Sinking
Fund Installment payment date (o, if the First Sinking Fund Installment is kess than twelve (12) months away, the Trustee
shall ellocate a pro rata amount from the Revenue Fund in an amount sufficient to totl the first Sinking Fund Instatiment
on the Parily Bonds in equal monthly installments); and

{iv) such other amounts as moy be necessary to pay Debt Service due on the Parity Bonds on the next Interest Payment Date or
Principal Insinllment Payment Date.

In calculating such deposit to the Debt Service Fund, the Trustee must take into account any other funds previously depesited into the Debt
Service Fund including (a) ony accrued interest from the proceeds of the Parity Bonds, (b) any Direct Payments received, (¢} any investment
income realized by the Authority from the investment of emounts on deposit in the Debt Service Fund and {d) any other amounts on deposit.

DEBT SERVICE RESERVE FUND REQUIREMENTS . .. The Indenture provides that the Authority establish and maintain a Debt Service
Reserve Fund including one or more accounts or subaccounts for the accumulation and mointenance of an amount to pay the Debt Service
on the Parity Bonds and Additional Parity Bends, if issued, when other Pledged Revenues ore insufficient. Such amounts may also be
applied toward the payment of Debt Service in connection with a refunding or redemption of Parity Bonds and Additional Parity Bonds.
The Indenture provides thot the Reserve Requirement may be salisfied by cash or Reserve Fund Surety Policies as set forth in the
applicable Bond Resolutions.

Upon the issuance of the Bonds. and as and when Addilional Parity Bonds are delivered or incurred, the Reserve Requirement will be
increased, if required, to an amount equal to the lesser of either (i) £.25 times the Average Annual Debt Service for all Parity Bonds then
outstanding (after giving effect lo the issuance of the Additioncl Parity Bonds), or (ii} the Maximum Annual Debt Service (calculaled on a
fiscal year basis) for all Parity Bonds then outsianding (after giving ffect 10 the issuance of the Additional Parity Bonds), provided that the
issuance of Additional Parity Bonds will not cause the Reserve Requirement 10 increase by more than 10% of the stated principal amount
of such serics of bonds or 10 of the issue price of such series ol bonds if the series of bonds are issued with more than a de minimis
amount of original issue discount or premium. As of July 1. 2014, the amount deposiled in the Series 2010A Bonds account of the Debt
Service Reserve Fund (the “2010A Debt Service Reserve Account™ is 51.038,587 and the amount deposited in the Series 2010B Bonds
account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund (the “2010B Debit Service Reserve Account™) is 1,218,154, such amounts being greater than the
Reserve Requirement for all Parity Bonds including the Bonds. No additional deposit into the Debt Service Reserve Fund is required with
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the issuance of the Bonds. Concurrently with the issuance of the Bonds, the Trustee will designate the 2010A Debt Service Reserve
Account as the “2010A/2014 Debt Service Reserve Account™. (See “APPENDIX C - SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF
INDENTURE OF TRUST™).

ADDITIONAL PARITY BONDS . . . The Authority will have the right and power at any time and from time to time and in one or more series or
issues, to authorize, issue and deliver Additional Perity Bonds, in accordance with law, in any amounts, for any lawful purpose including the
refunding of any previously issued Parity Bonds of the Authority incurred in connection with the financing of projects of the Autherity. Such
Additional Parity Bonds, if and when authorized, issued and delivered in accordance with the Resolution, shall be secured by and made payable
equally and ratably on a parity with all then ocutstanding Parity Bonds, from a first lien on and pledge of the Pledged Revenues. No Additional
Parity Bands may be issued unless (i) the Additional Parity Bonds mature on, and interest is payable on, the Principal Instaliment Dates and
Interest Payment Dates; (ii) afier the issuance of such Additional Parity Bonds an amount equal to the Reserve Requirement on all Bonds then
Outsizanding is on deposit in the Debt Service Reserve Fund; (iii) the Authority is not in material defoult of a band resolution, the Indenture or
the Project Agreement; and (iv) the Authority has received a ceniificate of ils financial advisor or accountant which provides that Vehicle
Registration Fees over the preceding fiscal year or for a consecutive 12-month peried out of the 15-month period immediately preceding the
month in which the bond resolution outherizing Additional Parity Bonds is adopted, were ot least 150 percent of Maximum Annual Debt
Service, However, clause (iv) shall not apply to the issuance of Additional Parity Bonds for refunding purposes that will result in reducing the
Maximum Annual Debi Service requirements on the Parity Bonds. The Bonds will reduce the Maximum Annual Debt Service requirements on
the Parity Bonds.

Under the Resolution, the Authority has authorized an amendment to cerain provisions of the Indenture relating 1o “Additional Parity Bonds™
lo allow Additional Parity Bonds to be issued without satisfying clause {iv) abave if a nel present value savings in each year of the refunding is
demenstrated. Such amendment, while effective against the Bonds (and the holders thereof), will take effect once the Series 2010A Bonds and
the Series 2010B Bonds ore no longer Outstanding or once consent from o majority of the Owners of the Series 2010A Bonds and the Series
20108 Bonds is obtained, and will be binding to the Bonds (and Owners thereof), as well as future Additional Parity Bonds {and Owners
thereol) issued after the eflective date of the amendmenmt. {See “APPENDIX C - SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF
INDENTURE OF TRUST™).

SUBORDINATE OR INFERIOR LIEN OBLIGATIONS . . . The Authorily has the right 10 issuc debt obligations on a subordinate or inferior lien
basis to the Bonds and any Parity Bonds or to pledge the Pledged Revenues on a subordinale or inferior lien through an agreement. The
Authorily has entered into such an agreement with the County (the “550 Agreement™). Pursuant to the 550 Agreement, the County issued
its Revenue and Tax Bonds, Series 2012 (SH 550 Project) and Revenue and Tax Bonds, Series 2014 (SH 550 Project) (collectively, the
“SH 550 Bonds") in the combined principal amount of $45,000,000, o)l of which remain outstonding. The SH 550 Bonds were issued to
finance State Highway 550 which is a toll road developed, owned and operated by the Authority. The SH550 Bonds are secured by nei toll
revenues of State Highway 550, pass-through financing puyments from TxDOT, monies in various reserve funds pledged by the Authority,
ond by the Vehicle Registration Fee revenue on a len that is subordinate 1o the Bonds and any Parity Bonds (the “Subordinated Vchicle
Fee Revenues™). Under the 550 Agreement, the Authority is obligaied to deposit the Subordinaled Vehicle Fec Revenues into the SH 550
revenue fund; however, such obligation wilf cease on the date certain conditions are certified 10 have been met { but in any event, no sooner
than a1 two years afler the completion of State Highway 550) including fully funding cerlain funds required therein (the “550 Fund
Requirements™), satisfying all administrative paymem obligations 1o the County 1o such dale, and certification from an Authority
representative and a County representative that the Siate Highway 550 net toll revenues and the pass-through finoncing payments described
above are sufficient to pay Lhe debt service on the SH 550 Bands, satisfy the 550 Fund Requirements, and pay the administrative payments
due to the County pursuant 1o the 550 Agreement.

[The remainder of this page intentionally lefi blank]



THE VEHICLE REGISTRATION FEE

VEHICLE REGISTRATION FEE . . . Chapter 502, Texas Transportation Code (the “Motor Vehicle Act™), governs the registration of motor
vehicles in the State of Texas and establishes the emount and procedures for collection of fees associaled with regisiration. Namely, all non-
exempt vehicles must be registered. The Motor Vehicle Act permits four groups of exempt vehicles: (i) ambulances, law enforcement
vehicles, and fire engines and passenger cars and trucks owned by the United State Government, the State, or any of the State’s political
subdivisions; (ii) horseless carriages registered in the State prior to July 1, 1992; {iii) certain commercial vehicles qualifying for an epportioned
registration (based on miles traveled in two or more jurisdictions); and (iv) motor vehicles qualifying for a Purple Hear special interest grovp
license plate. Registration of motor vehicles is administered between the TDMV and eech county assessor-collector office. Each county
assessor-collector relains a certain portion of fees collected and remits the remaining amounts to the TDMV pursuant to the provisions of the
Molor Vehicle Act.

In addition to the standard motor vehicle registration fees, the Motor Vehicle Act provides certain additional fees, including an additional fee
not to exceed $10.00 for a road and bridge fund within any county opting to impose such fee. Additionally, the Act, specifically provides for a
separate and additional fee for counties (which includes the County) that (i) border the United Mexican States, have a papulation of more than
300,000, and in which the largest municipality has a population of less than 304,004 or (i) have a population of more than 1.5 million and are
coterminous with a regional mobility authority. The County authorized the imposition of the Pledged Vehicle Fee, which is suthorized by the
Act and represents a portion of the Pledged Revenues for the Bonds, and the County pledged in the Agreement to continue to impose such fee
until the maturity of the Bonds and any Parity Bonds. The County’s Assessor-Colleclor is required to cotlect the Pledged Vehicle Fees when
other registration fees are collected and remits Pledged Vehicle Fees direcily 10 the Authority. Pledged Vehicle Fees are remitted monthly 1o
the Authority after verification by the TDMYV and processing by the County. Onc hundred percent of the Pledged Vehicle Fees are remitted
althongh allowances are made for bad checks and duplicate regisirations.

TABLE 1- VEHICLE REGISTRATION AND YEHICLE REGISTRATION FEE HISTORY

Calendar Total # of VRF

Year Population "' Vehicles Registered 1 Fee ' Ravenue (Y

2004 365,815 216,378 $ - b -

2005 372,703 227,603 - -

2006 379,708 241,968 - -

2007 387210 253,695 - -

2008 392,136 257,648 5.00 1,167,545

2009 400,000 250,967 10.00 2,434,801

2010 396,371 268,988 10.00 2,572,803

2011 434,130 273,364 10.00 2,725,505

2012 406,220 282,092 10.00 2,800,570

2013 423 868 285,099 10.00 2,843,510
Average annual growth rate of regisiered vehicles 2004-2013: 3.13%
Compound annual growth rate ("CAGR") of registered vehicles 2004-2013; 311%

" S, Census and Cameron Counly estimates

) Source: Comeron County and TxDOT,

) pledged Vehicle Fees are remitted monthly afier approximately 6-8 weeks.

™ From January through July, 2014, the Authority s VRF revenue is approxmately
$£1,866,250 versus $1.809,130 for the same period in 2013.
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THE AUTHORITY
Regional Mability Authorities

In 2001, the 77th Texas Legislawre authorized the creatior of regional mobility authorities (“*RMAs™) for the purpese of constructing,
operating, and maintaining transporiation projects in the State. In 2003, the 78th Texas Legislature amended the enabling legistation for
RMAs which created Chapter 370 of the Texas Transportation Code (the “Act™} and significantly expanded the scope ond breadth of RMA
powers and outhorized activities to develop and finance a variety of multi-modal transportalion projects. Since then, the Act has
periodically been amended by the Texas Legislature to expand, modify, or clarify the law regarding powers, duties and operations of
RMAs. RMAs are political subdivisions of the State crealed by one or more counties or by certain cities in the State 1o finance, acquire,
design, construct, operate, maintain, expand, or extend toll or non-toll transporiction projects. Permitted projects include roadways,
passenger or freight rail, ferries, airports, pedestrian and bicycle facilities, intermodal hubs, certain border crossing inspection stations, air
quality improvement initiatives, public utility facilities, mass transit, parking structures and related facilities, automated conveyor belts for
the movement of freight, improvements located in a transportalion reinvestment 2one, and projects listed in the Siate Implementation Plan
(air quality plan), the Unified Transportation Program, or the applicable metropolitan planning organization long-range plan.

Crealion of the Cameron County Regional Mobility Authority

On June 22, 2004, the Cameron Counly Commissioners Court authorized the County Judge to file a petition to the Texas Transportation
Commission 1o create an RMA for the Comeron County arca. The petition was approved by the Texas Trensportation Cemmission on
September 30, 2004. The Commissioners Court formally approved the conditions sel forth by the Texas Transportation Commission for the
Authority and subsequently appeinted the Directors of the Autharity. Shortly aflerwards, Governor Rick Perry appointed David E. Allex of
Harlingen as the Chairman of the Authority.

The Authority held their first ofTicial meeting on February 25, 2005. The purpose of the Authority is to provide the area with an opportunity 1o
significantly accelerate needed transporiation projects and have a local entity in place that will make mobility decisions that will benefit the
cemmunity, while enhancing the economic vitality and quality of life for the residents in the County and surrounding the Lower Rio Grande
Valley. It is important that transportation infrastructure improvements continue 1o keep up with the population growth that this portion of the
State of Texas is experiencing.

The Authority assists the citizens of the County and surounding Lower Rio Grande Valley area by providing congestion refief, iraffic safety,
enhanced mobility and viable altemative routes in this era of time conservation. The Authority works with the numerous cities in the County
ond the State of Tamaulipas, Mexico, lo construct projecis at a much more rapid pace. The Authority is working very closely with the Texas
Department ol Transportation (“TxDOT™) on several on-going projects in the County. The initia! projects that were submitied with the
Authority application to the Texas Transportation Commission were the West Parkway project in Brownsville and the second causeway in the
Port [sabel/South Padre Island area. Additional projects have now been added including the West Rail Relocation project which was recently
completed and the SH 550 project which is nearly complele and will open in the fall of 2014, The Authority issued bonds in 2010 secured by
Pledged Revenues, which financed portions of Authority projects, including improvements relating 1o Interstate 69, US Highway 77, US
Highway 281, S. Padre Islend 2™ Access, East Loop, N. Rail/Glmito Switchyard/OuterParkway, Gen. Brandt Rd and the Port of Brownsville
enlrunce,

Board of Directors

The Authorily is gaverned by 2 seven member Board of Directors (the “Board™), with six members appointed by the County, and the presiding
officer appaointed by Lhe Governor. Governor Rick Perry appointed David E. Allex as the presiding Chairman of the Board. The Board has the
ultimate dectsion-making authority and responsibility for directing and controlling the affairs of the Authority. The Board is alse responsible
for the establishment of policies that direct operational management. The Board represents a spectrum of business and civic Jeaders in the
County. The Board meels regularly to review, discuss, and determine policies affecting the operation and maintenance of the Authority, The
names of each director and their occupations are described on Page vii.

[The remainder of this page intentionally lefi blank}



TABLE 4 — CONDENSED OPERATING STATEMENTS OF THE AUTHORITY

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30,

Revenues 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Interlocal Revenue $ - s - - 5 - 3 -
Pledged Vehicle Fees 2,477,253 2,843,510 2,800,570 2,725,505 2,567,459
Toll Income 225,439 170,74% 207,478 68,787 -
Interest Income 6,987 - - - -
Other Operating Income 482,106 120,000 - - -

Total Revenues 5 3,191,785 $ 3,134,259 3,008,048 $ 2,794,292 $ 2,567,459
Expenditures
Professional Services s 22,500 5 103,618 146,311 s 451,525 S 577,380
Engincering Expense - - - - 228,690
Contractual Services 214,126 447,350 794,164 364,813 439,740
Advertising 16,927 8,921 23,971 14,669 12,715
Education and Training 2,578 - - - -
M iscellaneous 421,543 534,397 137,676 61,218 83
OfTice Supplies 8,019 7,882 14,040 5,330 788
Travel 29,787 52,178 15,095 62,166 35,646
Toll Services 46,543 103,468 32,093 38,602 -
Land Acqusition - - - - 25,506
Debi Interest - - - 569,634 379,289
Project Expensed - 3,445,201 - - -

Total Expenditures $ 762,023 $ 4,703,015 [,183,350 § 1,567,957 $ 1,703,837
Excess {Deficiency ) of Revenues

Over Expenditures § 2,429,762 $ (1,568,756} 1,824,698 $ 1,226,335 3 863,622
Non-Operating Income (Loss) £ 1,796,656 $ 5,061,736 (1,243,249) § 21,253 b3 6,821
Changes in Net Assels $ 4226418 $ 3,492,980 581,449 $ 1,247,588 b3 870,443
Net Assels - beginning 7.812,523 4,319,543 4,017,118 2,769,530 1,557,224
Prior Period Adjustment - - (279,024) - 215,975
Total net ossets - ending $ 12,038,941 $ 7,812,523 4,319,543 5 4017118 $ 2,643,642

Sowrce Awmthonity's Comprehensive Annwal Financial Reperts and the Authority

""Through July, 2014 Unaudited
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INVESTMENT POLICIES

The Autherity invests its funds in investments authorized by Texas law in accordance with investment policies approved by the Board of
Directors of the Authority. Both staie law and the Authority's investment policies are subject to change.

LEGAL INVESTMENTS . . . Under State law, particularly Chopter 2256, Texas Government Code, as amended, the Authority is suthorized to
invest its funds and funds held by the Trustee in (1) obligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities, including letters
of credit; (2) direct obligations of the State or its agencies and instrumentalities; {3) collateralized mortgage obligations directly issued by a
federal egency ar instrumeniality of the United Slales, the underlying sccurity for which is guaranteed by an agency or instrumentality of
the United States; {4} other obligations, the principel and interest of which is guaranteed or insured by or backed by the full faith and credit
of, the State or the United Stntes or their respeclive agencies and instrumentalitics, including obligations that are fully guaranteed or insured
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or by the explicit full faith and credit of the United States; {5) obligaticns of states, agencics,
counties, cities, and other politica) subdivisions of any state rated as (o investment quality by a nationally-recognized investment raling firm
not less than “A™ or its equivalent; (6) bonds issued, assumed or guaranieed by the State of Israel; (7) centificates of deposit or share
certificates that are issued by o depository institution that has its main branch office in the Stale and are guaranieed or insured by the
Federal Deposit Inserance Corporation or the National Credit Union Share Insurance Fund, or their successors, or are secured by
obligations described in clauses (1) through (6) above or in any other manner and amount provided by law Tor Authority deposits, (8) fully
collateralized repurchase agreements that: {a) have a defined termination date, (b} are secured by a combination of cash and obligations
described in clause (1) above, (c) require the securities being purchascd by the Authority or cash held by the Authority to be pledged to the
Authority, held in the Authority’s name, and deposited at the time the investment is made with the Authority or with a third party selected
and approved by the Authorily, and (d) are placed through a primary government securities dealer or a financial institution doing business
in the Stale, (9) certain bankers' acceptances with a stated maturity of 270 days or less, if the short-term obligations of the accepling bank
or its parent are rated ot least “A-1" or “P-1" or the equivalent by ot least one nationally-recognized credit rating agency, (10} commercial
paper with a slated maturity of 270 days or less thal is rated at least “A-1" or “P-1" or the equivalent by either (a) two nationally-
recognized credit rating agencics or (b) one nationally-recognized credit rating agency if the paper is fully secured by an irrevacable letler
of credit issued by a United States or state bank, (11) no-lood money market mutual funds registered with and regulated by the United
States Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) that have o dollar weighted average siated malturity of 90 days or less and include
in their investment objectives the maintenance of a stable nel assel value of $1 for each share, and (12) no-load mutual funds registered
with the SEC that have an average weighted maturity of less than two years, invest exclusively in abligations described in this paragraph,
and are continuously rated a3 to invesiment quality by at least one naotionalty-recognized invesiment roting firm of not less than “AAA” or
its equivalent. In addilion Lo the authority to invest funds in certificates ol deposit as described in clause {7) above, an investment in
cerlificates of deposit made in accordance with the following conditions is an authorized invesiment under Stale law: (a) the funds are
invesled by the Autharity through a broker that has its main oflTice or a branch office in the State and js selected from 2 list sdopted by the
invesling enlity as required by Stnle law or a depository institulion that has its main office or a branch office in the State and that is selecied
by the Authority, (b) the selecied broker or depaository institution arranges for the deposit of the funds in centificates of deposil in one or
more federally insured depository institutions, wherever located, for the account of the Authority, (c) the full amount of the principal and
acerued interest of each of the certificotes of deposil is insured by the United States or an instrumentality of the United States, and (d) the
Authority nppaoints the selected depasilory institution as custodian for the Autherity with respect to the cenificates of deposit issued for the
account of the Awhority. In addition, bond proceeds may be invested under State low in guaranteed investment contracts that have o
defined termination dote and are secured by obligations, including fetters of credit, of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalitics
in an amount at least equal to the amount of bond proceeds invested under such contrac, other than the prohibited obligations described in
the next succeeding paragraph. Additionally, the State law provides that a securilies lending program is on astherized investment for the
Autherity if (2} the value of the securities loaned under the program is fully collateralized (including accrued income), {b) a loan made
under the progrom provides that it may be terminated ot any time, and (c) certain other requirements of Siate law are satisfied, including,
but not limited to, that the loan made under the program is secured by obligations described in clauses (1) through (6) obove, centain letiers
of credit or certain other obligations pursuant 1o State law.,

The Authority may invest in such obligotions direcily or through government investment pools that invest solely in such obligations (and
money market mutual funds, to the exient permitted by and consistent with State law) provided that the pools are raled no Jower than
“AAA" or “AAA-m" or on equivalent by ot least one nationally-recognized rating service. Under State Taw, the Authority may also
contract with an invesiment management firm that is registered under either the lnvestment Advisers Act of 1940 (15 U.5.C. Sections 80b-
i et seq.} or the Stale Securities Boand to provide for the invesiment and management of its public funds or other funds under its control for
o lerm up (0 two years, but the Authority retgins ultimale responsibility as fiduciary of its assets. In order to renew or extend such a
contract, the Authority must do so by order, ordinance, or resolution. State law specifically prohibits the Authority from investing in: (1)
gbligations whose payment represents the coupon payments ot the outstanding principal balance of the underlying morgage-backed
security collateral and pays no principal; (2) obligations whose paymeni represents the principal stream of cash flow from the underlying
mortgage-backed security collateral and bears no interest; (3) collsteralized mortgage obligations that have a stated {inal malurity of greater
than 10 yeors; and (4} collateralized morigage obligations the interest rate of which is determined by an index that adjusis epposite to the
changes in a markel index.

INVESTMENT POLICIES , .. The Authority is required to invest its funds under written investment policies that primerily emphasize safety of
principal and liquidity; that address investment diversification, yield, malurity, and the quality and capability of investmeni management;
thal include a list ol authorized investments for Amhority funds, the maximum allowable staled malurity of any individual investment and
the maximum average dollar-weighied maturity allowed for pocled fund groups; methods o monitor the market price of investments
acquired with public funds; a requirement for settlement of all trensactions, except investment pool funds and mutual funds, on a delivery
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versus payment basis; and procedures o moniter rating changes in invesiments acquired with public funds and the liquidation of such
investments consistent with State law. All Authority funds must be invested consistent with a formally adopted investment strategy that
specifically addresses each fund’s investment. Each investmeni strategy will describe its objectives concerning: (1) suitability of
investment type, (2) preservation and safety of principal, (3) liquidity, (4} marketability of each investment, (5) diversification of the
portfolio, and (6) yicld.

The Authority's investments must be made “with judgment and care, under prevailing circumstances, that o person of prudence, discretion,
and intelligence would exercise in the management of the person’s own affuirs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the
probable safety of capital and the probable income to be derived.” At least quarterly the Authority’s investment officers must submit an
investment report to the Board detailing: (1) the investment position of the Authority, (2) that all investment officers jointly prepared and
signed the report, (3) the beginning market value, and any additions and changes to market value, the ending value of each pooled fund
group and fully occrued intercst for the reporting period, (4) the book value and market value of each separately listed assel at the
beginning and end of the reporting period, (5) the maturity date of each scparately invested asset, (6) the account or fund or pooled fund
group for which each individual investment was acquired, and (7) the compliance of the investment portfelio as it relotes to: {a) adopted
investment strategies and (b) State law. No person may invest Authority funds without express writlen outhorization from the Authority.

The Authority is additionally required to: (1) annually revicw its adopted policies and sirategies; (2) require any investment officers with
personal business relationships or family relationships with firms secking to sell securities to the Authority to disclose the relationship and
file a stalement with the Texas Ethics Commission and the Authority; (3) require the registered principal of firms seeking to sell securitics
to the Authority to: {a) receive and review the Authority’s investment policy, (b) acknowledge that reasonable controls and procedures have
been implemenied to preclude imprudent invesiment activities, and (c) deliver a wrilten statement aliesting to these requirements; (4) in
conjunction with its annual financial audit, perform 2 compliance audit of the management controls on investments and adherence to the
Authority's investment policy; (5} resirict reverse repurchase agreements to not more than 90 days and restrict the investment of reverse
repurchase agreement finds 10 no greater than the term of the reverse repurchase agreement; (6) restrict the investment in no-load mutusl
funds in the aggregote to no more than 15% of the Authority’s monthly average fund balance, excluding bond proceeds and reserves and
other funds held for debt service; and (7) provide specilic investment trnining for the investment officer.

The Authority has adopled an invesiment policy that is generally consistent with the forcgoing requirements of State law; however, such
investment policy currently contains centain additional restrictions that are not currently required by Stale law, such as, it does not allow for
the investment in bonds issued, assumed or puaranieed by the Siate of Israel. The Aulhority’s investment pelicy is subject to change ot any
time. Copies of the Authority's investment policy are available for examination ot the offices ol the Authority.

TABLE 5- CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Al July 31, 2014, the carrying amount of the Autharity’s cash and cash equivalents was $26,837,860, of which $3,429,010 was held a1 BNY
Mellon for the Series 2010 Bonds, $17,036,567 was held in trusi accounts at BNY Mellon for the Series 2012 SH 550 Bonds issued by the
County on behalf of the Authority, and the remainder was in business interest checking accounts.

[The remainder of this page intentionally lefi blank]



TAX MATTERS

Tax EXEMPTION . . . In the opinion of Co-Bond Counsel, under existing law (i) interest on the Bonds is excludable fom gross income for
federal income tax purposes and {ii) interest on the Bonds is not {(A) a specific preference item subject to the altemative minimum tax on
individuals and corporations or (B} included in a corporation’s adjusted current eamings for purpases of the sltemative minimum tax.

The Code imposes a number of requirements that must be satisfied for interest on state or local obligations, such as the Bonds, to be excludable
from gross income for federal income tax purposes. These requirements include limitotions on the use of bond proceeds and the source of
repayment of bonds, limitations on the invesiment of bond proceeds prior to expenditure, a requirement that excess arbilrage eamed on the
invesiment of bond proceeds be paid periodically to the United Siates and a requirement that the issuer file an information report with the
Intemal Revenue Service (the “Service™). The Authority has covenanted in the Resolution that it will comply with these requirements.

Co-Bond Counsel's opinion will assume continuing compliance with the covenants of the Resolution penaining to those sections of the Code
thot affect the exclusion from gross income of interest on the Bonds for federal income tax purposes and, in addition, will rely on
representations by the Authority , the Authority’s Financial Advisor and the Underwriters with respect lo matters solely within the knowledge
of the Authority, the Authority’s Financinl Advisor and the Underwriters, respectively, which Co-Bond Counsel has not independently verified,
If the Authority fails to comply with the covenants in the Resolution or if the foregeing representations are determined to be inaccurate or
incomplete, interest on the Bonds could become includable in gross income from the date of delivery of the Bonds, regardless of the date on
which the event causing such inclusion occurs,

Excepl as stated abeve, Co-Bond Counsel will express no opinion as to any federal, state or local tax consequences resulting from the receipl or
accrual of interest on, or sequisition, ownership or disposition of, the Bonds,

Co-Bond Counsel’s opinions are based on existing law, which is subject o change. Such opinions are further based on Co-Bond Counsel's
knowledge of facts as of the date thereol. Co-Bond Counsel assumes no duty to update or supplement its opinions 10 reflect any facts or
circumstances that may thereafter come to Co-Bond Counsel's attention or to reflect any changes in any law that may thereafter occur or
become effective. Moreover, Co-Bond Counsel’s opinions are not a guarantee of result and are not binding on the Service; rather, such
opinions represent Co-Bond Counsel’s legal judgment based upon its review of existing low and in reliance upon the representations and
covenants referenced above that it deems relevant 10 such opinions. The Service has an ongoing audit program to determine compliance with
rules that relate 1o whether interest on state or local obligations is includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes. No assurance
can be given as to whether ar not the Service will commence an audit of the Bonds. If an audit is commenced, in accordance with ils current
published procedures the Service is likely to treat the Authorily as the taxpayer and the Owners may nol have a right le pasticipate in such
oudil. Public awareness ol any future audit of the Bonds could adversely affect the value and liquidity of the Bonds regardless of the ultimate
outcome of the audit.

PURCHASE OF TAX-EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS BY FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS . . . Section 265(z) of the Code provides, in general, that a deduction
for interest on indebledness incurmred to acquire or carry lax-exempt obligations is disallowed, Section 265(b) of the Code provides o specific
complete disallowance ofany deduction by o financia! institution of its pro rata inlerest expense 1o reflect such financial institution's
investment in tax-exempt obligations acquired after August 7, 1986. Tn addition, Section 265(b} also provides an exception for fnancial
institutions for tax-exempt obligations that are properly designated by an issuer as “qualified 1ax-exempt obligations.”

The Bonds have been designated s “qualified lax-exempt obligntions” based, in part, on the Authority’s representotion that the amount of the
Bonds, when added to the amount of all other tax-exempt obligations (not including private activity bonds other than “qualified 501(c)(3)
bonds” or any obligations issued lo currently refund any obligation 10 the extent the amount of the refunding obligation did not exceed the
outstanding amount of the refinded obligation} issued or reasonably onticipated to be issued by or on behalf of the Authority during 2014 is not
expected 1o exceed $10,000,000. Further, the Authority and entilies aggregated with the Authority under the Code have not designated more
than $10,000,000 in “qualified 12x-exempt obligations” {including the Bonds) during 2014.

Notwithstanding the designation of the Bonds as “qualified 1ax-exempt obligations” under this exception, financial institulions acquiring the
Bonds will be subject 1o & 2095 disallowance ol allocable interest expense.

ADDITIONAL FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS
Colfateral Tax Conseguences

Praspective purchasers of the Bonds should be aware that the ownership of lax-exempl obligalions may result in collateral federal income tax
cansequences 1o financial institutions, life insurance and property and casualty insurence companies, certain S corporations with Subchapter C
eamnings and profits, individual recipients of Social Security or Railroad Retirement benefits, 1axpayers who may be deemed to have incurred
or continued indebtedness to purchase or carry tnx-exempt obligations, low and middle income taxpayers otherwise qualifying for the health
insurance premium essistance credit, ond individuals othcrwise qualifying for the cumed income credit. In addition, ceripin foreign
corporations doing business in the Uniled Slates may be subject to the “branch profits 1ax™ on their effectively connected eamings and profits,
including tax-exempl interest such es interest on the Bonds. These calegories of prospective purchasers should consult their own tax advisors
as fo the applicability of these consequences. Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should also be aware that, under the Code, \1axpayers are
required to report on their retums Lthe amount of lax-exempt interest, such as interest on the Bonds, received or accrued during the year.
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Tax Accounting Treatment of Original Issue Premium

The issue price of all of the Bonds exceeds the stated redemption price payable at maturity of such Bonds. Such Bonds (the “Premium Bonds™}
are considered for federal income tax purposes to have “bond premium” equal to the amount of such excess. The basis of a Premium Bond in
the hands of an initial owner is reduced by the amount of such excess that is amortized during the period such initial owner holds such
Premium Bond in determining gain or loss for federal income tax purposes. This reduction in basis will increase the amount of any gain or
decrease the amount of any loss recognized for federal income tax purposes on the sale or other taxable disposition of a Premiurm Bond by the
initial owner. No comesponding deduction is allowed for federal income tax purposes for the reduction in basis resulling from amortizable
bond premium. The amount of bond premium on a Premium Bond that is amonizable each year {or shorter period in the event of & sale or
disposition of 2 Premium Bond) is determined using the yield to maturity on the Premium Bond based on the initia) offering price of such
Bond.

The fedem! income tax consequences of the purchase, ownership and redemption, sale or other disposition of Premium Bonds that are not
purchased in the initiol offering ot the initial offering price may be determined according to rules that differ from those described abave. All
owners of Premium Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the determination for federa), state, and local income tax
purposes of amortized bond premium upon the redemplion, sale or other disposition of a Premium Bond and with respect 1o the federal, state,
lacal, and foreign tax consequences of the purchase, ownership, and sele, redemption or other dispesition of such Premium Bonds.

Tax Legistative Changes
Current law may change so as to directly or indirectly reduce or climinate the benefit of the exclusion of interest on the Bonds from gross
inceme for federal income tax purposes.  Any proposed legislation, whether or not enacted, could also offect the value and liquidity of the

Bonds. Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult with their own tax advisors with respect 1o ony proposed, pending or future
legislation.

[The remainder of this page imtentionaily lefi blank]
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RISK FACTORS

The purchase of the Bonds involves cenain investment risks. Accordingly, each prospective purchaser of the Bonds should meke an
independent evaluation of all of the information presented in this Official Statement in order to make an informed investment decision. Certain
of these risks are described herein; however, it is not intended to be a complete representation of all the possible risks invelved.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS . . .This Official Statement, including the Appendices hereto, contain “forward-looking statements,” which
generelly can be identified with words or phrases such es “anticipates,” believes,” “could,” “estimates,” “expects,” “foresees,” “may,” “plan,”
“predict,” “should,” “will"" or other words or phrases of similar import. All statements included in this Official Statement, including the
Appendices hereto, that any person expects or anlicipates will, shovld or may occur in the future, are forward-looking statements. These
statements are based on assumptions and analysis made by the Authority, in light of its experience and perception of historical trends, current
conditions and expecled future developments as well as other factors that it believes are appropriate in the circumstances. However, whether
actual results and developments will conform with cxpectations and predictions is subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, including,
without limilation, the information discussed under this “RISK FACTORS" caption of this Official Statement os well as additional factors
beyond the Authority’s control. The important risk factors and assumplions described under that caption and elsewhere in this Official
Statement could cause actunt results to differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statement. All of the forward-looking
statements made in this Official Statement and any Appendices hereto are qualified by these cautionary siatements. There can be no assurance
that the actual resulis or developmenis onticipated will be realized or, even if subsiantiolly reslized, that they wilt have the cxpected
consequences (o or effects on the Authority or the Pledged Revenues. All subsequent ferward-Jooking stalements attributable to the Authotity
or persons acting on their behalf are expressly qualified in their entirely by the factors and assumptions described above and in any documents
containing those forward-looking statements. All forward-looking slatements included in this Official Stalement are based on information
available to the Authority on the date hereof, and the Authority does not assume any obligation to update any such forward-looking statements,

UNCERTAINTY OF REVENUES . . . The amount of Pledged Revenues 1o be collected by the Authority is dependent on a number of factors
beyond the control of either the Authority, the County or the State of Texas, including, but not limited 1o, the state of the U.5. economy and the
economy of the State of Texas and the County. Any one or more of these faclors could result in the Authority receiving less Pledged Revenues
than anticipated. During periods in which economic activity declines, Pledged Revenues, which are primarily based on the Vehicle Registration
Fees, may decline as comparcd fo an earlier year.

FEDERAL BUILD AMERICA BONDS SuBSIDY . . . The Authority issucd its Vehicle Regisiration Fee Revenue Bonds, Series 2010B as Build
Americn Bonds (“BABs™). BABs are taxable bonds that were issued in 2009 and 2010 and were to receive a direct subsidy paymen! from the
{ederal governmenl equal to 35% of the inlerest payments on the bands, The federal government has since announced that the 35% subsidy
payment will be reduced by 7.2%a through 2024. The federal govemment could further reduce or eliminate the subsidy in the future.

THE BONDS ARE LIMITED OBLIGATIONS . . . THE BONDS ARE SPECIAL LIMITED OBLIGATIONS OF THE AUTHORITY, PAYABLE
SOLELY FROM THE PLEDGED REVENUES. THE BONDS DO NOT CONSTITUTE A GENERAL OBLIGATION INDEBTEDNESS
NOR A PLEDGE OF AD VALOREM TAXING POWER OR THE FULL FAITH AND CREDIT OF THE COUNTY OR STATE OF
TEXAS AND ARE NOT OBLIGATIONS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS OR ANY OTHER AGENCY OR OTHER POLITICAL
SUBDIVISION OR ENTITY OF THE STATE OF TEXAS. THE AUTHORITY HAS NO AD VALOREM TAXING AUTHORITY. THE
AUTHORITY WILL NOT MORTGAGE OR GRANT ANY SECURITY INTEREST IN THE IMPROVEMENTS FINANCED WITH THE
PROCEEDS OF THE BONDS OR ANY PORTION THEREOF TO SECURE PAYMENT OF THE BONDS.

CouNTY PLEDGE OF NON-IMPAIRMENT . . . In accordance with the Project Agreement, the County pledges and agrees with the owners of the
Bonds thot it will not alter, impair or limit the Pledged Vehicle Fees in a manner that reduces the amount of Pledged Vehicle Fees to be
remitted to the Authority until the Bonds, together with applicable interest, are fully mel and discharged; provided, however, that nothing shall
preclude such alleration, impairment or limitation if and when adequate provision hove been made by law for the protection of the owners of
the Bonds,

The Authority notes 1hat this provision has not been interpreted by a count of law and, thereflore, the eatent that such provision would (i) be
upheld under constitutional or other legal challenge, (ii) protect the current rates and total collection of al) Pledged Vehicle Fees, or (ifi) impact
any other nspect of Pledged Vehicle Fees, cannot be predicied by the Authority.

FUTURE AND PROPOSED TAX LEGISLATION . .. Tax legislation, administrative actions 1aken by tax authorilies, or court decisions, whether at
the Federal! or state level, may adverscly affect the tax-exempi status of interest on the Bonds under Federal or stale law ond could affect the
market price or marketability of the Bands. Any such legislation, aclion or decision could limit the value of certain deductions and exclusions,
including Lhe exclusion for tax-exempt interest. The likelihood of any such legislation, oction or decision being enacted connot be predicied.
Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult their own tax advisors regarding the foregoing matters. Sec “TAX MATTERS" herein.

LIMITED OBLIGATIONS

The Bonds are special, limited obligations of the Authority payable solely from, and secured solely by, a first lien on and pledge of the Pledged
Revenues consisting primarily of Vehicle Regjstrution Fee Revenues.

NONE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, THE AUTHORITY, THE COUNTY, OR ANY OTHER AGENCY OR POLITICAL SUBDIVISION
OF THE STATE OF TEXAS OTHER THAN THE AUTHORITY IS OBLIGATED TO PAY THE PRINCIPAL OF OR INTEREST ON



THE BONDS. THE BONDS ARE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE PLEDGED REVENUES. NEITHER THE FAITH AND CREDIT
NOR THE TAXING POWER OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, THE AUTHORITY, THE COUNTY OR ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION
THEREOQF 1S PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF OR INTEREST ON THE BONDS. THE AUTHORITY HAS NO
TAXING POWER., THE INDENTURE DOES NOT CREATE A MORTGAGE ON THE PROJECTS.

NO RECOURSE UNDER THE BONDS SHALL BE HAD AGAINST ANY PAST, PRESENT, OR FUTURE OFFICER OF THE
AUTHORITY. THE BONDS MAY NEVER BE PAID IN WHOLE OR IN PART OUT OF ANY FUNDS RAISED OR TO BE RAISED BY
ANY OTHER REVENUES OF THE AUTHORITY EXCEPT THOSE REVENUES PLEDGED BY THE INDENTURE.

Other than the pledge of the Pledged Revenues, the Authority has not mostgaged, assigned, or pledped any interesi in any real or
personal property or improvements, including any interest in the Project or any expansions or extensions thereto, as security for
payment of the Bonds. {(Sce "SECURITY FOR THE BONDS.")

LIMITATION AND ENFORCEABILITY OF REMEMES UNDER THE INDENTURE

The remedies available to Owners of the Bonds upon an Event of Default under the [ndenture are limited 10 the seeking of specific performance
or a wril of mandamus or other suit, action, or proceeding compelling and requiring the Authority and its officers to observe and perform any
covenanl, condition, or obligation prescribed in the Indenture. In general, Texas courts have held that a writ of mandamus may be issued to
require a public official 10 perform legally imposed ministerial duties necessary for the performance of a valid contract, and Texas law provides
that, following opproval by the Texas Attormey General and issuance, the Bonds are valid and binding obligations for all purposes according to
their ierms. However, the enforcement of any such remedy may be difficult and time consuming and a regisiered ovwner could be required to
pursue such remedy or Lo request that the Trustee pursue such remedy on a periodic basis. NO ACCELERATION REMEDY 15 AVAILABLE
TO HOLDERS OF THE BONDS., (See “THE BONDS — Defaults and Remedies" and “Defauits and Remedies” in Lhe Indenture).

FORWARD LODKING STATEMENTS . . . The stotements conlained in this OfTicial Statement, and in any other information provided by the
Authority, that are not purely historical, are forward-looking statements regarding the Authority’s expectations, hopes, intentions, or
stralegies regarding the future. Readers should not place undue reliance on fonvard-looking statements. All forward-looking statements
included in (his Official Staternent are based on information available to the Authority on the date hereof, and the Authority assumes no
obligation to update any such forward-looking statements, [t is important 10 note thal the Authority's actual results could differ materially
from those in such forward-looking slatements.

The forward-looking statements included herein are necessarily based on various assumptions and estimates and are inherently subject to
various risks end uncentainties, including risks ond uncertainties relating to the possible invalidity of the underlying assumptions and
estimates and possible changes or developments in social, economic, business, industry, market, legal, and regulotory circumstances and
conditions and actions taken or omitted 1o be teken by third parties, including customers, suppliers, business partners and compelitors, and
legislalive, judicial and other governmental authorities and officials. Assumptions related lo the foregoing involve judgments with respect
10, among other things, future economic, competitive, and market conditions and future business decisions, all of which are difficult or
impossible to predict accurately and many of which are beyond the control of the Authorily. Any of such assumplions could be inaccurate
and, therefore, there can be no assurance that the forward-looking statements included in this Official Stalement will prove 10 be accurate.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION

In the Resolution, the Autherity has made the following agreement for the benefit of the holders and beneficial owners of the Bonds. The
Authorily is required 1o observe such agreement for so long as it remains obligated to advance funds to pay the Bonds. Under such egreement,
the Authority is obligaied to provide certain updaled {inancin informalion end operating data ennually, and timely notice of specified evens, to
the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB") through its Electronic Municipal Market Access (“EMMA") system, which makes
such information available free of charge to the public at its internet website, www.emma.msrb.org.

ANNUAL REPORTS . . . The Authority will provide certain updated financial information and operating data to the MSRB annually. The
information 10 be updated includes all quantitative financial information and operating daota with respect lo the Authority of the general type
included in tables 1-5 of the Official Stalement and in Appendix B. Any financial statements required lo be provided shall be (1) prepared in
accordance with the accounting principles described in the OfTicial Sialement or the financial siatements included in the Official Statement and
(2) audited, il the Authority commssions an audit of such statements and the audit is completed within the period during which they must be
provided. 1f audited financial sialements are not so provided, then the Authority shall provide unaudited financial statements for the applicable
Fiscal Year to the MSRB. Thereafter, when and if audited financial statements become available, the Authority will provide such financinl
statements on en audited basis. The Authority’s current Fiscal Year end is Sepiember 30. Accordingly, it must provide updated information by
the last day of March in each year, unless the Authority changes its fiscal year. 1l the Authority changes ils fiscal year, it will notify the MSRB
of the change.
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EVENT NOTICES . . . The Authority shall provide to the MSRB, in an electronic format as preseribed by the MSRB, in a timely manner not in
excess of ten (10) business days after the occurrence of the event, notice of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds:

n principal and interest payment delinguencies;

(2) non-payment related defaults, if material;

(3) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;

(4) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial dificulties;

{5) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure 1o perform;

{(6) adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final determinations of tnxability,

Notices of Proposed lssue {IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or delenminations with respect lo the tax status of the
Bonds, or other material events adversely affecting the lax status of the Bonds;

)] maodifications to rights of holders of the Bonds, if material;

(8) bond calls, if material, and tender ofTers;

(%) defeasances;

{10) relense, substitution, or sole of property securing repayment of the Bonds, if material;
(11) rating changes;

(12) bankrupicy, insolvency, receivership, or similar event of the Authority;

{13) the consummation of a merger, consolidotion, or acquisition involving the Authority or the sale of ali or substantially all of
the assets of the Autherity, other than in the ordinary course of business, the enlry into a definilive agreement to undertake such an
actien, or the lermination ol a definitive ngreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, il material; and

(4 the appointment of o successor or addilional Lrustee or the change in the name of the trustee, if malerial.

For the purpescs of Lhe event idenlified in paragraph 12, the event is considered 10 occur when any of the following occur: the appointment of
a receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer for the Authorily in o proceeding under the U.S. Bankrupicy Code or in any other proceeding under
state or federnl faw in which a coun or governmental authorily has assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the nssels or business of the
Authonily, or if such jurisdiclion has been assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers in possession but subject to
the supervision and orders of a court or governmenta) authority, or Lhe entry of an order confimming a plan of reorganization, arrangement or
liquidation by 2 court or govemmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the
Authonity.

The Authority shall provide lo the MSRB, in an electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB, in a timely manner, notice of any faijure by the
Authority to provide the required annual financial information in accordance with its agreement described in “CONTINUING DISCLOSURE
OF INFORMATION — Aanual Reports.” All documents provided 1o the MSRB shall be accompanied by identifying information as prescribed
by the MSRB,

LIMITATIONS, DISCLAIMERS, AND AMENDMENTS . . . The Authority shall be obligated to observe and perform its obligation os described in
“CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION™ herien so long as, the Authority remains an “obligaled person” with respect to the
Bonds within the meaning of the Rule. The Authority has agreed to provide only the {inancial information, operating data, financial
statements, and notices which it has expressly agreed 10 provide pursuant Lo the Resolution and does not undertake to provide any other
information that may be relevant or malerial to a complete presentalion of the Authority's financial resulis, condition, or prospects or hereby
undertake to update any information, excepl as expressly provided in the Resolution. The Authority does not make any representation or
warranty concerning such information or its uselulness to a decision 1o invest in or sel! Bonds o any future date.

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE AUTHORITY BE LIABLE TO THE OWNER OR BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY
BOND OR ANY OTHER PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN WHOLE OR IN PART FROM ANY
BREACH BY THE AUTHORITY, WHETHER NEGLIGENT OR WITHOUT FAULT ON ITS PART, OF ANY ITS OBLIGATIONS
DESCRIBED IN “CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION™ HEREIN, BUT EVERY RIGHT AND REMEDY OF ANY SUCH
PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR OR ON ACCOUNT OF ANY SUCH BREACH SHALL BE LIMITED TO AN ACTION FOR
MANDAMUS OR SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE.

The Authorily’s contiruing disclosure agreement may be amended by Lhe Authority from time (o time 1o adapt to changed circumstances that
arise from a change in legal requirements, a change in law, or = change in the identity, nalure, status, or type of operations of the Authority, but
only if (1) the continving disclosure ogreement, es so amended, would bave permitled an underwriter to purchase or sell Bonds in the primary
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offering of the Bonds in compliance with the Rule, taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule (o the date of such
amendment, as well as such changed circumstances, and (2) either (a) the Owners of a majority in aggregale principal amount (or any greater
amount required by any other provision of this Resolution that authorizes such an emendment) of the Outstanding Bonds consent 1o such
amendment or (b) a person or entity that is unaffilinied wilh the Authority (such as nationally recognized band counsel) determines that such
amendment will not materizlly impair the interests of the Owners and beneficial awners of the Bonds. If the Authority so amends ils
continuing disclosure undertaking, it shall include with any amended financia! information or operaling data next provided an explanation, in
narative form, of the reasons for the amendment and of the impact of any change in the type of financial information or opereting data so
provided. The Authority may also amend or repeal the provisions af its continuing disclosure agreement if the SEC amends or repesls the
applicable provisions of the Rule or a court of finat jurisdiction enters judgment that such provisions of the Rule are invalid.

COMPLIANCE WITH PRIOR UNDERTAKINGS . . . During the last five years, the Authority has complied in all malerial respects with all of its
continuing disclosure egreements pursuent o the Rule.

OTHER INFORMATION

RATING . . . The Bonds have been rated “AA-" by Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC, a part of McGraw-Hill Financial {*3&P"). The
presently outstanding Perity Bends are also rated “AA-" by S&P. An explanation of the significance of such ratings may be obtained from the
company furnishing such ratings. Any rating reflects only the view of the rating organization and the Authority makes no representntion as lo
the appropriateness of any rating, There is no assurance that such rating will continue for any given period of time or they will not be revised
dawnward or withdrawn entirely by such rating organizations, if in the judgment of such organizations, circymstances so warmant. Any such
downward revision or withdrawal of such ratings may have an odverse effect on the market price of the Bonds.

NO LITIGATION . ., . In the opinion of various officials of the Authority, there is no litigation of any noture which has been filed or is pending 10
enjoin the issuance and delivery of the Bonds or which would affect the provisions made for the payment or sccurity or in any manner
questioning the validity of the Bonds, and that the Authority is not a party to any litigation or other proceeding pending or to his knowledge,
threatened, in any court, agency or other administrative body {either Stote or federnl} which, if decided ndversely to the Authority, would have
a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the Authority.

REGISTRATION AND QUALIFICATION OF BONDS FOR SALE . .. The sale of the Bonds has nol been registered under the federal Securities Act of
1933, ns amended, in reliance upon the exemption provided Lhereunder by Section 3(a)(2); and the Bonds have not been qualified under the
Sccurities Act of Texas in reliance upon various exemplions contained therein; nor have the Bonds been qualified under the securities acts of
any other jurisdiction. The Authority assumes no responsibility for qualification of the Bonds under the sccurities fnws of any jurisdiction in
which the Bonds may be sold, assigned, pledged, hypathecated, or otherwise transferred. This disclaimer of responsibility for qualification for
sale or other disposition of the Bonds must not be construed as an interpretation of any kind with regard to the availability of any exemption
from securities registration provisions.

LEGAL INVESTMENTS AND ELIGIBILITY TO SECURE PunLic FunDs iv TEXAS . . . Texas Local Govemment Code, as amended, provides that
obligations, such as the Bonds, are legal and puthorized investments for banks, savings banks, trust companies, savings and loan associalions,
insurance companies, fiduciaries, trustees, and guardians, and for the sinking funds of municipalities, counties, school districts, or other
political corporations or subdivisions of the State of Texas. For political subdivisions in Texas which have adopted investment policies and
guidelines in accordance with the Public Funds Investment Act, the Bonds may have 1o be nssigned an investment quality of not less than "A”
or its equivalent by a nationally recognized rating ngency, befure they are eligible to secure deposits of any public fund of the State or any
political subdivision or public agency of the Siate, and are lawful and sufficient security for the deposits to the extent of their face value, See
"Rating" obove.

The Authority has made no investigation of other laws, rules, regulations or invesiment criteria which might apply 10 such institutions or
entities or which might Timit the suitability of the Bonds for any of the foregoing purposes or limit the aulharity of such institutions or entities
to purchase or invest in the Bonds for such purposes. The Authority has made no review of laws in other states to determine whether the Bonds
are jegal invesiments for various institutions in those states.

LEGAL OPINIONS AND NO-LITIGATION CERTIFICATE . . . The Authority will fumish the Underwriters a complete transcript of proceedings
incident to the authorization and issuance of the Bonds, including the ungualified approving legal opinion of the Attorney General of Texas to
the effect that the Initial Bonds are valid and legally binding abligations of the Authority, and based upon examination of such transcript of
proceedings. the opinion of Co-Bond Counsel, to the efTect that the Bands, issued in compliance with the provisions of the Resolution, are valid
and legally binding obligations of the Authority and, subject to the qualifications set forth herein under "TAX EXEMPTION®, the interest on
the Bonds is exempt from federa) income Laxation under existing statutes, published rulings, regulations, and court decisions. In their capacity
ns Co-Bond Counsel, Bracewell & Giuliani LLP, Houston, Texas and The Lucio Group PLLC, Brownsville, Texas, have reviewed the
information under the captions “PLAN OF FINANCE", “THE BONDS" (except for the subheading “Book-Entry-Only System"),
“SECURITY FOR THE BONDS", “TAX EXEMPTION", “CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION" (except under the
subheading “Compliance with Prior Undertakings™ as to which no opinion is expressed), “OTHER INFORMATION-Registration and
Quelification of Bonds For Sale™, “OTHER INFORMATION ~ Legal Invesiments and Eligibility ta Secure Public Funds in Texas". “OTHER
INFORMATION-Legal Opinions and No-Litigation Centificate™ and in Appendix € and D in the Official Statement and such firms are of the
opinion that the information relating to the Bonds and the Resolution conirined under such caplions is a fair and accurate summary of the
information purported to be shown and that the information and descriptions contained under such captions relating 1o Lhe provisions of
applicable state ond federal laws are comect as to matters of law. The cuslomary closing papers. including o certificate 1o the effect that no
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litigation of any nature has been filed or is then pending to restrain the issuance and delivery of the Bonds or which would affect the provision
made for their payment or security, or in any manner questioning the validity of the Bonds will also be furnished. The legal fees to be paid Co-
Bond Counsel for services rendered in connection with the issuance of the Bonds are contingent on the sale and delivery of the Bonds. The
legal opinion of Co-Bond Counsel will accompany the Bonds deposited with DTC or will be printed on definitive Bonds in the event of
discontinuence of the Book-Entry-Only System.

Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Underwriters by Winsiead PC, San Antonio, Texas, the counsel to the Underwriters. Winstead
PC represents, from time to time, the County in transactions unrelated to the Bonds, including as bond counsel for the SH 550 bonds.

The various legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds express the professional judgment of the attomeys
rendering the opinions a5 to the legal issues explicitly addressed therein. In rendering o legal opinion, the atomey does not become an insurer
or guaranior of the expression of professional judgment, of the transaction opined upon, or of the future performance of the parties to the
transaction, Nor does the rendering of nn opinion guaraniee the outcome of any legal dispute thal may arise out of the transaction.

AUTHENTICITY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION . . . The financial data and other information contained herein have been obtained from the
Authority’s records, audited financial statements and other sources which are believed 10 be relioble. All of the summaries of the stotutes,
documents and the Resolution contained in this Official Statement are made subject to ofl of the provisions of such statules, documents and
Resolution. These summaries do not purport to be complete statements of such provisions and reference is made to such documents for fsrther
information,

All information contained in this Official Statement is subject, in all respects, 1o the complete body of information contained in the original
sources thereof and ne guaranty, warranty or other representation is made conceming the accuracy or completeness of the information herein.
In particular, no opinion or representation is rendered as to whether any projection will approximate actual resulis, and all opinions, estimales,
and assumptions, whether or not expressly identified as such, should not be considered statements of factL

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS . . . Appendix B 1o this Official Statement contains excerpts from the Authority's annua! financial report for the fisca!
year ended Scptember 30, 2013. These financial statements and supplementa) schedules have been sudited by Long Chilton, L.L.P.,
Brownsville, Texas, independent certified public accountant, as stated in the repons included with such financial statements in Appendix B.
Since the publicalion of the oudil, there have been no material changes to the Authority’s financial position which would negatively impact the
Authority’s pbility to repay the Bonds.

CERTIFICATION OF THE OFFICIAL STATEMENT . . . Al the time of payment for and delivery of the Bonds, the Undenwriters will be furnished a
certificate, executed by proper officers of the Authority, acting in their official copacity, 1o the effect that 1o the best of their knowledge and
beliel: {1} the descriptions and statements of or pertaining to the Authorily congined in its Officinl Statement, and any addenda, supplement or
amendment therete, for the Bonds, on the date of such Official Stztement, and on the date of initial delivery of the Bonds, were ond are true and
correct in all materinl respects; (2) insofar as the Authority and ils offairs, including its financiat afMairs, are concemed, such Official Statement
did nol and does not contain an untrue statement of a material fact or omit to slale o materiol fact required to be stated therein or necessary to
make the stalements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; (3) insofar as the deseriptions and
stotements including financizl data, of or pertaining 10 entities, other than the Authority, and their activities contained in such Official
Statement are concemed, such statements and data have been obtained from sources which the Authority believes to be reliable and the
Authority has no reason to believe that they are untrue in any material respeet; and {4) there has been no material adverse change in the
financial condition of the Authorily, since the date of the last financial statements of the Authority appeanng in the Official Stalement. The
Officin} Statemnent will be approved as to form and content and the use thereof in the offering of the Bonds will be authorized, rotified and
epproved by the Board on the date of sale, and the Underwriters will be fumished, upon request, at the time of payment for and the delivery of
the Bonds, a centified copy of such approval, duly executed by the proper officials of the Authority.

VERIFICATION OF ARITHMETICAL AND MATHEMATICAL COMPUTATIONS . . . The arithmetica) accuracy of certain computations included in
the schedules provided by Estrada Hingjosa & Company, Inc. on behalf of the Authority relating 10 (a) computation of forecasted receipts of
principal and intcrest on the Escrowed Securities and the forecasled payments of principal and interest to redeem the Refunded Obligations and
{b) computation of the yields of the Bonds and the restricled Escrowed Securilies were verified by Grant Thomton LLP, Minneapolis,
Minnesota, certified public accountants. Such compulations were based solely on assumptions and information supplied by Estrada Hinojosa
& Company, Inc. on behalf of the Authority. Grant Thomton LLP has restricted ils procedures to verifying the arithmetical accuracy of certain
computations and has not mede any study or evaluation of the assumptions and information on which the compulations are based and,
accordingly, has not expressed an opinion on the data used, the reasonableness of the assumptions, or the achievability of the forecasted
outcome.

FINANCIAL ADVISOR . . . Estrada Hinojosa & Company, Inc. (the "Financial Advisor} is employed as the Financial Advisor to the Authority in
connection with the issuance of the Bonds. The Financial Advisor's fee for services rendered with respeet to the sale of the Bonds is
contingent upon the issuance ond defivery of the Bonds. The Financial Advisor has relied on the opinicns of Co-Bend Counsel and hes not
verified and does not assuine any responsibility for the information, covenants, and representations contained in any of the documentation with
respect Lo the federal income tax stetus of the Bonds or the possible impact of any present, pending or fulure actions token by any legislative or
Jjudicial bodics.
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UNDERWRITERS . . . The Undenrwriters named on the cover page hereof have agreed, subject to certain conditions, to purchase the Bonds from
the Authority, at a discount of $24,668.85 from the respective initial offering prices of the Bonds. The Underwriters will be obligated to
purchase all of the Bonds if any Bonds are purchased. The Bonds to be offered to the public may be offered and sold to certain dealers
(including the Underwriters and other dealers depositing Bonds inlo investment trusts) at prices lower than the public offering prices of such
Bonds and such public offering prices may be changed, from time to time, by the Undenwriters.

UsE OF INFORMATION IN OFFICIAL STATEMENT . . . No person hes been outhorized (o give any information or 10 make any representations
other than those contained in this OfTicial Statement, and if given or made, such other information or representations must not be relied upon as
having been authorized by Lthe Authority. This Official Siatement does not constitute an offer to sell or solicitetion of an offer to buy in any
stale in which such offer or solicitation is not authorized or in which the person making such offer or solicitation is not qualified to do 50 or lo

any person 1o whom it is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation.

CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL
MOBILITY AUTHORITY
i David E. Allex
Chainman

ATTEST:

/s/ Ruben Gallegos, Jr.
Secretary

Bt
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SCHEDULE]

SCHEDULE OF REFUNDED OBLIGATIONS

Issue Maturity Dete_Inlerest Rate Par Amount Call Date Call Price

Vehicle Registration Fee Revenue

Bonds, Series 20104 21512016 3.000% 5 800,000 21502015 100.00
2152017 3.000% 825,000 1572015 100.00
21512018 1.500% 850,000 21512015 100.00
21502019 3.500% 885,000 2152015 100.00
2152020 4.000% 915,000 21572015 100.00
V152021 4.000% 955,000 215/2015 100.00
21572022 4.000% 990,000 215/2015 100.00

$ 6,220,000
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GENERAL INFORMATION REGARDING THE COUNTY
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The County

Cameron County (the “County”) was created in 1848, and is the southemmaost county in Texas. The County's 2014 population is estimated to
be 423,868. According to the 2010 U.S. Census, the population of the County was 406,220, an increase of 21[.18% since 2000. The area of the
County is approximately 883 square miles, comprising the Brownsville-Harlingen-San Benito Metropolitan Area. The largest city in Lhe
County is Brownsville, which serves ns the county seat. The economy is well diversified, based on agricubtural production, fishing industries,
manufecturing plants and tourism. Major agricultural erops include oranges, grapefuit, cotton, grains and sugar cane. Principal manufacturing
products include offshore drilling platforms, Fberglass products, dairy products, clothing, electric equipment and frozen foods. The County is
the only port of entry from Mexico that provides all four methods of transportation - sea, air, highway and rail. Tourist atractions include
South Padre Islend, Lugunn-Atascosa Wildlife Refuge, Confederale Air Force Flying Museum and the Gladys Porter Zoo. The Pont of
Brownsville is one of the world's largest shrimp loading points and a very important link between the United States and Mexico,

The County is traversed by U.S. Highways 77, 83 and 281; Siate Highways 4, 48, 100, 107, 245, and 550; and nine fanm-lo-market roads.
Fificen motor freight trucking firms provide service to and from Brownsville. Rail tronsportation is provided by Union Pacific and National
Railways of Mexico. Commercial air service is provided to Brownsville by Continental Airlines; and to Harlingen by Southwest, American,
and Continental Airlines. Air freight service is provided by Emery, UPS, Kitty Hawk, Casino Express, and Burlinglon. The Brownsville
Intemational Airport also includes an industrio! park. The Port of Brownsville is the main shipping port for the Rio Grande Valley and South
Texas. Port facilities include a man-made basin connected by 17 miles of channel to the Guif of Mexico, various docking and lerminal
facilitics, turning basin and approach, fishing harbor, warchousing and railway switching operations, worklwide shipping lines and barge
transportelion services.

POPULATION STATISTICS

Year Cameron County
1960 ' 151,098
1970 (1] 140,368
1980 209,680
1990 W 266,600
2000 0 335,227
010 " 406,220
el 1) NI 434,130
g2 @ 406.220
w013 W 415,557
W04 P 423,868
TS, Census figures.
3 Estimate.
EMPLOYMENT STATISTICS
Cameron County Texs
June June June June June June
2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
Civilian Labor Foree 166,163 167,028 164,172 13,032,583 12,905,852 12,703,458
Total Employ ment 151,523 148,850 145,865 12,321,373 12,013,699 11,753,163
Total Unemploy ment 14,640 18,178 18,307 711,210 892,153 950,295
Percentage Unemployment ™' 88% 10.9% 11.2% 55% 6 9% 75%

" The County’s unemployment ligures are influenced by its iocation on the Mexican border and the many workers who are migrants or are
newly on the workforce.

Source: Texas Worklorce Commission.
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THE CITY OF BROWNSVILLE, TEXAS

The City of Brownsville, Texas (the “City™) is not obligated in any way on the Bonds. information concerning the City is included to provide
general information concerning the area surrounding the County. The City is a home-rule city and is the county seat of the County, 1t is the
southemmost city in Texas and the largest city in the lower Rio Grande Valley. The City is located about 25 miles inland from the Gulf of
Mexico on the north bank of the Rio Grande directly across from Matamoros, Mexico, which it joins by three international bridges. The City
serves ns 0 trade center for much of the lower Rio Grande Valley.

BUILDING PERMITS (C1TY OF BROWNSVILLE)

Fiscal New New

Year Residential Total Value Commercial Total Value
2004 1,628 $133,049,158 196 S 102,229,196
2005 1,587 141,535,609 191 78.441.343
2006 1,381 126,923,360 134 63,012,634
2007 931 89,187,241 113 76,883,594
2008 526 55,893,638 165 244,910,457
2009 410 42,412,263 85 44,005,150
2010 567 35,784,437 9 76.781.200
2011 532 33,077,997 121 93,437.698
2012 603 55,622,795 54 27.161.791
2013 601 60,629,626 67 63.992.349

Source: Brownsville Economic Development Council,
Tourism

Tourism is one of Ihe area’s biggest industries. Brownsville ranks among the lop five cities in Texas for long and short term stays, with the Rio
Grande Valley s the number one area in the Sintc of Texos as a destination point for automobile tourist traffic emtering Texas. The
Brownsville-Harlingen-San Benito area has 29 holels and motels with 1,740 rooms and two country clubs, 38 apartment projects and 41 mabile
home and trailer parks. Ten parks 1otaling 292 acres and at least 10 regulation golf courses and a number of par three golf courses serve the
aren,

Vacationcrs are atracted by subtropical climate, proximity to Mexico and eecess 1o South Padre Island. In oddition to a rich historical past,
Brownsville has one of the finest zoas in the nation, the Gladys Porter Zoo, donaled by the Sam’s Foundation. Also the Laguna-Atascosa
Wildlife Refuge, Confederate Air Force Flying Museum, and the Port Isabel Lighthouse are open for tourists,

The Cameron County Park Syslem owns and operaies Isla Blanca Park, Andy Bowie Park, Adolph Thomae Park, E.X. Atwood Park, public
beach nccess and four community parks.  The County Park System’s mission is to pravide quality recreation opportunities to the citizens of
Cameron County 21 on affordable price. The Park System provides beach access for day-use enjoyment, offering parking, stores, restaurants,
beach equipment rentnl and covered areas. Fishing, surfing, and volleyball are available along South Padre Island. Thomae Park is located on
the Aroyo Colorado River, three miles from the Laguns Madre Bay. This facility offers boat Jaunches, fish cleaning facilities, vehicle and
trailer parking, picnic areas and campsites, The Park System also provides controlled access to public beaches north of Andy Bowie Park. The
Park System also provides commissioned officer park ranger patrol to the parks and the unincorporated public areas.

The International Toll Bridge System

The International Tell Bridge Sysiem is composed of the “Gaoteway Bridge™, “Veteran's Bridge” and the “Free Trade Bridge”. The Galeway
Bridge connccts the City of Brownsville {“Brownsville"} with the City of Matamoros, Tamaulipas, Mexico (*Malamoros™), and the Frae Trade
Bridge Connects the cities of Harlingen and San Benilo with the villoge of Lucio Blanco.

Gepteway Bridge

The Gateway Bridge hes been operated under a joint agreement with the Government of Mexico since 1961, County ownership of the Bridge
extends 10 @ point over the river representing the internationa! boundary between the United States and Mexico. Repair and maintenance of
specific portion of the struclure are mode by Lhe respeclive owner govemments; other generalized maintenence is paid for on 2 pro rata basis.
Tolls for southbound wraffic are set independently by Cameron County.
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£ree Trade Bridee

On June 3, 1991, Cameron County entered into an agreement with the cities of San Benito, Texas and Harlingen, Texas whereby the County
would finance, construct and operate an international toll bridge located at Los Indios, Texas (the “Free Trade Bridge™), approximately cight
miles south of bath communities. Each of the cities has agreed 1o pay the lesser of $200,000 annually, or 25% of any deficiency in annual debt
service requirements, net operating losses not including depreciation, and any capital equipment not paid for with bond proceeds.

Any surplus remaining after payment of operations, debt service, or capital equipment purchases, in excess of 190% of the average
annual debt service requirements of outstanding Los Indios Toll Bridge Bonds, will be distributed 25% to each city and 50% to the
County. The Free Trade Bridge opened November 1, 1992, The following is a summary of the interloczl transactions between the
Counly and the Cities of Harlingen, Texas and San Benito, Texas:

Year Ended Cameron County City of Harlingen City of San Total Surplus
9/30 (50%) (25%) Benita (25%) {Deficiency )
2004 [ 306,183 3 153,091 5 153,091 [ 612,365
2005 410,815 205,407 205,407 821,629
2006 544,938 272,469 272,469 1,089.876
2007 704,358 352,179 352,179 1,408,716
2008 307,547 253,773 253,773 £,015.093
2009 303.484 151,742 151,742 606,968
2010 357.920 178,960 178.960 715,840
201 393.128 196,564 196,564 786,256
2012 287,151 143,576 143,576 574,303
2013 260.984 130,492 130,492 521,968

Veteran's Bri

On January 12, 1990, Cameron County executed an interlocal agreement with Brownsville whereby the County would finance, construct and
operale an intemnational toll bridge located in Southeast Brownsville, Texes, approximalely two miles east of Gateway Intemationat Toll
Bridge, herein referred to as “Veteran’s Intemationol Toll Bridge at Los Tomates™ ("VITB™), located beiween Brownsville and Matamoros,
The revenue bonds were issued an a parity with any then outstanding Intemationa) Toll Bridge Bonds, and are outstanding from the revenues
of the County's Toll Bridge System

Comeron County, Texas is the legal owner nnd operator of this bridge; however, Brownsville has obligated itself to pay 507, not to exceed the
sum of $400,000 annually, of any deficiencies in the annual debt service requirements for the propesed revenue bonds issued to finance the
VITB.

Any surplus revenues remaining after payment of the debt serviee requirements, maintenance and operatien costs, and an amount
equal to 140% of the average annual debt service requirements of alt outstandiag bonds will be shared equally between the City and
the County. The City of Brownsville does not retain an equity interest in the project, which is considered a cooperative arrungement
between the governments rather thar a joint veature, The following is 2 summary of the interlocal transactions between Brownsville
and the County:

Year Ended Cameron County City of Total Surplus
D/30 {50%) Brownsville {30%) {Deficiency)
2004 s 2,457,949 s 2,457,949 5 4915898
2005 2,496,070 2,496,070 4,992,140
2006 2,930,652 2,930,652 5,861,304
2007 2,716,304 2,716,304 5,432,608
2008 2,004,538 2,004,538 4,009,076
2009 1,243.110 1.243,111 2,486,221
2010 1,468,452 [,468,452 2,936,904
2011 1,528,935 1,528,935 3,057,870
2012 1,554.861 1.554,861 3,109,722
2013 1,288.520 1.288,520 2,577.040
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The Debt Reserve Funds sel aside to provide for the VITB is funded at the 1402 of the highest annual debt service level, Unless additional
deb is incurred, further allocation of bridge proceeds to fund the VITB Debt Reserve is unnecessary.

Svstem Crossings

A deuwi of historical crossing is listed below for each bridge within the Intemational Toll Bridge System.

Gateway Intermational Toll Bridge Veteran's Tnternational Toll Bridge at Los Tomates
Border TrafTic at Brownsville, TX* Border Traffic at Brownsville. TX*
" Fiscal Fiscal
Year Year
Ended Vehicles Pedestrians Ended Vehicles Pedestrians
2004 2,505.882 2.374.573 2004 2,554,209 1,270
2005 2,451.081 2,159,212 2005 2,376,486 1,213
2006 2,349,380 2,242,475 2006 2,379,113 1,430
2007 2,219.360 2,077.625 2007 2,135,586 1,722
2008 2,046.939 1.928.762 2008 1,813,284 2,123
2009 1,755.783 1,869.333 2009 1,523,091 445
2010 1,514.838 1,878.851 2010 1,409,200 1,504
2011 1,315.806 1,822.373 2011 1,296,069 1,115
2012 1,371,453 1,750,139 2012 1,212,284 579
2013 1,454,083 1,793,623 2013 1,041,917 325

Free Trade Bridge at Los Indios

South of Harlingen/San Benito, TX* Total

Fiscal Fiscal
Year Year

__ Endcd Vehicles Pedestrians Ended Vchicles Pedestrians
2004 732,515 1.081 2004 3,792,606 2,376,924
2005 658,323 1,040 2005 5,486,090 2,161 465
2006 645.367 915 2006 3.373.860 2,244 820
2007 611.65!) 709 2007 4,966.597 2,080.056
2008 574,394 317 2008 4.434.617 1,931,202
2009 546,988 3N 2009 3.825.862 1,870,109
2010 446,212 285 2010 3.370.250 1,880,640
2011 355,043 227 2011 2,966,918 1,823,715
2012 322,950 149 2012 2.906.727 1,750,867
2013 320,848 122 2013 2,816.848 1,794,070

* The County owns three of the four infernational 10lf bridges located within the County.
Crossing numbers are not included in these tables for the privately-owned B&A Bridge

Source: Cameron County intemnational Toll Bridge System.



“IN-BOND" INDUSTRIALIZATION PROGRAM

The two cities, Brownsville and Matamoros have established over the past 25 years the *In-Bond™ Industrislization or “Maquiladora™ program.
This program ollows the assembly of labor intensive products at advantageous costs; thus, allowing North American products 1o be more
compelitive on a world-wide basis, Since its inception in 1966, the *In-Band™ program has grown to an estimated 108 companies, expanding
10 a total of 4,300,000 square feet of manufacturing space, and employing approximately 52,000 people.

Brownsville gains greatly from these operations since all of the Mexican plants have offices, warehouses, or twin plants on the U.S, side; U.S.
management and technical personnel live in Brownsville; goods and services are purchased in Brownsville for use in the Matamoros facilities.

Higher Education

Since 1991, the University of Texas at Brownsville and Texas Southmaost College have shared campuses, faculties, and operations under one
administration. Eflective June 14, 2013, the University of Texas Rio Grande Valley was established within the University of Texas System,
which will eventually consolidate the University of Texas-Brownsville and the University of Texas-Pan American.  However, Texas
Southmost College will continue to serve the community and issue two-year Associate Degrees as o scparate institution with ils own
administration. Texas State Technical College, located in Harlingen, offers essociate degrees, and provides customized technical training 1o fit
the needs of those industries seeking to locate in the County.

THE PORT OF BROWNSVILLE

The Brownsville Navigation District {the “District”) is localed at the southernmost 1ip of Texas on the Gulf of Mexico and information
conceming the District is included for genernl informational purposes only. The Districl is one of the deep-water pons along the Gulf of
Mexico coast, having compleied a project to deepen the channel to 42 feet in May of 1995, The channel is 17 miles long and terminates in a
terning basin that is 1,200 feet wide.

Terminal facililies provided by the District include eight reinforced concrete wharves with closed comugated iron and sprinklered sieel cargo
transfer sheds; two reinforced concrete open barge docks; a 600 R. by 280 f. reinforced concrete open deep-sea dock ond a 120 fi. by 520 fl.
concrete open deep-sea dock for ores, metals and other bulk cargoes; a privately owned 3,750,000 bu. capacity grain elevalor; four liguid cargo
docks, open surfaced storape yards; 33 miles of railrood trockege; and mechanical freight handling equipment. A multi-purpose, decp draft
cargo dock went into service in February 1999.

All docks are equipped with electric lights, light and power lines and fresh water. All docks are served by rail. Wastewater and ballast
facilities are avoilable. All of the fucilities are operated for hire on a first-come, first-served basis,

The dry dock Los Alpmos has been signed over (o the District by the Navy. 1t is presently leased to AMFELS for operation as a dry dock 1o
repair drilling rigs, one ol the few in existence. 1t was placed into service by AMFELS in May, 1996,

A complete shrimp and fishing harbor, separate ond apant from the main harbor, wes compleled and placed in service in mid-summer 1953. A
second phase was finished in December, 1968. Al docks were complelely rebuilt in a project that was completed in 1993, Located four miles
east of Lhe main Tumning Basin, the Fishing Harbor measures 1,600 i, wide by 2,160 R. long, and has o depth of 14 it. It provides 12,000 linear
feet of docking space, and is equipped with oll necessary facilities for handfing and processing fish and shrimp as well 25 maintaining and
servicing shrimp vessels. More than 200 shrimp trawlers are home-ported ot the Fishing Harbor; more than double that number of foreign
trawlers call regularly for repairs, fuel, and stores.

On Cctober 28, 1980, U.5. Cusloms crented Foreign Trade Zone Number 62 (“FTZ") wilh the District as the grantee. There is a total orea of
2,680 acres available for FTZ status st the Port of Brownsville, the Brownsville/South Padre Island Airpost, and ot the Harlingen Airport.
There are currently nine companies operating within the zone with general purpose warehousing and liquid bulk storage available.

The District derives its operating revenues from charges for lease rentals, wharfage, storage, vessel dockage, and the sale of various pon
services such as utilities.
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CARGO TONNAGE OF THE PORT OF BROWNSVILLE

Calendar Inbound Cutbound Total Number
Year'" Toonage Tonnage Tonnage of Vessels
2004 2.843.044 920,369 3,763,413 1,185
2003 3,593.519 899,527 4,493,046 1,069
2006 4,071,622 687,603 4,759,225 794
2007 3,236,255 1,045,754 4,282,009 1,120
2008 4,435,942 870,369 5,306,311 1,099
2009 3.649.766 756,991 4,406,757 783
2010 3.593.633 831,273 4,424,906 877
2001 4,148,497 1,217,673 3,366,170 1,238
2012 4,440,890 1,095,800 5,536,690 1,083

) December 315t year ending,

Source: Brownsville Navigation District

[Remainder of this Page Intentionally Lefi Blank]
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APPENDIX B

EXCERPTS FROM THE
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

‘The information centained in Lthis Appendix consists of excerpls from the Cameron County Regional
Mobility Annual Financial Report for the Year Ended September 30, 2013, and is not intended to be a
complele stotement of the Autherity’s financial condition. Reference is made 1o the complete Report
for further information.

——
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Cameron County Regional Mobility Authority
Brownsville, Texas

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of
Cameron County Regional Mobility Authority (RMA), a component unit of Cameron County,
Texas, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the RMA’s basic financial statements as listed

in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are frec from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain andit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonabieness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

1
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the business-type activities of the RMA as of September 30,
2013 and 2012, and the respective changes in financial position, and cash flows thereof for the
years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2013 the RMA adopted new accounting
guidance, GASB statement Nos. 63 and 65. These include, Financial Reporting of Deferred
Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, and Items Previously
Reported as Assets and Liabilities. As a result of the implementation of Statement No. 65, the
RMA reported a change in accounting principle to report the effect of no longer deferring and
amortizing bond issuance costs. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 4-7 be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the RMA’s basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of
federal/state awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations and State of Texas Single Audit Circular, and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements.

The schedule of expenditures of federal/state awards is the responsibility of management and
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing

2



procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion the schedule of expenditures of
federal/state awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial

statements as a whole.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
March 27, 2014, on our consideration of the RMA's internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering RMA’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Wﬁi%uﬂ

LONG CHILTON, LLP
Certified Public Accountants

Brownsville, Texas
March 27, 2014



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following is management’s discussion and analysis of the financial performance and activity
of the Cameron County Regional Mobility Authority (the RMA), and is designed to provide an
overview that users may use to interpret the basic financial statements for the year ended
September 30, 2013. This discussion and analysis has been prepared by management and should
be used in conjunction with the basic financial statements and notes thereafter.

The RMA is governed by a board of directors consisting of seven members with operations
overseen by an Executive Director. The RMA operates with a small handful of staff members
and contracts many of its services with local area professionals.

2013 Financizal Highlights

» Vehicle Registration Fees increased 1.5% from 2012 to 2013 increasing from $2.80
million to $2.84 million, respectively. Vehicle Registration Fees also increased 2.8%
from 2011 to 2012, increasing from $2.72 million in 2011 to $2.80 million in 2012.

e Toll revenues experienced a decrease of 18% from 2012 to 2013 decreasing from
$207,478 to $170,749, respectively. Toll revenues did experience a significant increase
from 2011 to 2012 increasing from $68,707 in 2011 to $207,478 in 2012.

* Funding for the SH550 Direct Connector project provided grant funds in the amount of
$5,671,590 in 2013, and other ARRA funding in the amount of $624,943, for a total of
$6.3 million in grant funds for 2013. No grant revenues were received in the years 2012
and 2011.

» Operating expenses in 2013 were approximately $4.7 million, an increase from $1.2
million in 2012. This increase was primarily caused by the expensing of project
development work capitalized in prior years. Operating expenses decreased $384,607
from 2011 to 2012, decreasing from $1.6 million to $1.1 million, respectively.

 Capital assets net of related depreciation increased a total of $13.8 million from 2012 to
2013. This increase was attributed to the completion of construction on the second phase
of the SH550 and additional toll equipment placed in service during the year.
Construction in process increased a net total of $1.4 million from the prior year largely
due to the commencement of construction on the third and final phase of the SH550. This
total was offset with the amounts transferred from Construction in Process to Capital
Assets. For the years 2011 to 2012 Construction in process increased a net total of $3.8
million,

Overview of Basic Financial Statements

The RMA reports its business-type activities in a single enterprise fund, in which its operations
and activities are reported similar to a private-sector business. The financial statements include
comparative Statements of Net Position, Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
Position, and the Statements of Cash Flows. These basic financial statements are prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as
promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board also known as GASB.



The Statements of Net Position represent the net position of the RMA as of the end of each fiscal
year presented. Net position signifies the difference of all other elements of the statement of net
position for all years presented in three component categories; net investment in capital assets,
restricted, and unrestricted.

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Positioa present the results of the
business activities of the RMA over the course of the fiscal years presented and how ultimately
those results affected the change in net position. As an enterprise fund, the RMA reports its
operations using the economic resource measurement focus in which all revenues and
expenditures are recognized in the period which incurred with the difference reported as net

change in net position.

The Statements of Cash Flows unlike the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net
Position, reflect only the results of business activities as they affect cash over the course of the
fiscal years presented. The results are reported in three categories of operating, financing, and
investing activities with the net change in cash as the residual.

The notes to the financial statements provide required disclosures and other information that are
essential to a full understanding of the data found in these financial statements, and should be
read in conjunction with the MD&A and the basic financial statements.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF CCRMA

Summary of Net Position

The analysis of the RMA’s net position includes the total assets minus the total liabilities with
the residual difference of net position. The RMA’s net position for the years ending September
30, 2013, 2012, and 2011 were approximately $7.8 million, $4.3 million, and $4.0 million,
respectively. The largest component of total assets for all three years was the non-current assets.
Non-current assets accounts for approximately 82%, 94%, and 76% for the years 2013, 2012,
and 2011, respectively. These assets consist of unexpended bond funds and development projects
in which the RMA will not retain ownership at completion.

Total liabilities as of September 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011 were approximately $120.3 million,
$111.9 million, and $66.9 million, respectively. Non-current liabilities account for the majority
of the total [iabilities and consist of Financial Assistance Agreements with TxDot, amounts due
to other agencies, and long term bond payables. A more detailed description is provided in the
notes to the financial statements.

Summary of Net Position
2013 2012 2011
Assets:
Current assets 3 6,409,116 5 4,477,042 § 14,424,744
Capital assets, net 16,223,404 2,378,478 2,424,025
Construction in Process 28,409,045 26,973,755 23,167,096
Other non-current 77,164,353 82,379,179 30,942,677
Total Assets $ 128205918 $ 116,208,454 $ 70,958,542




Liabilities:

Current liabilities 3 6,017,391 b 2,260,395 3 6,496,906
Non-Current liabilities 114,376,005 109,628,518 60,444,518

Total liabilities $ 120,393,396 $ 111,888,913 $ 66941424

Net position:

Net investments in capital assets 8,761,616 547,674 2,084,156
Restricted 1,661,207 2,816,031 1,536,533
Unrestricted (2,610,302) 055,836 396,429

Total net position 3 7,812,521 3 4,319,541 $ 4,017,118

Capital & Other Non-Current Assets

Capital assets of the RMA include the infrastructure portion of the SH550 toll road placed in
service along with toll equipment net of accumulated depreciation. The projects undergoing
construction, traffic studies, environmental and preliminary engincering studies are recorded as
construction in process. As of September 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011 the RMA had approximately
$28.4 million, $26.9 million, and $23.2 million in construction in process. The RMA will at
times provide resources and develop transportation projects that meet the overall strategic goals
of the RMA, however will not retain direct ownership at completion of the project. These
projects are recorded as redevelopment assets on the Statements of Net Position.

Capital & Other Non-Current Assets

2013 2012 2011
Capital Assets:
Capital Assets, net 3 16,223,404 § 2378478 § 2,424,025
Non-Current Assets
Restricted Assets 37,651,010 46,549,902 2,256,741
Construction in Pocess 28,409,045 26,973,755 23,167,096
Redevelopment and other
non-current assets 39,513,343 35,829,277 28,685,936
Totals $ 121,796,802 $ 111,731,412 § 56,533,798

Non-Current Liabilities

Due to other agencies as of September 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011 were approximately $42.9
million, $37.3 million, and $31.6 million, respectively. These amounts include funds provided to
the RMA for the development of other projects mentioned above in which the RMA will not
retain direct ownership of. In the totals for long term bonds payable, the RMA has both tax
exempt and non-tax exempt issuances, a more detailed description to these bond issuances can be
found in the notes to the financial statements.



Non-Current Liabilities

2013 2012 2011
Non-Current Liabilities:
Due to Other Agencies $ 42981244 % 37305362 S 31,581,960
Long Term Bond Pzyable 71,394,762 72,323,156 28,862,558
Totals $ 114376006 § 109628518 § 60,444,518

Changes in Net Position

The RMA's total revenues and capital contributions for the year ending September 30, 2013,
2012, and 2011 were approximately $9.8 millior, $3.0 million, and $2.8 million, respectively.
Total revenues and capital contributions experienced a significant increase in 2013 from 2012,
largely due to grant funds received for the Construction of the SH550 Direct Connector. These
capital contributions were used entirely in the construction of that project. Total operating
expenses for the year ending September 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011 were approximately $4.7
million, $1.2 million, and $1.6 million, respectively. In 2013 a total of $3.4 million of operating
expense was attributed to the completion of work provided by the RMA for the US 77/1-69
Project which had been capitalized in the prior years as the services were provided.

Changes in Net Position
2013 2012 2011
Revenues:
Vehicle Registration Fees § 2,843,510 ¥ 2,800,570 $ 2,725,505
Toll Revenue 170,749 207,478 68,787
Other Operating Revenue 120,000 - -
Non Operating Revenue 393,842 53,915 21,253
Total Revenues 3,528,101 3,061,963 2,815,545
Expenses:
Operating 4,703,015 1,183,350 1,567,957
Non Operating 1,628,640 1,297,164 -
Total Expenses 6,331,655 2,480,514 1,567,957
Capital Contributions: 6,296,534 - -
Change in Net Position $ 3492980 § 581,449 § 1,247,588

Contacting the RMA’s Financial Management

The financial report is designed to provide customers, investors, and creditors with a general
overview of the RMA’s finances and to demonstrate the RMA’s accountability for all inflows
and outflows of resources. If you bave any questions about this report or need additional
financial information, contact the Cameron County Regional Mobility Authority, 1100 E.
Monroe Ste. 256 Brownsville, Texas 78520,



CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS)

Statements of Net Position
September 30, 2013 and 2012

ASSETS
Current Assets;
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts Receivable
Due from other agencies
Prepaid Expenses
Total Current Assets

Non-current Assets:
Restricted Assets;
Cash - Trustee Funds

Cash - Debt reserve
Cash - Debt service
Total Restricted Assets

Capital assets, net

Redevelopment assets

Construction in process

Unamortized bond insurance
Total Asscts

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities;
Accounts payable
Accrued interest payable
Due to other govemnments
Current maturities of bonds
Total current liabilities:

Non-current Liabilities:
Due to other agencies
Long-term bond payable
Total non-curzent liabilities

Total Liabilities
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital asscts
Restricted
Unrestricted
Tota! net position
Total Liabilities and Net Position

‘The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

2013 2012
$ 2,111,181 3,667,787
549,424 809,255

3,740,092 :

8,419 -
6,409,116 4,477,042
34,634,832 43,641,724
2,256,740 2,256,740
759,438 651,438

37,631,010 6,549,002

16,223,404 2,378,478
39,392,798 35,704,549
28,409,045 26,973,755
120,545 124,728
S 128,205,918 116,208,454
s 4,577,306 993,560
425,085 416,835
250,000 250,000
765,000 600,000
5,017,391 2,260,395
42,981,244 37,305,362
71,394,762 72,323,156
114,376,006 109,628,518
120,393,397 111,388,913
8,761,616 547,674
1,661,207 2,816,031
(2,610,302) 955,836
7,812,521 4,319,541
$ 128205918 116,208,454




CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS)

Statements of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Net Position
Years Ended September 30, 2013 and 2012

Operating Revenues
Vehicle registration fee
Toll revenue
Other operating revenue

Total operating revenues

Operzting Expenses
Advertising
Contractual services
Insurance
Miscellaneous
Office supplies
Professional services
Travel
Toll services
Utilities
Depreciation
Project expensed
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Bond issuance costs
Debt interest
Interest income
Other revenue
Total non-operaling revenue (expenses)
Income (loss) before capital contributions

Capital Contributions
Change in net position
Net Position - beginning of year
Prior period adjustment
Net Position - beginning of year restated

Net Paosition - end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements,

2013 2012
$ 2843510 S 2,800,570
170,749 207,478
120,000 .
3,134,259 3,008,048
8,921 23971
447,350 794,164
4,039 -
53,403 12,691
7,882 14,040
103,618 146,311
52,178 35,095
103,468 32,093
5,024 £
471,931 124,985
3,445,201 .
4,703,015 1,183,350
{1,568,756) 1,824,698
- (722,209)
(1,628,640) (574,955)
5,818 7,767
388,024 46,148
(1,234,798) (1,243,249)
(2,803,554) 581,449
6,296,534 .
3,492,980 581,449
4,319,541 4,017,116
s (279,024)
4,319,541 3,738,002
$ 7812521 § 4319541




CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS)

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended September 30, 2013 and 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from vehicle registration fees
Receipts from toll revenues
Receipts from other income
Payments to Vendors
Net cash provided by {used in) operating activites

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Acquisitions of property and equipment

Payments on interest

Acquisitions of construction in progress

Payments on bond principal

Bond proceeds

Capital contributions

Other financing sources

Net cash {used) by capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from interest income

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and Cash equivalents at beginning of year
Prior peried adjustment affecting cash

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME(LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (Joss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income 1o net cash provided by
operating activities:
Net prior period adjusment affecting operations
Depreciation expense
Amortization of premium/discount
Issuance cost expense
Changes in assets and |iabilities:
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets
(Increase) decrease in due from other agencies
{Increase) decrease in accounts payable
(Increase) decrease in Due to other agencies
{Decrease) increase in accured interest payable
(Decrease) increase in deferred revenue

Net cash flows provided by operating activities

10

2013 2012
$ 3,026,130 3 2,800,570
156,778 207,478
361,877 233,128
(1,132,063) (2,918,932)
2,412,722 322,244
(774,815) (3,760,018)
(1,628,640) (599,772)
(13,491,609) (7,465,862)
(600,000) (600,000)
= 45,070,882
6,296,534 =
(2,027,690) 4,973,074
(12,226,220) 37,618,304
5818 7,767
(9.807,680) 37,948,315
50,217,689 11,621,556
(647,818) 647,818
$ 39,762,191 $ 50,217,689
$ (1,568,756) S 1,824,698
290,444 {2590,444)
471,931 124,985
155,143 -
5 (722,209)
(8,419) 266,667
(3,480,261) 4,009,046
3,583,746 (5,112,586)
3,080,644 :
8,250 416,835
{120,000) (194,748)
S 2,412,722 5 322,244
(continued)



CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS)

Statements of Cash Flows - Continued
Years Ended September 30, 2013 and 2012

RECONCILIATION OF ENDING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Ending cash - Statement of Cash Flows $ 39,762,191 $ 50,217,689
Less: amount reported in
Restricted Assets 37,651,010 46,549,902
Ending cash - Statement of Net Position $ 211,181 b 3,667,787
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information
Cash Payments for:
Interest $ 1,620,390 s 158,120
Taxes s - s -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS)

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2013

Note 1 — Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Cameron County Regional Mobility Authority (RMA) was authorized for creation in
September 30, 2004 by the Texas Transportation Commission to promote and improve
regional mobility within Cameron County. Since its creation, the RMA has committed
itself to an ambitious series of economically sustainable projects to improve the quality of
life for area residents and enable quality economic development. The RMA receives funds
from Vehicle Registration Fees in Cameron County as well as toll revenues and grant funds
for projects. The RMA is governed by a board of directors consisting of seven members
with operations overseen by an Executive Director. The RMA operates with a smali
handful of staff members and contracts many of its services with local area professionals.

The financial statements of the RMA have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to
government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
accepted standard-setting body for establishing govemmental accounting and financial
reporting principles. The RMA applies Financial Accounting Standards Board
pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board opinions issued on or before November
30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements,
in which case, GASB prevails, and all of the GASB pronouncements issued
subsequently. The more significant of the RMA’s accounting policies are described below:

A. Reporting Entity

In evaluating how to define the RMA, for financial reporting purposes, management
has determined that there are no entities over which the RMA exercises significant
influence. Significant influence or accountability is based primarily on operational or
financial relationships with the RMA. Since the RMA does not exercise significant
influence or accountability over other entities, it has no component units.

B. Basis of Accounting

The operations of the RMA are accounted for as an enterprise fund on an accrual basis
in order to recognize the flow of economic resources. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are eamned, expenses
arc recognized in the pericd in which they are incurred, depreciation of assets is
recognized and all assets and liabilities associated with the operation of the RMA are
included in the Statement of Net Position. Operating expenses for the RMA include the
costs of administrative expenses, indirect administrative costs and costs for contractual
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CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS)

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2013

Note I — Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

B. Basis of Accounting — Continued

services associated with operations or project studies. Expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

C. Cash& ivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition. These deposits are fully collateralized or covered by federal deposit
insurance, Investments are reported at fair value. The net change in fair value of
investments is recorded on the Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net
Position and includes the unrealized and realized gains and losses on investments.

D. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, equipment and infrastructure assets, are reported
at cost. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Road and bridges, 40 years
Improvements, 5-20 years
Buildings, 20-30 years
Equipment, 3-20 ycars

A full month's depreciation is taken in the month an asset is placed in service. When
property and equipment arc disposed, depreciation is removed from the respective
accounts, and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recorded in operations. Depreciation
expense for 2013 and 2012 was $471,931 and $124,985, respectively.

E. Capital Contributions

Capital Contributions are comprised of federal, state, and local grants. The portion of
the grants and reimbursements used for capital purposes are reflected as capital
contributions in the Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. The
funds are reimbursable contributions, whereas the RMA first pays for the project and
then the granting agency reimburses the RMA for its eligible expenditures.
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CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS)

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2013

Note 1 — Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

F. Income Taxes

The RMA is a political subdivision of the State of Texas. As such, income eamned in
the exercise of its essential government functions is exempt from state or federal
income taxes. Bond obligations issued by state and local governments are tax-exempt
only if the issuers pay rebate to the federal govermment of the eamings on the
investment of the proceeds of a tax-exemp! issue in excess of the yield on such
obligations and any income eamned on such excess.

G. Classification of Operating and Non-operating Revenues and Expenses

The RMA defines operating revenues and expenses as those revenues and expenses
generated by a specified program offering either a good or service. This definition is
consistent with GASB Statement No. 9 which defines operating receipts as cash
receipts from customers and other cash receipts that do not result from transactions
defined as capital and related financing, non-capital financing or investing activities.

H. Net Position

In June 2011, GASB issued its Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred
Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, which became
effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2011, consequently implemented
with these basic financial statements and retroactively applied to all reporting periods.
This statement provides guidance to financial reporting of deferred outflows and
inflows of resources, and identifies net position as the residual of all other elements
presented in a statement of financial position. Based on the implementation of GASB
Statement No. 63, the RMA's pet position comprises the following components:

o Net investment in capital assets — consists of capital assets net of accurnulated
depreciation, outstanding balances on borrowings attributable to the acquisition of
capital assets, and deferred outflows and inflows of resources attributable to the
acquisition of capital assets.

e Restricted — consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources related to those assets.

e Unrestricted — net amount of assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred

inflows not included in the determination of net investment in capital assets, or
the restricted component of net position.

14



CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS)

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2013

Note } — Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies —~ Continued

H. Net Position — Continued
Net Position as of September 30, 2013

Net investment in capital assets $ 8,761,616
Restricted 1,661,207
Unrestricted (2.610,302)
Net Position $ 7812521

Net Position as of September 30, 2012 (Restated)

Net investment in capital assets $ 547,674
Restricted 2,816,031
Unrestricted ____955.836
Net Position 431954

I. Comparative Data/Reclassifications

Certain amounts presented in prior year data have been reclassified in order to be
consistent with the current year’s presentation.

J. Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through March 27, 2014 which is the
date the financial statements were available to be issued.

K. Early Implementation of Accounting Standards

In March 2012, GASB issued its statement No. 65 ltems Previously Reported as Assets
and Liabilities, which becomes effective for periods beginning after December 15,
2012; however early implementation is encouraged. The RMA adopted and
implemented in these financial statements GASB 65. The statement establishes
accounting and financial reporting standards to reclassify, as deferred outflows or
inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets or liabilities
and recognizes, as outflows or inflows of resources, certain items that were previously
reported as assets and liabilities. The changes adopted were applied retroactively to all
periods presented. This statement impacted the RMA's financial statements by
reclassifying certain debt issuance costs from an asset, to an outflow of resources in the
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CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS)

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2013
Note 1 — Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

period incurred causing a restatement in the total assets as well as the change in net
position. A summary of the net effect of early implementation of GASB 65 on the RMA’s

financial statements follows:
September 30, September 30,
2012 2012
As previously
reported Restated

Total Assets $ 117,030,731 $ 116,208,454
Beginning Net Position s 4,017,116 3 3,738,092
Ending Net Position $ 5295956 § 4,319,541

Note 2 — Deposits and Investments
Custodial Credit Risk
Deposits

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, the RMA will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to
recover its collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The RMA
complies with its investment policy for all its cash and cash equivalent accounts which
calls for safety of principal as the first priority in its deposit accounts.

At September 30, 2013, the carrying amount of the RMA's cash, cash equivalents and
restricted cash was $39,762,191 of which $3,016,178 was held in debt reserve at BNY
Mellon for the 2010 bond series, $34,634,832 was held in trust accounts at BNY Mellon
for the 2012 bond series, and the remainder was in business interest checking accounts.

There is po limit on the amount the RMA may deposit in any one institution. However, the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation only insures up to $250,000 per institution. The
RMA is fully collateralized with pledged securities for amounts in excess of the FDIC limit
for the year ended September 30, 2013.
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CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS)

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2013

Nete 3 — Capital Assets

The following schedules summarize the capital assets and Construction in Process of the
RMA as of September 30, 2013 and 2012:

Capital Assets October 1, September 30,
2012 Additions Deletions 2013
Depreciable 3 2,549,825 $ 14,370,658 $ (53,801) 5 16,366,682
Accumulated Depreciation {171,347) {471,931) {643,278)
Net Capital Assets 2,378,478 13,808,727 (53,801) 16,223 404
Non-Deprecizble CIP $ 26,973,755 $ 17,877,209 § (16441,919)  § 23,409,045

The additions reiated to construction in process are as follows:

Project Amount

SH 550 (Direct

Connector) 5 16,119,122
East Loop 810,124
SPI12nd Access 685,483
General Brant 96,796
281 Connector 79,567
West Parkway 31212
FM 803 24,459
Quter Parkway 17,216
Port Isabel 13,230
Total 3 17,877,209



CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS)

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2013

Note 3 — Capital Assets — Continued

October 1, September 30,

2011 Additions Deletions 2012

Depreciable $ 2470387 b 79,438 s - $ 2,549,825
Accumulated Deprecistion (46,362} (124,985) - {171,34T)
Net Capital Assets 2,424,025 {45,547) - 2,378,478
Non-Deprecisble CIP $ 23,167,096 $ 3,875207 $ (68,548) § 26,973,755

Note 4 — Redevelopment Assets

The RMA has authorization by the State to participate, develop, and construct projects on
behalf of other entities. The RMA has begun work on several projects in which the RMA
will not retain ownership when work is completed. These projects are recorded as
Redevelopment assets on the Statement of Net Position. At completion these assets, along
with any associated liabilities will be removed from the RMA'’s financial statements and
any difference will be adjusted through current operations. The following schedule
summarizes the redevelopment assets shown on the Statement of Net Position:

Redevelopment Assets QOctober 1, September 30,
2012 Additions Deletions 2013

Brownsville/Matamoros

West Rail Relocation $ 23291172 $ 3639267 § - $ 26,930,439

Olmito Switchyard 12,413,377 48,982 - 12,462,359

Total Redeviopment

Assels $ 35704549 § 3,688249 § - § 35392798
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CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS)

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2013
Note 4 — Redevelopment Assets — Continued
Redevelopment Assets October 1, September 30,
2011 Additions Deletions 2012

Brownsville/Matamores £ 15,932,058 $ 7359114 5 - $ 23,291,172
Olmito Switchyard 12,214,730 198,647 - 12,413,377
Total! Redevliopment

Assels $ 28146788 § 7,557,761 § - §  35704,549

=1

Note 5 — Disaggregation of Receivable and Payable Balances

Of the current receivables, 89% are due from the Cameron County Tax Assessor’s Office
for Vehicle Registration Fees outstanding at September 30, 2013. The Due from other
agencies consists of amounts pending reimbursement for construction project expenditures.
Accounts payable balances are comprised 32% from operations, contractors, and
professional services at September 30, 2013. The remaining 68% of accounts payable
represents the construction obligations for construction in process outstanding at September

30, 2013.

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS)

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2013

Note 6 — Non-Current Liabilities

Due to other agencies is comprised of the following projects:

Due to Other Agencies October 1, September 30,
2012 Additions Reductions 2013

Due to other governments -

West Rail Project $ 20,817,005 $ 5250005 % - $ 26,067,010
Due to other governinents -

Olmito Switch Yard Project 9,028,321 - - 9,028,321
TxDot FAA - South Padre

Island 2nd Access 5,215,447 425,877 - 5,641,324
TxDot FAA - West Parkway 2,244,589 - - 2,244,589
Total $ 37305362 § 5675882 S - § 42981244
Due to Other Agencies October 1, September 30,

2011 Additions Reductions 2012

Due to other governments -

West Rail Project $ 15,745,615 § 5383675 $ (312,285) § 20,817,005
Due to other governments -

Olmito Switch Yard Project 9,028,321 - - 9,028,321
TxDot FAA - South Padre

Island 2nd Access 4,763,809 446,638 - 5,215,447
TxDot FAA - West Parkway 2,234,612 9,977 - 2,244,589
Total $ 31,777,357 § 5840290 $ (312285) § 37,305,362

(Funds provided for the Brownsville/Matamoros West Rail project and the Olmito
Switchyard projects vary between from Federal, State, and Local funds.)

20



CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS)

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2013

Note 7 — Long-Term Bonds Payable

On Apri] 1, 2010, RMA issued $28.7 million of special revenue bonds, consisting of two
series of bonds, 2010A and 2010B both secured by vehicle registration fees of Cameron
County. The $13.2 million and $15.5 million of the 2010A and 2010B bonds were issued
as term bonds. The 2010A bonds carry interest rates of 2.0% to 5.0% and mature between
February 2012 and February 2026. The 2010B bonds carry an interest rate of 6.5%,
maturing on February 2036. All term bonds are subject to mandatory redemption in
prescribed amounts before the maturity dates. At September 30, 2013, $27,780,000 remains

outstanding.

In June 2012 the RMA and Cameron County entered inte SH550 Funding and
Development Agreement, a project titled “SHS550 Director Connector Transportation
Project.” This project will be a component of the total configuration of the SH 550 tolled
facility and upon completion, traffic using SH550 will have a route free of at-grade
intersections from I-69E (formally known as US77) to SH48 at the Port of Brownsville.
Cameron County issued Revenue and Tax bonds, Series 2012 (State Highway 550 Project)
$40,000,000 dated August 8, 2012 providing funding for this project as per “Funding
Agreement.” As a condition of funding, the Authority is obligated to repay the funding
together with interest the County will pay on the Bonds as well as an administrative fee
also known as a “CAF Fee” annually. The bonds carry interest rates of 2.125% to 5.0%
and mature between February 2017 and February 2032. At September 30, 2013
$40,000,000 remain outstandipg.

The bond issues are summarized as follows:

Balance as of Balance as of Due within one
Bonds Payable Qclober 1, 2012 Additions Reductions September 30, 2013 year
2010 Revenue Bonds s 28380000 S - 5§ (600,000) S 27,780,000 §  (765,000)
Plus; Premium 76,442 - {6,115) 70,327 -
2012 Reveue & Tax Bonds 40,000,000 - - 40,000,000 -
Plus: Premium 4,458,463 - (149,028) 4,309,435 -
$ 72,914,905 § - $ !755. 143! ) 72,159,762 3 65,000
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CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS)

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2013

Note 7 — Long-Term Bonds Payable — Continued

The bond issues are summarized as follows: Coatinued

Balance as of Balance as of Due within one
Bonds Payable QOctober 1, 201) Additions Reductions September 30, 2012 year
2010 Revenue Bonds $ 28780000 S - S (400,000) 5 28380,000 $  (600,000)
Plus: Premium 82,558 - {6,115) 76,443 -
2012 Reveue & Tax Bonds - 40,000,000 - 40,600,000 -
Plus: Premivm - 4,470,882 {12,420) 4,458,462 -
s 28,862,558 $ 44,470,382 3 5418.535g $ 72,914,905 3 {600,000)

The annual requirements to retirc revenue bonds outstanding at September 30, 2013 are as

follows:
2010A Bonds 2010B Bonds
Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
2014 § 765000 § 471,125 $ 1,236,125 § - $ 1,017,853 $ 1017853
2015 780,000 455,675 1,235,675 - 1,017,853 1,017,853
2016 800,000 435,875 1,235,875 - 1,017,853 1,017,853
2017 825,000 411,500 1,236,500 - 1,017,853 1,017,853
2018 850,000 384,250 1,234,250 - 1,017,853 1,017,853
2019.2028 8,225,000 1,662,238 9,887,238 1,270,000 976,248 2,246,248
2029-2036 - = - 14,265,000 4,471,249 18,736,249
§ 12245000 § 3!820.663 $ 16065663 § 15535000 § 10,536,762 § 26,071,762
2012 Revenue & Tax Bonds
Principal Interest Total

2004 § - $191L700 § 191L700

2015 - 1,911,700 1,911,700

2016 - 1,911,700 1,911,700

2017 840,000 1,899,100 2,739,100

2018 860,000 1,876,288 2,736,288

2015-2028 10,740,000 16,626,413 27,365,413

2029-20318 17,635,000 9,733,375 27,368,375

2039-2048 9,925,000 1,023,375 10,948,375

§_ 40,000,000 _$ 36,893,651 $ 76,893,651



CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF CAMERON COUNTY, TEXAS)

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2013

Note 8- Interest Capitalization/Expenditure

The RMA had capitalized inferest regarding projects funded by the 2010A & 2010B
revenue and 2012 Revenue and Tax bonds in the total amount of $151,452 and $1,403,620,
respectively. The remaining interest was expensed in the amount of $1,628,640 for the year
ending September 30, 2013,

Note 9 — Interlocal Agreements

Cameron County

On April 11, 2006 Cameron County (County) entered intc an agreement with the RMA
whereby the County would provide a loan of $250,000 for the purpose of assisting the
RMA in its organizational efforts. As of September 30, 2013, there have been no payments
on this loan and both parties have agreed that payments will be made in the subsequent
year. The RMA and Cameron County entered into an administrative agreement executed
on September 21, 2011. The agreement stipulated that Cameron County would provide
administrative services for RMA, and the County would be reimbursed $70,000 per year by
RMA. This agreement was terminated as of September 30, 2013, The RMA had also
utilized several County employees on a contractual basis for administrative and accounting
services. Effective September 30, 2013 many of these contracted services ceased and did
not continue into the subsequent year. The RMA has hired its own staff to fulfill these

duties.

Note 10 — Advertising
The RMA incurs advertising expenditures for the promotion of itself and its projects. These
expenditures are not capitalized to the individual projects and are expensed in the period
occurred.

Note 11 — Prior Period Adjustment

Below is a summary of the accumulated adjustments affecting the prior period.

Summary of Prior Period Adjustinent to Net Position Amount
Net amount of capital expenditures misclassified in prior year 5 92,993
Net affect of adjustment to accounts payable in the prior year (229,707)
Net affect of adjustment for misclassified debt reserve balances 427,157
Net affect of GASB 65 adjustment for years not presented (569,467
Total Prior Period adjustment to net position 3 (279,024)
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APPENDIX C
SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF INDENTURE OF TRUST, AS AMENDED

The following are (i} definitions contained in Indenture of Trust, as amended, between the Authority and the Trustee
and the Resolution approved by the Authority on August 14, 2014 (the “Resolution) and (ii) summaries of certain
provisions of the Indenture, as amended, which are not discussed in detail in the Qfficial Statement and are hereby
provided. Such summaries do not purport to be complete and are qualified in their entirety by reference 1o the
Indenture, as amended. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in the Official Statement or under this caption have
the meanings ascribed to them in the Indenture, as amended, and Resolution.

kukkpaay

DEFINITIONS CONTAINED IN THE INDENTURE, AS AMENDED, AND RESOLUTION

"20104:2014 Debt Service Reserve Account™ shall mean the 2010A Debt Service Reserve Account as
redesignated in connection with the issuance of the Bonds.

“Accounting Principles” shall mean the accounting principles described in the notes to the Financial
Statements as such principles may be changed from time to time to comply with State laws or regulations,

“Act” shall mean Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended.

“Additional Parity Bonds” shali mean the additional parity Vehicle Regisiration Fee Revenue Bonds
permitted to be issued by the Authority pursuant to Section 3.02 of the Indenture.

“Agreement” or “Prgject Agreement”™ shall mean thal certzin Transportation Project and Pledge Agreement
by and between the County and the Authority, dated as of March 4, 2010, as amended.

“dAmendment to the Indenture " shall mean the amendment to Section 3.2 of the Indenture as set forth in the
Supplemenial Indenture.

“Annual Debt Service” means for any annual period (any fiscal year or any other fwelve (12) consecutive
calendar month period), an amount equal to the sum of (i) all interest on the Parity Bonds which is due during such
period, plus (i) that portion of the Principal Installment or Installments of the Parity Bonds which is due during such
periad, as limited and calculated in the following manner:

(a) Except as modified below, (i) for any twelve (12) consecutive calendar month period
other than the calendar year, whether or not such period constitutes the Authority’s current fiscal year or
any future Authority fiscal year, the aggregate amount of interest on and Principal Instaliment of the Parity
Bonds which was paid or mandatorily redeemed or is scheduled 1o accrue and be paid or mandatorily
redeemed during such twelve (12) consecutive month period; and (ii) for any fiscal year while the
Authority’s fiscal year is the same as the calendar year, the aggregate amount of interest on and Principal
{nstallment of the Parity Bonds which was paid or mandatorily redeemed or is scheduled to accrue and be
paid or mandatorily redeemed afier January 1 of such fiscal year and on or before the next following
January 1; end

(b) As to any annual period prior to the date of any calculation, such requirements shall be
calculated solely on the basis of Parity Bonds which were Quistanding as of the first (1st) day of such
period; and as to any future year such requirements shall be calculated solely on the basis of Parity Bonds
Cutstanding as of the date of calculation; and
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(c) Notwithstanding the foregoing, all (i) amounts which are deposited to the credit of the
Debt Service Reserve Fund from original proceeds from the sale of any Parity Bonds and (ii) amounts
which have been or are expected to be realized as interest and investment earnings on amounts on deposit
in the Debt Service Fund (other than those amounts which are to be deposited into the Rebate Fund
pursuant 1o Section 4.06 of the Indenture) and which are used ar scheduled to be used to pay interest on or
Principal Installments of Parity Bonds during any annual period and (jii) any amounts received as Taxable
Bond Credit Revenues and deposited in the Debt Service Fund, shall be deemed to reduce Annual Debt
Service for any such annual period to the extent of such interest and investment eamings; and the amount
of such deposits shall be excluded from and shall not constitute Annual Debt Service for any such annual
period.

“Authority” shall mean the Cameron County Regional Mobility Authority, or its legal successors.

“duthorizing Law" shall mean Chapters 370 and 502, Texas Transportation Code, and the corresponding
Commission regulations, policies and procedures, as amended from time to time.

“Authorized Representative” shall mean shall mean the Chairman or the Vice Chairman of the Authority
designated to perform a specified act, to sign a specified document or 1o act generally on behalf of the Authority by
a written instrument furnished to the Trustee.

“dverage Annual Debt Service” shall mean the 10tal Annual Debt Service (as of the date of the calculation)
divided by the remaining number of years until the final maturity of the Parity Bonds. The Average Annual Debt
Service calculated under the Indenture shall remain in effect until the next date when such calculation is required
under the Indenture. For the purposes of calculating the Average Annual Debt Service, any fractional year shall be
included in the calculation as a full year.

“Blanket Letter of Representations” shall mean the Blanket Letier of Representations between the
Authority, the Paying Apgent/ Registrar and DTC.

“Board" shall mean the Board of Directors of the Authority.

“Bond Counsel” shall mean Bracewell & Giuliani LLP, Houston, Texas and The Lucio Group, PLLC,
Brownsville, Texas or such other nationally recognized bond counsel firm engaged by the Authority.

“Bond Resolutions” shall mean the resolutions from time to time adopted by the Authority authorizing the
Vehicle Registration Fee Revenue Bonds,

“Bonds" or “Series 2014 Bonds" shall mean the Authority’s Vehicle Registration Feec Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2014, authorized by the Resolution and the Pricing Certificate.

“Business Day” shall mean any day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, a day on which banking institutions in
the city where the corporate trust office of the Trustee or the Paying Agent/Registrar is located, which is initially
Houston, Texas, are authorized by law or executive order to close, or a legal holiday.

“Code™ shall mean the Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and all applicable Treasury
Regulations thereunder.

“Commission” shall mean the Texas Transportation Commission.
“Compiroifer” shall mean the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas.

“Construction Period” shall mean the period commencing on the date construction begins and ending on
the date construction is completed.



“Costs of Issuance” shall mean all costs to the extent incurred in connection with, and allocable to, the
issuance of an issue of the Bonds within the meaning of Section 147(g) of the Code including, but not limited to,
legal fees, financial advisory fees, bond insurance premiums, fiscal or escrow agent fees, printing fees, accounting
fees, consultant fees, verification fees, travel expenses, rating agency fees, fees of the Trustee and its counsel and
Attorney Genera) fees,

“Counsel s Opinion” shall mean an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel.
*County” shall mean Cameron County.

“Dated Date” shall mean the date set forih in the Pricing Certificate.

*Debt Service™ shall mean the Principat Installments and interest on the Parity Bonds,

“Debt Service Accounts™ shall mean, within the Debt Service Fund, one or more accounts or subaccounts
that may be created pursuant to the Bond Resolutions for any Series of Parity Bonds.

“Debt Service Fund” shall mean the fund and accounts so designated and created pursuant to Article IV of
the Indenture.

“Debt Service Reserve Fund" shall mean the fund and accounts so designated and crealed pursuant to
Article 1V of the Indenture.

“Depository” shall mean BBVA Compass or any successor designated as such by the Authority.

“DTC™ shall mean The Depository Trust Company of New York, New Yark, or any successor securities
depository.

“DTC Participant” shall mean brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations and
certain other organizations on whose behalf DTC was created to hold securitics 1o facilitate the clearance and
settlement of securities transactions among DTC Participants.

“Effective Date " shall mean the date the Amendment to the Indenture shall take effect.

“Eligible Investments” shal) mean any investments which the Authority is permitted to make under the laws
of the State of Texas, including the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code, as
amended.

“EMMA" shall mean the Electronic Municipal Market Access website of the MSRB, with the web address
www.emma.msrb.org,

“Escrow Agens” shall mean The Benk of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., and its successors in that
capacity.

“Escrow Agreement” shall mean that certain escrow agreement between the Authority and the Escrow
Agent in connection with the Bonds.

“Event of Default” shall mean any Event of Default described in Section 6.01 of the Indenture.

“Exempt Securities™ shall mean bonds or other evidences of obligations, the interest on which is exempt
from federal income taxation under Section 103(a) of the Code.

“Fair Market Value” shall mean as of any particular time:
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(a) as to Eligible Investments the bid and asked prices of which are published on a regular
basis in a financial journal or publication of general circulation in the United States of America, the bid
price for such Eligible Investments so published on or most recently prior to the date of valuation by the
Trustee, or

(b) as to Eligible Invesiments the bid and esked prices of which are not published on a
regular basis in a financial journal or publication of general circulation in the United States of America, the
average bid price on such Eligible Investments at the date of valuation by the Trustee, as reported to the
Trustee by any two nationally recognized dealers (in the opinion of the Trustee) in such Eligible
investments.

“Federal Payments” shall mean cash payments from the United States Treasury equal to 35% (or such
other percentage as may be determined under the Code) of the interest payable on any Bonds designated as and
determined to meet the requirements of section 54AA of the Code,

“Financial Advisor” shall mean Estrada Hinojosa & Company, Inc. and any successor firm thereto engaged
by the Authority.

“Financial Statements™ shall mean the audited annual financial statements of the Authority prepared by an
independent auditor.

“Fiscal Year” shall mean the year beginning each October 1 and ending the following September 30.

“Fund” shall mean any one or more, as the case may be, of the separate special funds created and
established or required to be maintained pursuant to the Indenture.

“Indenture” shall mean the Indenture of Trust by and between the Authority and the Trustee, dated as of
April 1, 2010, as amended from time to time.

“Initial Bond" shall mean the Initial Bond authorized by Section 3.3 of the Resolution and as approved in
final form by the Pricing Certificate.

“Interest Payment Date” shall mean, when used in connection with respect to the Bonds, February 15, 2015
and each August 15 and February 15 thereafter until maturity.

“Investments™ shail mean, for purpose of Section 7.02 of the indenture:

(a) direct noncallable obligations of the United States, including obligations that are
unconditionally guaranteed by the United States;

(b) noncallable obligations of an agency or instrumentality of the United States, including
obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the agency or instrumentality and that, on the
date the Authority authorizes the discharge by deposit of any or all of the Bonds, are rated as to investment
quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than AAA or its equivalent; and

{c) noncallable obligations of a state or an agency or a county, municipality, or other political
subdivision of a state that have been refunded and that, on the date the Authority authorizes the discharge
by deposit of any or all of the Bonds, are rated as to investment quality by a natiopally recognized
investment rating firm of not less than AAA or its equivalent.

“Issuance Date” shall mean the date on which each such Bond is authenticated by the Paying
Agent/Registrar and delivered to and paid for by the Underwriters.

“Aandatory Redemption Installment” shall mean, as of any particular date of calculation and with respect
to any Series of Parity Bonds, the amount of money to be applied to the mandatory redemption (including any
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mandatory redemption premium, if any) of Parity Bonds in any fiscal year prior to maturity pursuant to the
Indenture or any Bond Resolution, as such Mandatory Redemption Installment shall have been previously reduced
by the principal amount of eny Parity Bonds of such Series of the maturity with respect to which such Mandatory
Redemption Installment is payable which are purchased or redeemed by the Trustee in accordance with the
provisions of the Indenture or of any Bond Resolution, other than a Mandatory Redemption installment redemption
or purchase.

“Maximum Anrmual Debt Service™ shall mean, as of the calculation date, the greatest amount of the Annual
Debt Service calculated for any future fiscal year.

“MSRB" shall mean the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.

“Qfficial Statemen(" shall mean the final official statement authorized by the Board hereunder to be
prepared and distributed in connection with the offering for sale of the Bonds.

“Outstanding” shall mean, when used with reference to Parity Bonds, as of a particular date, all Parity
Bonds theretofore and thereupon delivered except: (a)any Bond canceled by or on behalf of the Authority at or
before said date, (b) any Bond defcased or no longer considered Outstanding pursuant to the provisions of the
Resolution or otherwise defeased as permitted by applicable law, and (c) any such Bond in lieu of or in substitution
for which another Bond shall have been delivered pursuant to the Resolution,

“Owner" or “Registered Owner” shall mean, when used with respect to any Bond, the person or entity in
whose name such Bond is registered in the Register. Any reference to a particular percentage or proportion of the
Owners shall mean the Owners at a particular time of the specified percentage or proportion in aggregate principal
amount of all Bonds then Outstanding under the Resolution.

“Parity Bonds” shall mean Vehicle Registration Fee Revenue Bonds comprised of the Prior Bonds, the
Bonds and each series of Additional Parity Bonds from time to time hercafter issued, but only to the extent such
bonds remain OQutstanding.

“Paying Agent/Registrar” shall mean The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., and iis
successors in that capacity.

“Pledged Revenue Fund® shall mean the fund so designated and created pursuant to Article IV of the
Indenture.

“Pledged Reveries” shall have the meaning assigned to that term in Article 11 of the Indenture.

“Pledged Vehicle Fees” shall mean the Vehicle Registration Fees derived from the imposition of the
additional vehicle registration fee pursuant o the Act and payable to the Authority by the County pursuant to the
Agreement.

“Pricing Certificate” shall mean the certificate executed by the Pricing Commiuee, which sets forth the
final terms of the Bonds, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C.

“Pricing Commitiee™ shall mean Pete Sepulveda, Ir. and David Allex who are authorized to act on behalf of
the Authority in selling and delivering the Bonds, with the Vice Chair of the Board designated as an alternate,

“Principal Instaliment” means, as of any particular date of compultation and with respect to Parity Bonds of
a perticular Serics, an amount of money equal to the aggregate of (a) the principal amount of Qutstanding Parity
Bonds of said Series which mature on a single future date, reduced by the aggregale principal amount of such
Outstanding Parity Bonds of such Series which would st or before said future date be retired as a result of
Mandatory Redemption Installments applied in accordance with the Indenture plus (b) the amount of any Mandatory
Redemption Installment payable on said future date for the retirement of any QOutstanding Parity Bonds of said
Series.
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“Principal Installment Payment Date” shall mean, when used in connection with any Bond, February 15 of
each year in which principal is scheduled to be paid.

“Prior Bonds” means the OQutstanding $13,245,000 Cameron County Regional Mobility Authority Vehicle
Registration Fee Revenue Bonds, Series 2010A and $15,535,000 Cameron County Regional Mability Authority
Vehicle Registration Fee Revenue Bonds, Series 2010B (Build America Bonds — Direct Payment).

“Project Agreement” shall mean that certain Transporiation Project and Pledge Agreement by and between
the County and the Authority, dated as of March 4, 2010, as amended.

“Projects” shall mean long-term transportation projects in the County as set forth in the Indenture,

“Record Date” shail mean, for any Interest Payment Datc, the first calendar day of the month of each
Interest Payment Date.

“Refunded Bonds™ means a portion of the Cemeron County Regional Mability Authority Vehicle
Registration Fee Revenue Bonds, Series 20104 10 be refunded with the proceeds of the Bonds.

“Register” or “Bond Register” shall mean the books of registration kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar in
which are maintained the names and addresses of, and the principal amounts of the Bonds registered 1o, each Owner.

“Regulations” shall mean the Treasury Regulations promulgated under the Code.

“Reserve Accounis” shall mean, within the Debt Service Reserve Fund, one or more accounts or
subaccounts that may be created pursuant to the Bond Resolutions for any Series of Parity Bonds.

“Reserve Fund Surety Policy” shall mean an insurance policy or other credit agreement, as such term is
defined by Section 1371.001, Texas Govemment Code, in a principal amount equal to the portion of the Reserve
Requirement to be satisfied and issued by a financial institution or insurance company with 2 rating, at the time of
issuance of the Parity Bonds and deposit into the Debt Service Reserve Fund, for iis long term unsecured debt or
claims paying ability in the highest letter category by at least one major municipal sccurities evaluation sources,

“Reserve Requirement” shall be computed upon the issuance of any Series of Parity Bonds and shall be the
lesser of: (i) 1.25 times the Average Annual Debt Service of the Parity Bonds, or (ii) the Maximum Annual Debt
Service, provided that the issuance of any Series of Bonds shall not cause the Reserve Requirement to increase by
more than 10% of the stated principal amount of such Series of Parity Bonds or 10% of the issue price of such Series
of Parity Bonds if the Series of Bonds are issued with more than a de minimis amount of original issue discount or
premium.

“Resolution” shall mean the resolution of the Authority authorizing the issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds
pursuant to the Indenture.

“Rule™ shall mean SEC Rule 15¢2-12, as amended from time to time.

“SEC” shall mean the United States Sceurities and Exchange Commission.

“Series” shall mean all of the Parity Bonds authenticated and delivered on issuance and pursuant io the
Indenture or any Bond Resofution authorizing the issuance of such Parity Bonds as a separate series of Parity Bonds
or any Parity Bonds thereafter authenticated and delivered in lieu of or in substitution for such Parity Bonds.

“Special Payment Date™ shall mean the date for payment for past due interest,

“Special Record Date” shall mean the new record date for the payment of interest established by the Paying

Agent/Registrar if interest on any Bond is not paid on the Interest Payment Date and continues to go unpaid for
thirty days thereafter.
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“State” or “State of Texas” shall mean the State of Texas.

“Surplus Fund” shall mean the Authority’s Surplus Fund so designated and created pursuant to Article IV
of the Indenture.

“Supplemenial Indenture” shall mean the first supplemental indenture between the Authority and the
Trustee, dated September 1, 2014, as originally executed or as it may from time to time be supplemented or

amended by one or more indenture supplemental thereto or amendments entered into pursuant to the applicable
provisions of the Indenture.

“Taxable Bond Credit Revenues™ shall mean payments made to the Authority from the federal government
or any agency or department thereof with respect to the return to the Authority of a portion of the interest paid by the
Authority on any taxable bonds, including but not limited to the Federal Payments.

“Trustee” shall mean The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N. A., and its successors in that
capacity.

“Underwriters” shall mean those underwriters designated in the Pricing Cetlificate and in the Bond
Purchase Agreement relating to the Bonds.

“Vehicle Registration Fees” shall mean, pursuant to the Authorizing Law, the Optional Vehicle
Registration Fee initially in the amount of $5.00, subsequently increased to $10.00 effective January 1, 2009.

“Vehicle Registration Fee Revenue Bonds™ shall mean onc or more series of bonds issued by the Authority
pursuant to the Indenture and the Bond Resolutions,

“Verification Agent” shall mean Grant Thomnton, LLP (or its successors or assigns).

fRemainder of page intemtionally lefi blank]
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CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE

*#References to the term “Bonds” contained within the “CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE" section
shall mean “Parity Bonds" for purposes of this “CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE" section.**

ARTICLEII
GRANTING CLAUSES

In order to secure the payment of the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on all Vehicle
Registration Fee Revenue Bonds as the same are issued and become due and payable, whether at maturity or by
prior redemption, and the performance and observance of all of the covenants and conditions herein contained, and
in consideration of the premises, the acceptance by the Trustee of the trusts hereby created, the purchase and
acceptance of the Vehicle Registration Fee Revenue Bonds by the Owners thereof, and other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Authority does hereby GRANT,
BARGAIN, CONVEY, ASSIGN and PLEDGE to the Trustee and its successors in trust hereunder, subject to the
provisions of the Indenture, all of the Authority’s right, title and interest in and to the following described properties
and interests, direct or indirect, whether now owned or hereafter acquired {collectively, the “Pledged Revenues™):

‘The Vehicle Registration Fee Revenue Bonds and all of the Authority's right, title and interest thereto
under the Agreement.

All moneys deposited or required to be deposited in the Pledged Revenue Fund, the Debt Service Fund and
the Debt Service Reserve Fund held by the Trustee pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture and all interest
carnings and investment income therefrom.

Any and all property of every kind and nature {including without limitation, cash, obligations or securities)
which may from time 1o time hereafier be conveyed, assigned, hypothecated, endorsed, pledged, mortgaged,
granted, or delivered to or deposited wilh, the Trustee as additional security hereunder by the Authority, or anyone
on behalf of the Authority, or which pursuant 1o any of the provisions hereof may come into the possession or
control of the Trustee as security hereunder, or of a recciver lawfully appointed hereunder, all of which property the
Trustee is authorized to receive, hold and apply according to the terms hereof.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD all the same, with all rights and privileges appurienant thereto, unto the
Trustee and its successors in trust forever.

IN TRUST, NEVERTHELESS, upon the terms and trusts herein set forth, for the equal and proportionate
benefit and security of the Owners from time to time of the Vehicle Registration Fee Revenue Bonds secured and to
be secured hereunder, or any of them, without preference, priority or distinction as to lien or otherwise of any
Vehicle Registration Fee Revenue Bond over any other Vehicle Registration Fee Revenue Bond, except as
otherwise expressly provided in the Indenture.

PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that if the Authority, its successors or assigns, shall well and truly pay, or cause
10 be paid, the principal of the Vehicle Registration Fee Revenue Bonds and the interest and redemption premium, if
any, due or to become due thereon, at the times and in the manner provided in the Vehicle Registration Fee Revenue
Bonds, and in the Bond Resolutions according to the true intent and meaning thereof, and shall cause the payments
to be made into the Funds maintained hereunder in the amounts required by the Indenture and the Bond Resolutions,
or shall provide, as permitted hereby, for the payment thereof by depositing with the Trustee or Paying
Agent/Registrar the entire amount due or to become due thereon, or an amount sufficient to provide for the payment
thereof, and shall pay or cause to be paid 1o the Trustee all sums of money due or to become due 10 it in accordance
with the terms and provisions hereof, then the Indenture and the rights and liens hereby granted shall cease,
lerminate and be void; otherwise the Indenture is to be and shall remain in full force and effect.

FEEERERFE
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ARTICLE IIi

AUTHORIZATION OF VEHICLE REGISTRATION FEE REVENUE BONDS; GENERAL TERMS AND
PROVISIONS OF VEHICLE REGISTRATION FEE REVENUE BONDS; ADDITIONAL PARITY BONDS
AND SUBORDINATE LIEN OBLIGATIONS

Section 3.01 Authorization of Bonds. a) The Bonds may be authorized from time to time by the Authority
pursuant to Bond Resolutions duly adopted by the Board, which Bond Resolutions shall specify the dates,
denominations, principal amounts, interest rates, maturities, redemption provisions, forms of bonds, manner of
payment, provision for execution and authentication, application of proceeds and all other terms and provisions of
the Bonds not otherwise provided herein.

(b) At or prior to the issuance of each series of Bonds pursuant to any Bond Resolution, the Authority
shall provide to the Trustee the following:

(i) a certified copy of the Bond Resolution;

{ii) the approving opinion of the Authority’s Bond Counsel with respect to such Series of
Bonds to the effect (i) that the Bonds are valid and binding obligations of the Authority except to the extent
that their enforceability may be limited by applicable provisions of the federal bankruptcy laws and any
other similar laws affecting the rights of creditors of political subdivisions generally, and except that such
enforceability is subject to general principles of equity and the exercise of judicial discretion (regardless of
whether such enforceability is considered in 2 proceeding in law or at equity), and (i) that the Bonds are
issued pursuant to the terms of the Indenture;

(iii) if such Series of Bonds are being issued to refund any previously issued Bonds, the
identity, redemption date and redemption price of the Bonds to be refunded;

(iv} a debt service schedule with regard to such Series of Bonds and all Bonds that will then
be Qutstanding afier the issuance of such Series of Bonds and refunding of any Bonds being refunded
thereby; and

(v} the amount of the Reserve Requirement, as such amount may have been modified based
upon the issuance of such Series of Bonds.

3.02 Additional Parity Bonds. The Authority reserves the right to issue, for any lawful purpose {including
the refunding of any previously issued Parity Bonds), one or more series of Additional Parity Bonds payable from
and sccured by a lien on the Pledged Revenues, on a parity with the Bonds, and any previously issued Additional
Parity Bonds; provided, however, that no Additional Parity Bonds may be issued unless:

{(a) The Additional Parity Bonds mature on, and interest is payable on, the Principal Installment
Payment Dates and Interest Payment Dates, respectively;

{b) There shail be on deposit in the Debt Service Reserve Fund, afier the issuance of the Additional
Parity Bonds, an amount equal to the Reserve Requirement on al! Bonds that will be Outstanding afier the issuance
of such Additional Parity Bonds;

(c) The Authority certifies that it is not in material default with the terms of the Indenture, any Bond
Resolution, or the Agreement; and

{d) The Authority has received a certificate of its financial advisor or accountant meeting the
requirements set forth below which provides that Vehicle Registration Fees over the preceding fiscal year or for a
consecutive 12-month period out the |5-month period immediately preceding the month in which the Bond



Resolutions authorizing Additional Parity Bonds is adopted, were at least 150 percent of the Maximum Annual Debt
Service, taking into account the outstanding Bonds and the Additional Parity Bonds to be issued, provided however,
such requirement shall not apply to the issuance of any Series of Additional Parity Bonds for refunding purposes
that will have the result of reducing the Maximum Annual Debt Service requirements on Parity Bonds; and

Section 3.03 Subordinate Lien Obligations. The Authority reserves the right to issue, for any lawful
purpose, bonds, nates or other obligations secured in whole or in part by liens on all or part of the Pledged Revenues
that are junior and subordinate 1o the lien on Pledged Revenues securing payment of the Parity Bonds. Such
subordinate lien obligations may be further secured by any other source of payment lawfully available for such
purposes. Such subordinate lien obligations will provide that they are payabic from all or part of the Pledged
Revenues only if and to the extent such amounts could otherwise be deposited to the Debt Service Reserve Fund (for
Reserve Fund Surety Policy obligations) or to the Surplus Fund.

AR SRRSO
ARTICLE IV
FUNDS AND INVESTMENTS
Section 4.01 Creation of Funds.
There are hereby created the following Funds:
(A) Pledged Revenue Fund;
(B) Debt Service Fund;

(C) Debt Service Reserve Fund, inclusive of any accounts created under the Bond
Resolutions;

(D) Project Fund;
(E) Rebate Fund; and
(F) Surplus Fund.
Each Fund, other than the Project Fund and Surplus Fund, shall b maintained by the Trustee separate and
apart from all other funds of the Authority. The Authority shall maintain its Project Fund and Surplus Fund at a
depository of the Authority's selection and in accordance with the Bond Resolutions. The Pledged Revenue Fund,

the Debt Service Fund and the Debi Service Reserve Fund shall constitute trust funds which shall be held in trust by
the Trustee solely for the benefit of the Owners of the Bonds,

Section 4.02 Pledred Revenue Fund.

Immediately upon receipt of the Vehicle Registration Fees, the Authority shall identify, segregate and
deposit into the Pledged Revenue Fund all Pledged Vehicle Fees. Money in the Pledged Revenue Fund shall be held
in trust by the Trustee and applied in the following manner and order of priority:

(A) First, to the payment of fees and expenses of the Trustee and Paying Agent/Registrar;
(B) Second, to the Debt Service Fund, taking into account any money afready on depasit in

the Debt Service Fund for the Bonds, to make the following deposits on or before the fifth Business Day
prior to the first day of each calendar month:



(i} approximately onc-sixth {/6) of the interest coming due on the Bonds (or, if the
first Interest Payment Dale is less than six months away, thc Trustee shall allocate a pro rata
amount from the Pledged Revenue Fund an amount sufficient to total the interest payable on the
Bonds in equal monthly installments) on the next succeeding Interest Payment Date established
for the Bonds;

(ii) approximately one-twelfth (1/12} of the principal due on the next Principal
Installment Payment Date that is within 12 months (or, if the first Principal Installment Payment
Date is less than twelve months away, the Trustee shall allocate a pro rata amount from the
Pledged Revenue Fund sufficient to total the principal payable on the Bonds in equal monthly
instajlments); and

(iii) if a Mandatory Redemption Instaliment is due on the Bonds within the next
succeeding 12 months, approximately one-twelfth {1/12) of the Mandatory Redemption
installment falling due on the next succeeding Sinking Fund Installment payment date; and

(C) Third, to the Debt Service Reserve Fund alt amounts required by the Indenture and the
Bond Resolutions to attain the Reserve Requirement with respect to each account created therein;

(D) Fourth, to the extent required, to the Rebate Fund any amounts required to be deposited
therein; and

(E) Fifth, to the Project Fund Surplus Fund for use by the Authority for any lawful purpose.
Moneys can be transferred from the Pledged Revenue Fund 1o either the Project Fund or the Surplus Fund,
at the discretion and written direction of the Authority, al any time provided that immediately prior 1o any
such transfers the deposits required by Sections 4.02(A) through (A) of the Indenture have been made or
provided for.

Section 4.03 Debt Service Fupd. Money in the Debt Service Fund shall be held in trust by the Trustee.
Within the Debt Service Fund, one or more accounts for subaccounts may be created pursuant to the Bond
Resolutions for any Series of Bonds (“Debt Service Accounts” or such term as further designated in the Bond
Resolutions). To the extent applicable, the Authority shall deposit or cause to be deposited into the Debt Service
Fund amounts paid to the Authority as pre-issuance accrued interest on the Bonds, Bond proceeds used to pay
capitalized interest on the Bonds, transfers from the Pledged Revenue Fund as provided in Section 4.02(A) of the
Indenture, transfers from the Debt Service Reserve Fund as provided in Section 4.02(B) of the Indenture, and, 1o the
extent necessary, additionzl Pledged Revenues in such amounts and at such times to provide that amounts necessary
to pay interest and Principal Installments, due on the Bonds, Taxable Bond Credit Revenues may also be deposited
to the Debt Service Fund, at the discretion of the Authority. The Trustee shall transfer on each Interest Payment
Date and each Principal Installment Payment Date to the Paying Agent/Registrar such amounts in the Debt Service
Fund to pay Principal Installments and interest on the Bonds as the same becomes due. The Trustee shall make all
such transfers as directed in writing by the Authority such that the Authority shall be in compliance with the
guidelines of the Depository Trust Company, as amended from time to time,

Section 4.04 Debt Service Reserve Fund. Within the Debt Service Reserve Fund, one or mare accounts or
subaccounts may be created pursuant to the Bond Resolutions for any Series of Bonds (the *Reserve Accounts”).
The Reserve Accounts shall constitute trust funds which shall be held in trust for the Owners of such Series of
Bonds to which they are pledged. The amounts in the Reserve Accounts (other than the interest income thereon,
which shall be transferred either to (i) the Debt Service Fund or in the case of Bonds issued under section of 54AA
of the Code, (ii) the Project Fund during the Construction Period} shall be pledged to the payment of the Bonds. The
Authority reserves the right to issuz Additional Parity Bonds which are not secured by the Reserve Accounts;
provided that the Authority may create a separate account within the Debt Service Reserve Fund for the benefit of
any such Series of Bonds, the proceeds of which account (other than the interest income thereon, which may be
transferred to the Pledged Revenue Fund) shall be pledged to the payment of such Series,

Money in the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall be held in trust by the Trustee, The Debt Service Reserve
Fund shall initially be funded as provided in the Bond Resolutions.
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{A) If, on any Interest Payment Date or Principal Installment Payment Date, afier transferring
funds 1o the Debt Service Fund as provided in Section 4.02 of the Indenture, the Debt Service Reserve
Fund contains amounts less than the Reserve Requirement, the Trustee shall withdraw from the Pledged
Revenue Fund and deposit on a pro rata basis into each account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund the
amount required to attain the Reserve Requirement. If there are not sufficient funds in the Pledged
Revenue Fund to fund the Reserve Requirement, the Trustee shall deposit into the Debt Service Reserve
Fund all interest and income eamed from the investment of amounts credited to the Debt Service Reserve
Fund until the Reserve Requirement is again attained; provided, however, that interest camings from the
Debt Service Reserve Account for Bonds issued under section 54AA of the Code shall be transferred 1o the
Project Fund during the Construction Period as provided in Section 4.04 of the Indenture.

(B) So long as the Debt Service Reserve Fund contains amounts at least equal to the Reserve
Requirement, all eamnings on the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall be transferred and deposited, as
collected, into the Debt Service Fund,

(C) Amounts deposited into the Debt Service Reserve Fund (i) shall be used 1o pay interest
on or Principal Installments of the Bonds when insufficient funds are available for such purpose in the Debt
Service Fund or (ii) may be applied toward the payment of interest on or Principal Installments of Bonds in
connection with the refunding or redemption of such Bonds.

(D} The Authority expressly reserves the right at any time to satisfy all or part of the Reserve
Requirement by oblaining for the benefit of the Debt Service Reserve Fund one or more Reserve Fund
Surety Policies. In the event the Authority elects 1o substitute at any time a Reserve Fund Surety Policy for
any funded amounts in the Debt Service Reserve Fund, it may direct the Trustee in writing to apply any
bond preceeds thereby released, to the greatest extent permitted by law, to any purposes for which the
Bonds were issued and any other funds thereby released to any purposes for which such funds may lawfully
be used, including the payment of debt service on the Bonds. The premium for any Reserve Fund Surety
Policy shall be paid from bond proceeds or other funds of the Authority lawfully available for such
purpose. Any Reserve Fund Surety Policy shall be authorized by resolution. All amounts deposited in or
required to be deposited in the Debt Service Reserve Fund may be used to pay obligations incurred to
providers of Reserve Fund Surety Policies, including amounis advanced thereunder, interest on such
advances and related costs and expenses.

Section 4.05 Project Fund and Surplus Fund. Subject to the provisions of the Indenture described under
Pledged Revenue Fund herein, there shall be deposited into either the Project Fund or the Surplus Fund, at the
discretion and written direction of the Authority, any amounts remaining in the Pledged Revenue Fund. Afier
teansfer 1o either the Project Fund or the Surplus Fund, such amounts may be used by the Authority for any lawful
purpose free from the lien and pledge of the Indenture, and as further prescribed in the Bond Resolutions.

Section 4.06 Rebate Fund.

{A) Any provision hereof to the contrary notwithstanding, amounts credited to the Rebate
Fund shall be free and clear of any lien created by the Indenture. The Trustee shall transfer from the
Pledged Revenue Fund to the credit of the Rebate Fund each amount directed in writing by the Authority to
be transferred thereto. Amounts on deposit in the Rebate Fund shall be used solely to make payments 1o
the Uniled States under Section 148 of the Code and to pay costs related to the calculation of the amount
due,

(B) Within five days after each transfer of funds to the Rebate Fund necessary to meet the
requirements of the Bond Resolutions or Section 4.06 of the Indenture, the Trustee shall withdraw from the
Rebate Fund and pay to the United States the balance of the Rebate Fund. All payments to the United
States pursuant to Section 4.06 of the Indenture shall be (i) made by the Trustee for the account and in the
name of the Authority, {ii) paid by check mailed by registercd mail (return receipt requested), addressed to
the Internal Revenue Service Center, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19255 (or such other Service Center as
may be designated by the Intemnal Revenue Service from time to time), and (iii) accompanied by the
relevant Internal Revenue Service Form 8038-T provided by the Authority.
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(C) The Trustee shall preserve copies (either in original form or by image) of all statements
and forms received from the Authority pursuant to the Indenturc and all records maintained by it of
transactions in the Rebate Fund and shall deliver such materials to the Authority within 60 days following
the discharge of the last of the Bonds.

(D) The Trustee may in good faith conclusively rely on the instructions of the Authority with
regard to any actions to be taken by it pursuant to Section 4.06 of the Indenture and shall have no liability
for any consequences of any failure of the Authority to supply accurate or sufficient instructions,

(E) If at any time during the term of the Indenture the Trustee or the Authority desires to take
any action that would otherwise be prohibited by the terms of Section 4.06 of the Indenture, such person
will be permitted to take such action only if it shall first obtain and provide to the other person named
herein an opinion of Bond Counsel (acceptable to both the Trustee and the Authority) to the effect that such
action will not adversely affect the exclusion of interest on the Bonds from gross income of the holders
thereof for federal income tax purposes and shall be in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and
the terms of the Indenture.

Section 4.07 Investments; Eamnings. Monies deposited into the Pledged Revenue Fund, the Debt Service
Fund and the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall be invesied and reinvested in Eligible Investments as directed in
writing to the Trustee by the Authority; provided that all such Eligible Investments shall be directed by the
Authority in such manner that the money required to be expended from any Fund will be available at the proper time

or times.

(A) All investments and any profits realized from or interest accruing on such investments
shall belong to the Fund from which the monies for such investments were taken (excepl as otherwise
expressly provided in the Indenture). All losses on investments shall be charged against the Fund to which
such investments are credited. The Trustee shall have the right to have sold in the open market a sufficient
amount of any such investments at any time that a Fund does not have sufficient uninvested funds on hand
1o meet the obligations payable out of such Fund. The Trustee shal! not be liable or responsible for any loss
resulting from any such investment or resulting from the sale of any such invesiment as herein authorized.

(B} At the written direction of the Authority, a portion of the investment income from any
Fund may be paid directly to the Rebate Fund, free and clear of the lien and pledge of the Indenture, for
payment to the United States pursuant 10 provisions of the Indenture as described in Rebate Fund herein,
in order to maintain the tax-exempt status of the Bonds,

(C) The Trustee may make any investment through its or an affiliate’s investment
department, and the Trustee or such affilisle may receive compenszlion in connection with such
investments. As amounts invested are needed for disbursement from any Funds, the Trustee shall couse a
sufficient amount of the investments credited to that Fund 1o be redeemed or sold and converted into cash
1o the credit of that Fund. Securilies iransaction charges incident to any purchase, sale, or redemption of
Eligible Investments shall be charged to the Authority.

(D) The Authority by its execution of the Indenture covenants to restrict the investment of
money in the Funds created under the Indenture in such manner and to such extent, if any, as may be
necessary, after taking into account reasonable expectations at the time the Bonds are delivered to their
original purchaser, so that the Bonds will not constitute arbitrage bonds under the Code and the
Regulstions, and the Trustee hereby agrees to comply with the Authority’s written instructions with respect
1o the investment of money in the Funds created under the Indenture; provided however, in the sbsence of
written investment instructions from the Authority, the Trustee shall not be responsible or liable for
keeping the moneys held by it hereunder fully invested.

(E} The Authority has covenanted to provide the Trustee with written instructions lo assure
that any amounts that, in accordance with the Code and applicable regulations, are required 1o be invested
at a restricted yield will be invested either (i} in Exempt Securities or (ii) at a yield that is not materially
higher than the yield on the Bonds, determined in accordance with the Code and applicable Regulations,
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unless in the opinion of Bond Counsel, investment of such at a higher rate will not adversely affect the
exclusion from gross income of interest an the Bonds for federal income tax purposes. For the purpose of
applying Section 4.07 of the Indenture, amounts on deposit in each Fund shall be accounted for on a first
in, first out basis. The Trustee, at the Authority’s direction, is authorized to yield restrict any investment in
accordance with Article VII1 of the Bond Resolutions.

(F) For the purpose of determining the amount on deposit to the credit of any such Fund,
obligations in which money in such Fund shall have been invested shall be valued at the Fair Market Value.
The Trustee shall provide a valuation of the Eligible Investments in the Funds established under the
Indenture as of the tast Business Day of each month.

LIS L2 T 2L 1]

ARTICLE Y
COVENANTS OF THE AUTHORITY

Section 5.01 Payment of Bonds and Performance of Obligations. The Authority covenants to promptly
pay or cause to be paid the principal of, redemption premjum, if any, and interest on the Bonds as the same become
due and payable, whether at maturity or by prior redemption, in accordance with the terms of the Bonds and the
Bond Resolutions; to pay when due all fees, charges and other amounts due to the Trustce and the Paying
AgentRegistrar for the discharge of their duties hereunder; and to faithfully keep and perform all of its covenants,
undertakings and agreements contained in the Indenture, the Agreement, the Bond Resolutions and the Bonds.

Section 5.02 Recordation and Executipn of Security Instruments. The Authority covenants 10 cause the

Indenture, any supplemental indentures, and all other security instruments, financing statements and supplements
thereto that may be necessary, to be filed, recorded, and refiled, in such manner, at such times and in such places as
may be required by law in order to fully preserve and protect the rights and security of the Owners of the Bonds and
to perfect and preserve the lien of the Indenture. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Authority
shall execute and deliver such additional instruments and perform such additional acts as may be necessary and
proper afler the execution of the Indenture and to transfer 1o any successor Trustee or Trustees the assets, powers,
instruments and funds held in trust hereunder and 1o confirm the lien of the Indenture with respect 1o any Bond or
Bonds, and shall take all action that may at any time be necessary, including those in the opinion of the Trustee, to
secure the interests of the Owners of the Bonds.

Section 5.03 Title; Encumbrances of Pledged Revenues. The Authority covenants that it has good and

indefeasible title to the Pledged Vehicle Fees, subject to the assignments and pledges contained herein. So long as
any Bonds remain Outstanding, except as permitted by provisions of the Indenture as described in Additional Parity
Bonds and Subordinate Lien Obligations herein, the Authority covenants not to sell, transfer, assign, pledge,
encumber, mortgage or otherwise dispose of, directly or indirectly, by merger or otherwise, or cause or suffer same,
or create or allow 1o accrue or exist any lien upon, all or any part of its interest in the Pledged Revenues or any
portion thereof, except for the lien of the Indenture.

Section 5.04 Pledsed Revenues Not Encumbered. The Pledged Revenues are not in any manner pledged
to the payment of any debt or obligation of the Authority other than the Bonds. The Authority covenants that it will
not in any manner pledge or further encumber the Pledged Revenues unless such pledge or encumbrance is junior
and subordinate to the lien and pledge hereunder securing the Bonds,

Section 5.05 Collection of Pledsed Vehicle Fees. Subject 1o the provisions of applicable law and the
Agreement, the Authority covenants and agrees to use its best efforts to cause the County Lo remit 1o the Authority,
all Vehicle Registration Fees to provide for the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds,




Section 5.06 Amendment of Agreement. The Authority covenants not to cause any amendment of the
Agreement that will in any manner matenially impair the rights of the Owners of the Bonds.

LEEES EE L R

ARTICLE VI
DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 6.01 Events of Defauvlt. An Event of Defavlt hereunder shall consist of any of the following acts
or occurrences:

(A) failure to pay when due Principal Instaliments or interest on any Bond;

{B) failure to deposit to the Debt Service Fund money sufficient for the payment of any Principal
Installments or interest payable on the Bonds by no later than the date when such Principal
Installment or interest becomes due and payable; or

{C) default in the performance, or breach, of any covenant or agreement on the part of the
Authority contained in the Indenture {other than a covenant or agreement the default in the
performance or observance of which is elsewhere in this Section specifically addressed) and
continuance of such default or breach for a period of 30 days of a written notice is provided
pursuant to Section 6.03 of the Indenture.

Section 6.02 Notices. In order 1o provide the Authority with information with respect 10 jts obligations
under the Indenture, the Trustee shall provide the Authority the following notices:

(A) Notice of any draws upon the Debt Service Reserve Fund which are required to be transferred
to the Debt Service Fund for the payment of Principal Installments of or intcrest on any
Bonds, together with the description of the amount drawn; and

(B) Notice of transfers to the Surplus Fund pursuant to Section 4.02 and Scction 4.05 of the
Indenture

Section 6,03 Notice of Default. The Trustee shall also be required to give prompt notice to the Authority
of the occurrence of any Event of Default hereunder of which the Trustee has actual knowledge.

Section 6.04 Remedies in General. If an Event of Default hereunder shall occur and be continuing, then, in
addition to all of the other rights and remedies pranted to the Trustee hercunder, the Truslee in its discretion, subject
to the provisions of the Indenture, may proceed to protect and enforce its rights and the rights of the Owners of
Bonds by suit, action or proceeding in equity or a1 law or otherwise, whether for the specific performance of any
covenant or agreement contained in the Indenture, the Bond Resolutions or the Bonds or in aid of the execution of
any power granted in the Indenture or for the enforcement of any other legal, equitable or other remedy, as the
Trustee, being advised by counsel, shall deem most effectual to protect and enforce any of the rights of the Trustee
or such Owners of the Bonds, including, without limitation, the right to seek a writ of mandamus issued by a court
of competent jurisdiction compelling the members or officers of the Authority to make payment of the Pledged
Vehicle Fees or 1o observe and perform such covenant, obligations or conditions of the Indenture or the Agreement.

Section 6.05 Appointment of Receivers. [f an Event of Default hereunder shall occur and be continuing,
and upon filing of a bill in equity or commencement of other judicial proceedings to enforce the rights of the Trustee
and the Owners hereunder, the Trustee shall be entitled as a matter of right, and 1o the exient permitted by law, to the
appointment of a receiver or receivers of the Pledged Revenues and the income, rents, profits and use thereof
pending such proceedings, with such powers as the court making such appointment shzll confer.

C-15



Section 6.06 Trustee May Act Without Possession of Bonds. All rights of action under the Indenture or
under any Bonds may be enforced by the Trustee without possession of any of the Bonds or the production thereof
on any trial or other proceedings relative thereto, and any such suit or proceedings instituted by the Trustee shall be
brought in its name, as Trustee for the ratable benefit of the Owners of the Bonds, subject to the provisions of the
Indenture.

Section 6.07 Trustee as Attomney. in Fact. The Trustee is hereby appointed (and the Owners of the Bonds,
by taking and owning same from time to time, shall be deemed to have so appointed the Trustee) the true and lawful
attorney in fact of the Owners of the Bands, to make or file, in the names of the Owners of the Bonds, or in behalf of
all Owners of the Bonds as a class, any proof of debt, amendment to proof of debt, petition or other document, and
to do and perform any and all acts and things for and in the name of the Owners of the Bonds as a class as may be
recessary or advisable, in the judgment of the Trustee, in order to have the claims of the Owners of the Bonds
against the Authority approved in any equity receivership, insolvency, liquidation, bankrupicy, reorganization or
ather proceedings to which the Authority shall be a party and lo receive payment of or on account of such claims.
Any such receiver, assignee, liquidator or trustee is hereby authorized by each of the Owners to make such payments
to the Trustee, and, in the event that the Trustee shall consent to the making of such payments directly to the
Owners, to pay lo the Trustee any amount due for compensation and expenses of the Trustee, including counsel fees,
costs and expenses, incurred up to the date of such distribution, and the Trustee shall have full power of substitution
and delegation in respect of any such powers.

Section 6.08 Remedies Not Exclusive. No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved 1o the Trustee is
inlended to be exclusive of any other available remedy or remedies, bul each and every such remedy shall be
cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or under the Bonds, or now or hereafter
existing at law or in equity or by statute. No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any
default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such defanlt or acquiescence
therein, and every such right and power may be exercised from time to time and as ofien as may be deemed
expedient.

Section 6.09 Limitation on Suits. All rights of action in respect of the Indenture shall be exercised only by
the Trustee, and no Owner of any Bond secured lereunder shall have any right to institute any suit, action or
proceeding at law or in equity for the appointment of a receiver or for any other remedy hereunder or by reason
hercof, unless and until the Trustee shall have received written request of the Owners of not less than twenty-five
percent (25%) in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding snd shall have been fumnished
reasonable indemnity and shall have refused or neglected for ten (10) days thereafier to institute such suit, action or
proceedings. The making of such request and the furnishing of such indemnity shall in each and every case be
conditions precedent to the execution and enforcement by any Owner of any Bond of the powers and remedies given
to the Trustee hereunder and 10 the institution and maintenance by any such Owner of any acticn or cause of action
for the appointment of a receiver or for any other remedy hereunder, but the Trustee may, in its discretion, and when
duly requested in writing by the Owners of not less than twenty-five percent (25%) in aggregate principal amount of
the Bonds then Qutstanding and when fumnished indemnity satisfactory to protect it against expenses, charges and
liability shall, forthwith, take such appropriate action by judicial proceedings or otherwise in respect of any existing
default on the part of the Authority as the Trustee may deem expedient in the interest of the Owners of the Bonds.

Nothing contained in Article VI of the Indenture, however, shall affect or impair the right of any QOwner,
which shall be absolute and unconditional, to enforce the payment of the Principal Installments and interest on the
Bonds of such Owner, but only out of the moneys for such payment as herein provided, or the obligation of the
Authority, which shall also be absolute and unconditional, to make payment of the Principal Installments and
interest on the Bonds issued hercunder, but only out of the funds provided herein for such payment, to the respective
Owners thereof at the time and place stated in said Bonds.

Section 6.10 Risght of Owners of the Bonds te Direct Proceedings. Notwithstanding any provision of the
Indenture to the contrary, the Owners of more than fifty percent (50%0) in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds
then Outstanding shall have the right, at any time, by an instrument or instrumenis in writing executed and delivered
to the Trustee, to direct the time, method and place of conducting all proceedings to be taken in connection with the
enforcement of the terms and conditions of the Indenture or for any remedy available to the Trustee or exercising
any trust or power conferred on the Trustee or any other proceedings hereunder; provided, however, that such
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direction shall not be contrary to law or the provisions of the Indenture, and the Trustee shall have the right to
decline to follow any such direction if the Trustee in good faith shall determine that the proceeding so directed
would involve it in personal liability or would be unjustly prejudicial to the Owners of the Bonds not consenting.

Section 6.11 Restoration of Rights and Remedies. If the Trustee or any Owner of a Bond has instituted

any proceeding to enforce any right or remedy under the Indenture and such proceeding has been discontinued or
abandoned for any reasan, or has been determined adversely to the Trustee or to such Owner of a Bond, then and in
every such case the Authority, the Trustee and the Owners of the Bonds shall, subject to any determination in such
proceeding, be restored severally and respectively to their former positions hereunder, and thereafier all rights and
remedies of the Trusiee and the Owners of the Bonds shall continue as though no such proceeding had been
instituted.

Section 6.2 Waiver of Stay or Extension Laws. To the extent that it may lawfully do so, the Authority
covenants that it will not at any time insist upon, plead or in any manner whatsoever claim or take the benefit or

advantage of any stay or extension law whenever or wherever enacted, which may affect the covenants or the
performance of the Indenture. The Autherity also covenants that it will not otherwise hinder, delay or impede the
execution of any power herein granted to the Trustee,

Section 6.13 Delay or Omission Not Waiver, No delay or omission of the Trustee or of any Owner of any
Bond to execcise any right or remedy accrving upon any Event of Default hereunder shall impair any such right or
remedy or constitute a waiver of any such Event of Defaull or an acquiescence therein. Every right and remedy
given by Article VI or by law to the Trustee or to the Owners may be exercised from time to time, and as often as
may be deemed expedient, by the Trustee or by the Owners of the Bonds, as the case may be.

AL R R L2 ]

ARTICLE VI
DISCHARGE

Section 7.01 Discharge by Payment. When all Bonds have been paid in full as to principal and as to
interest and premium, if any, or when all Bonds have become duc and payable, whether at maturity or by prior
redemption or otherwise, and the Authority shall have provided for the payment of the whole amount due or to
become due on all Bonds then outstanding, including all interest which has accrued thereon or which may accrue to
the date of maturity or redemption by depositing with the Trustee or the Paying Agent/Registrar, for payment of
such outstanding Bonds and the interest thereon and any premium which may be due thereon, the entire amount due
or to become due thereon, or amounts and investments sufficient to provide for such payment as provided in the
Bond Resolutions, and the Authority shall alse have paid or caused to be paid all sums payable hercunder by the
Authority, including the compensation due or to become due the Trustee, then the Trustee shall, upon receipt of a
letter of instructions from the Authority requesting the same, discharge and release the lien of the Indenture and
execute and deliver to the Authority such releases or other instruments as shall be required to release the lien hereof.

Section 7.02 Discharge by Deposit. The Authority may discharge its obligation to the Owners of any or all
of the Bonds to pay principal, interest end redemption premium (if any) thereon in any manner then permitted by
law, including, but not limited to, by depositing with any paying agent for such Bonds either: (i) cash in an amount
equal to the principal amount and redemption premium, if any, of such Bonds plus interest thereon to the date of
maturity or redemption, or (ii) pursuant to an escrow or trust agreement, cash and/or Investments in principal
amounts and maturities and bearing interest at rates sufficient (in the opinion of an independent certified public
accountant) to provide for the timely payment of the principal amount and redemption premium, if any, of such
Bonds plus interest thereon 1o the date of maturity or redemption; provided, however, that if any of the Bonds are 10
be redeemed prior to their respective dates of malurity, provision shall have been made for giving notice of
redemption as provided in the Bond Resolution authorizing such Bonds. Upon such deposit, such Bonds shall no
longer be regarded to be Outstanding or unpaid.
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For the purpose of Section 7.02 of the Indenture, *Investments” shall mean:

(a) direct noncallable obligations of the United States, including obligations that are
unconditionally guarantecd by the United States;

(b) noncaliable obligations of an agency or instrumentality of the United States, including
obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the agency or instrumentality and that, on the
date the Authority suthorizes the discharge by deposit of any or all of the Bonds, are rated as to investment
quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than AAA or its equivalent; and

(c) noncatlable obligations of a state or an agency or a county, municipality, or other political
subdivision of a state that have been refunded and that, on the date the Authority authorizes the discharge
by deposit of any or all of the Bonds, are rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized
investment rating firm of not less than AAA or its cquivalent.

LA L]

ARTICLE VIl
THE TRUSTEE

Section 8,01 Acceptance of Trusts. The Trustee, for itself and its successors, hereby accepts the trusts
under the Indenture, but only upon the following terms and conditions set forth in this Article.

(a) Notwithstanding any provision of the Indenture 10 the contrary, prior to an Event of Default
hereunder, and afier the curing of any such Event of Default, the Trustee shall not be liable for the performance of
any duties, except such duties as are specifically set forth in the Indenture, and no implicd covenants or obligations
shall be read into the Indenture against the Trustee, In case of an Event of Default which has not been cured, the
Trustee shall exercise such of the rights and powers vested in it by the Indenture and shall use the same degree of
care and skill in its exercise thereof as a prudent person would exercise or use under the circumstances in the
conduct of his own affairs.

(b) In the absence of bad faith on the part of the Trustee, the Trustee may conclusively rely upon the
truth, completeness and accuracy of the letters of instruction, statements, centificates, opinions, certified resolutions
and other certificd showings conforming to the requirements of the Indenture.

(c) The Trustee may execute any of the trusts or powers hereof and perform any duties required of it,
by or through attomneys or agents selected by it with reasonable care, and shall be entitled to, and shall be protected
in relying upon, advice of counsel concerning all maners of trust hereof and its duties hereunder, and may in all
cases pay such reasonable compensation as il shall deem proper 1o all such attomeys and agents as may reasonably
be required and employed in connection with the trusts hereof, and the Trustee shall not be responsible for the acts
or negligence of such attorneys, agents or counse), if selecled with reasonable care.

{d) The Trustee shall not be responsible for any recitals herein, in the Bond Resolutions or in the
Bonds. The Trustee may require of the Authority full information and advice as to the performance of the
covenants, conditions and agreements contained in the Indenture, The recitals and statements of fact and warranties
contained in the Indenture, the Bond Resolutions and in the Bonds shall be taken as statements by the Authority and
shall not be considered as made by or as imposing any obligation or liability upon the Trustee.

(e) Excepl as otherwise provided in the Indenture, the Trustee shall not be bound to recognize any
person as an Owner of any Bond or to take action at such person’s request, unless such person’s name appears as the
Registered Owner of such Bond in the Register.

(N Except as otherwise expressly provided or fairly implied by the provisions of the Indenture, the
Trustee shall not be obligated and may not be required to give or furnish any notice, demand, report, request, reply,



statement, advice or opinion to any Owner of any Bond or to the Authority or any other person, and the Trustee shall
not incur any liability for ils failure or refusal to give or furnish same unless obligated or required to do so by
express provision or by fair implication of the provisions thereof,

(g) Nothing herein contained shall relieve the Trustee from liability for its own negligent action or
failure to act or its own willful misconduct, except that the Trustee shall not incur any liability (i) for any error of
Jjudgment made in good faith by a responsible officer or responsible officers thereof, unless it shall be proved that it
was negligent in ascertaining the pertinent facts, or (ii) in respect of any action taken or omitted to be taken by it in
good faith in accordance with the direction of the Owners of the percentage of the Bonds specified herein relating to
the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the Trustee or exercising any
trust or power conferred upon the Trustee under the Indenture.

(h) None of the provisions contained in the Indenture shall require the Trustee o advance, expend or
risk its own funds or to otherwise incur financial liability in the performance of any of its duties or in the exercise of
any of its rights or powers, if there is reasonable ground for believing that the repayment of such funds or liability is
not reasonably assured to it by the security afforded to it by the terms of the Indenture.

(i) The Trustee shall have no responsibility with respect to any information in any offering
memorandum or other disclosure material distributed with respect to the Bonds, and the Trustee shall have no
responsibility for compliance with securities laws in connection with the issuance and sale of the Bonds.

G4) In the event the Trustee shall receive inconsistent or conflicting requests and indemnity from two
or more groups of Owners, each representing less than a majority of the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds
then Outstanding, the Trustee, in its sole discretion, may determine what action, if any, shall be taken.

(k) Except a5 otherwise especially provided by the provisions of the Indenture, the Frustee shall not
be obligated and may not be required to give or fumish any notice, demand, repon, request, reply, statement, advice
or opinion to any Owner of any Bond or to the Authority or any other person, and the Trustee shall not incur any
liability for its failure or refusal to give or furnish same unless obligated or required to do so by express provisions
hereof.

()] The Trustee shall not be required to give any bond or surety with respect to the performance of its
duties or the exercise of its powers under the Indenture,

(m) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the Trustee shall not be responsible for
any initial filings of any financing statements or the information contained therein (including the exhibits thereto),
the perfection of any such security interests, or the accuracy or sufficiency of any description of collateral in such
initial filings or for filing any modifications or amendments 1o the initial filings required by any amendments to
Article 9 of the Uniform Commercial Code. In addition, unless the Trustee shall have been notified in writing by
the Authority that any such initial filing or description of collateral was or has become defective, the Trustee shall be
fully protected in (i) conclusively relying on such initial filing and descriptions in filing any financing or
continuation statements or modifications thereto pursuant to this Section and (i) filing any continuation statements
in the same filing offices as the initial filings were made. The Trustee shall cause to be filed a continuation
statement with respect 10 each Uniform Commercial Code financing statement relating to the Bonds which was filed
at the time of the issuance thereof, in such manner and in such places as the initial filings were made, provided that a
copy of the filed original financing statement is timely delivered to the Trustee. The Authority shall be responsible
for the reasonable costs and expenses (including reasonable attorney’s fees, costs and expenses, if any) incurred by
the Trustee in the preparation and filing of all continuation statements hereunder.

(n) The permissive right of the Trustee to do things enumerated in the Indenture shall not be construed
as a duty.

(o) Before taking any action under the Indenture relating to an Event of Default or in connection with
its duties under the Indenture other than making payments of principal and interest on the Bonds as they become due
or causing an acceleration of the Bonds whenever required by the Indenture, the Trustee may require that a
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satisfactory indemnity bond be fumished for the reimbursement of all costs and expenses (including reasonable
attorney’s fees, costs and expenses} to which it may be put and to fully protect it against all liability, including, but
not limited to, any liability arising directly or indirectly under any federal, state or local statute, rule, law or
ordinance related to the protection of the environment or hazardous substances and except liability which is
adjudicated to have resulted from iis gross negligence or willful misconduct in connection with any action so taken.

(p) Notwithstanding the effective date of the Indenture or anything to the contrary in the Indenture,
the Trustee shall have no liability or respensibility for any act or event relating 1o the Indenture which occurs prior
to the date the Trustee formally executes the Indenture and commences acting as Trustee hereunder.

Q) The Trustee shall not be responsible or liable for any failure or delay in the performance of its
obligation under the Indenture arising out of or caused, directly or indirectly, by circumstances beyond its
reasonable control, including, without limitation, acis of God; earthquakes; fire; flood; hurricanes or other storms;
wars; ferrorism; similar military disturbances; sabotage; epidemic; pandemic; riots; interruptions; loss or
malfunctions of utilities, computer {(hardware or software) or communications services; accidents; labor disputes;
acts of civil or military authority or governmental action; it being undersiood that the Trustee shall use commercially
reasonable efforls which are consistent with accepted practices in the banking industry to resume performance as
soon as reasonably practicable under the circumstances.

n The Trustee agrees to accept and act upon instructions or dircctions pursuant to the Indenture sent
by the Authority by unsecured e-mail, facsimile transmission or other similar unsecured electronic methods,
provided, however, that the Authority shall provide to the Trustee an incumbency certificate listing designated
persons with the authority to provide such instructions, which incumbency certificate shall be amended whenever a
persan is to be added or deleted from the listing. If the Authority elects to give the Truslee e-mail or facsimile
instructions (or instructions by a similar electronic method} and the Trustee in its discretion elects to act upon such
instructions, the Trustee’s understanding of such instructions shall be deemed controlling. The Trustee shall not be
liable for any losses, costs or expenses arising directly or indirectly from the Trustee’s reliance upon and compliance
with such instructions notwithstanding such instructions conflict or are inconsistent with a subsequent written
instruction. The Authority agrees to assume all risks arising out of the use of such electronic methods to submit
instructions and directions to the Trustee, including without limitation the risk of the Trustee acting on unauthorized
instructions, and the risk of interception and misuse by third parties.”

Section 8.02 Reliance by Trustee. To the extent not prohibited by this Anticle, the Trustee may
conclusively rely, and shall be fully protected in acling upon, any letiers of instruction, statements, certificales,
certified resolutions, opinions, notices, consents, orders, appraisals, reports, policies, bonds or other papers or
documents believed by it to be genuine and to have been signed or presented to it by the proper person or persons,
and the Trustee may consult with counse] and the opinion of such counsel shall be full and complete authorization
and prolection in respect of any action taken or suffered by the Trustee hereunder in good faith and in conformity
with the opinion of such counsel. WNotwithstanding the foregoing, upon receipt by the Trustee of documents
furnished to it by the Authority which are specifically required to be delivered under the Indenture, the Trustee shall
examine the same to determine whether they conform to the requirements of the Indenture, however, the Trustee
shall have no obligaticon to analyze the same or evaluate their substance.

Section 8.03 Centificale of the Authority as Proof. Whenever in the administration of the trusts of the
Indenture, the Trustee shall deem il necessary or desirable that a matter be proved or established prior to taking or
suffering any action hereunder, then, in the absence of bad faith on the part of the Trustee, and unless other evidence
in respect thereof be herein specifically prescribed, and unless an Event of Default hereunder, 1o the knowledge of
the Trustee, shall have occurved and be continuing, such matter may be deemed to be conclusively proved and
established by a certificate of the Authority, executed by the Chairman of the Authority and delivered to the Trustee,
and such certificate shall be full warranty to the Trustee for any action taken or suffered by it under the provisions of
the Indenture in reliance thereon.

Section 8.04 Trustee May Own Bonds. The Trustee, in its individual or any other capacity, may become
the owner or pledgee of Bonds or other certificates or evidences of ownership or pledge thereof issued hereunder,
with the same rights it would have if it were not the Trustee.
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Section 8.05 Compensation of Trustee. The Authority shall pay to the Trustee all reasonable fees, charges
and expenses of the Trustee (including the reasonable fees, charges and expenses of its agents and counsel) for the
administration and execution of the trusts hereby created and the performance of its powers and duties hereunder,
including the ordinary and extraordinary services performed by the Trustee under the Indenture. Whenever the
Trustee incurs expenses or renders services in connection with any bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding, such
expenses (including the fees and expenses of its counsel) and the compensation of such scrvices are intended to
constitute expenses of administration under any bankruptcy or insolvency law or law relating to creditors’ rights
generally,

Section 8.06 Removal of Trustee. The Trustee may be removed at any time by an instrument or concurrent
instruments in writing, signed by the Owners of a majority in principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding and
delivered to the Trustee, with notice thereof given to the Authority.

Section 8.07 Resignation of Trustee. The Trustee may at any time resign and be discharged from the trusts
hereby created by giving written notice to the Authority and by providing written notice to the Owners of its
intended resignation at least sixty (60) days in advance thereof. Such notice shall specify the date on which such
resignation shall take effect and shall be sent by first class mail, postage prepaid to each Registered Owner of Voter
Registration Fee Revenue Bond, Resignation by the Trustee shali not take effect unless and until a successor 10 such
Trustee shall have been appointed as hereinafier provided.

Section 8.08 Appointment of Successor Trustee. In case the Trustee hereunder shall resign, or shall be

removed or dissolved, or shall be in the course of dissolution or liquidation, or shall otherwise become incapable of
acting hereunder, or in case the Trustee shall be taken under control of any public officer or officers or a receiver
appointed by a court, a successor may be appointed by the Owners of a majority in principal amount of the Bonds
then Outstanding, by an instrument or concurrent instruments in writing, signed by such Owners or their duly
authorized representatives and delivered to the Trustee, with notice thercof given to the Authority; provided,
however, that in any of the events above mentioned, the Authority may nevertheless appoint a temporary Trustee 1o
fill such vacancy until a successor shail be appointed by the Owners in the manner above provided, and any such
temporary Trustee so appointed by the Authority shall immediately and without further act be automatically
succeeded by the successor o the Trustee appointed by the Owners. The Authority shall provide written notice to
the Owners of the appointment of any successor Trustee, whether temporary or permanent, in the manner provided
in the preceding Section of the Indenture for providing notice of the resignation of the Trustee. Any successor
Trustee or temporary Trustee shall be a trust company or bank in good standing located in or incorporated under the
laws of the Siate of Texas duly authorized to excrcise trust powers and subject 1o examination by federal or state
authority, having a reported capital and surplus of not less than $100,000,000.

In the event that no appointment of a successor Trustee is made by the Owners or by the Authority pursuant
1o the foregoing provisions of this Section at the time a vacancy in the office of the Trustee shall have occurred, the
Owner of any Bond issued hereunder or the retiring Trustee may apply to any court of competent jurisdiction for the
appointment of a successor Trustee, and such court may thereupan, afier such notice as it shall deem proper, if any,
appoint a successor Trustee,

Section 8.09 Powers of Successor Trustee. Each successor Trustee appointed hereunder shall execute,
acknowledge and deliver 1o its predecessor and lo the Authority, an instrument in writing accepting such
appointment hereunder, and thereupon such successor Trustee, without any further act, deed or conveyance, shall
become fully vested with all the estates, properties, righis, powers, trusts, duties and obligations of its predecessor,
but such predecessor Trustee shall, nevertheless, on the written request of the Authority, execute and deliver an
instrument acceptable to the predecessor Trustee transfeming to such successor Trustee all the estates, properties,
rights, powers, trusts, duties and obligations of such predecessor hereunder. Each predecessor Trustee shall
promptly deliver all properties, securities and moneys held by it to its successor; provided, however, that before any
such delivery is required or made, all proper fees, advances and expenses of the predecessor Trustee shall be paid in
full. Should any deed, conveyance or instrument in writing be required from the Authority by any successor Trustee
for properties, rights, powers, trusts, duties and obligations hereby vested or intended to be vested in the predecessor
Trustee, any and all such deeds, conveyances and instruments in writing shall, on request, be executed,
acknowledged and delivered by the Authority. The resignation of any Trustee, appointing a successor Trustes
hereunder, together with all deeds, conveyances and other instruments provided for in this Article shall, at the
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expense of the Authority, be properly filed or recorded and a copy thercof shall be filed with such successor Trustee,
together with a statement showing such filing or recordation.

Section 8.10 Merger, Conversion or lidation of Trustee. Notwithstanding any provision hereof to
the contrary, any corporation or association into which the Trustee may be merged or convened, or with which it
may be consolidated, or any corporation succeeding (o all or substantially all of the corporate trust business of the
Trustee, or any corporation or association resulting from any merger, conversion or consolidation to which the
Trustee shalt be a party, shall be the successor Trustee under the Indenture without the execution or filing of any
instrument or any other act on the part of any of the parties hereto.

Section 8.11 Funds Transfer. [f any payment is to be made by the Trustee 10 the Authority or its designee
by funds transfer, the Authority agrees to enter into an agreement concerning funds transfer instructions in a form to
be provided by the Trustee. Until the Authority executes such an agreement, the Trustee shall not be required to
make any payment under the Indenture to the Authority or its designee by funds transfer.

SEErEREEREE
ARTICLE 1X
MODIFICATION OF INDENTURE
Section 9.01 Supplemental Indentures Not Requiring Consent of Owners of the Bonds. The Authority and

the Trustee may, without the consent of the Owners of any of the Bonds, enter into one or mare supplemental
indentures, which shall form a part hereof, for any one or more of the following purposes:

{a) to cure any ambiguity, inconsistency or format defect or omission in the Indenture;

{b) to grant to or confer upon the Trustee for the benefit of the Owners of the Bonds any
additional rights, remedies, powers or authority that may lawfully be pranted to or conferred upon the
Owners of the Bonds or the Trustee or either of them,

(c) 1o subject to the lien of the Indenture additional revenues, properties or collaterai;
{d) to modify, amend or supplement the Indenture or any supplemental indenture in such

manncr 85 to provide further assurances that interest on the Bonds will, to the greatest extent lcgally
possible, be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes;

(e) to obiain bond insurance for any Bonds;
(D to provide for one or more Reserve Fund Surety Policies; and
(g} to permit the assumption of the Authority's obligations hereunder by any other entity that

may become the legal successor to the Authority;

provided, however, that no provision in such supplemental indenture shall be inconsistent with the Indenture or shall
impair in any manner the rights of the Owners of the Bonds.

Section 9.02 Supplemental Indentures Requiring Consent of Owners of the Bonds. Except as otherwise

provided in Section 9.01 of the Indenture, any modification, change or amendment of the Indenture may be made
only by a supplemental indenture adopted and executed by the Authority and the Trustee with the consent of the
Owners of not less than a majority of the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding.

Notwithstanding the preceding paragraph of Section 9.02 of the Indenture, no modification, change or

amendment to the Indenture shall, without the consent of the Owner of each Bond so affecied, exiend the time of
payment of the Principa) installments or interest thereon, or reduce the Principal Installments or premium, if any.
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thereon, or the rate of interest thereon, or make the Principal Installments or interest thereon payable in any coin or
currency other than that hereinbefore provided, or deprive such Owner of the lien hereof on the revenues pledged
hercunder. Moreover, without the consent of the Owner of each Bond then Outstanding, no modification, change or
amendment to the Indenture shall permit the creation of any lien on the revenues pledged hereunder equal or prior to
the lien hereof, or reduce the aggregate principal amount of Bonds, the Owners of which are required to approve any
such modification, change or amendment of the Indenture.

Section 9.03 Consents, Consents required pursuant to Article 1X of the Indenture shall be valid only if
given following the giving of notice by or on behalf of the Authority requesting such consent, setting forth the
substance of the supplemental indenture in respect of which such consent is sought and stating that copies thereof
are available at the office of the Trustee for inspection, to the Owners of Bonds whose consent is required in
accordance with the provisions of Article IX of the Indenture. Such notice shal! be given by sending such notice by
first-class mail, postage prepaid, to the registered Owners of such Bonds. Any consent or other action by an Owner
of any Bond in accordance with Article 1X of the Indenture shall bind every future owner of the same Bond and the
Owner of any Bond issued in exchange therefor or in lieu thereof,

LA RS LR EL LY SR TS Y]

[Remainder of page intentionally lefi blank}
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FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE PROVISION
AMENDMENT TO THE INDENTURE

Pursuant Article 1X of the Indenture, under centain circumstances, an amendment to the Indenture may be
made with the consent of not less than a majority of the Owners of the Prior Bonds outstanding, while other
circumstances do not require such consent. Pursuant to the Section 11.2 of the Resolution and Article IX of the
Indenture, the additional bonds test contained in Section 3.2 of the Indenture is amended as detailed below (the
“*Amendment to the Indenture™). The Amendment to the Indenture contained in the Supplemental Indenture (i) shall
not take effect until the Prior Bonds are no longer outstanding or consent has been provided by the majority of the
Owners of the Prior Bonds (the “Effective Date™) and (ii) shall be effective and binding to the Series 2014 Bonds
(and the Owners thereof), as well as future Additional Parity Bonds (and the Owners thereof) issued pursuant to the
Indenture. Seclion 3.2(d) of the Indenture will hereby be amended to read as follows:

3.02(d) The Authority has received a certificate of its financial advisor or
accountant meeling the requirements set forth below which provides that Vehicle Registration
Fees over the preceding fiscal year or for a consecutive 12-month period out of the 15-month
period immediately preceding the month in which the Bond Resolutions authorizing Additional
Parity Bonds is adopted, were at least 150 percent of the Maximum Annual Debt Service, taking
into account the outstanding Bonds and the Additional Parity Bonds to be issued, provided
however, such requirement shall not apply to the issuance of any Series of Additional Parity
Bonds for refunding purposes that (i) will have the result of reducing the Maximum Annual Debt
Service requirements on Parity Bonds or that (ii) will demonstrate a net present value savings in
each year of the refunding.
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BRACEWELL & GIULIANILLP THE LUCIO GROUPPLLC
711 LOUISIANA STREET, SUITE 2300 5136 SUGAR MILL RoAD
HousTonN, TEXAS 77002 BROWNSVILLE, TEXAS 78526

QOctober 9, 2014

WE HAVE ACTED as bond counsel for the Cameron County Regional Mobility
Authority (the “Authority™), in connection with the issuance of bonds (the *Bonds™) described as
follows:

CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY VEHICLE
REGISTRATION FEE REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2014, issued
in the original aggregate principal amount of $6,325,000

The Bonds are being issued pursuant to that certain Indenture of Trust, dated April [,
2010, as amended (the “Indenture”), between the Authority and The Bank of New York Mellon
Trust Company, National Association (the “Trustee”). The Bonds mature, bear interest and may
be transferred and exchanged as set forth in the Bonds, the resolution adopted by the Board of
Directors of the Authority authorizing the issuance of the Bonds (the “Resolution”) and the
Pricing Certificate. Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein have the meanings
assigned to them in the Resolution.

WE HAVE ACTED as bond counsel for the sole purpose of rendering an opinion with
respect to the legality and validity of the Bonds and the security therefor and with respect to the
exclusion of interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes. We have
not been requested to investigate or verify and have not investigated or verified original
proceedings, records, data or other material, but have relied solely upon the transcript of certified
proceedings described in the following paragraph. We have not assumed any responsibility with
respect to the financial condition or capability of the Authority.

IN OUR CAPACITY AS BOND COUNSEL, we have participated in the preparation of
and have examined, and rely on for purposes of this opinion, a transcript of certain proceedings
pertaining to the bonds being refunded and the Bonds, on which we have relied in giving our
opinion. The transcript contains certified copies of certain proceedings of the Authority; the
Indenture; an escrow agreement (the “Escrow Agreement™) between the Authority and The Bank
of New York Mellon Trust Company (the “Escrow Agreement”), a report (the “Report™) of
Grant Thornton LLP, Certified Public Accountants (the “Verification Agent”), verifying the
sufficiency of the deposits made with the Escrow Agent for the defeasance of bonds being
refunded (the “Refunded Bonds™) and the mathematical accuracy of certain computations of the
yield on the Bonds and obligations acquired with the proceeds of the Bonds; customary
certificates, opinions and other documents executed by officers, agents and representatives of the
Authority, the Trustee and others; and other certified showings relating to the authorization and
issuance of the Bonds and the refunding and defeasance of the Refunded Bonds. We have
examined, in addition to the documents described above, such portions of the Internal Revenue



October 9, 2014
Page 2

Code of 1986, as amended and to the extent applicable to the Bonds, court decisions, regulations
and published rulings of the Internal Revenue Service (the “Service™) as we have deemed
necessary for the purpose of this opinion. We have also examined a specimen of the form of
registered bond of this issue.

FOR PURPQOSES OF THIS OPINION, we have assumed without independent
verification (i) the genuineness of certificates, records and other documents, including, but not
limited to, the Pledge Agreement (collectively, the “Documents”) and the accuracy and
completeness of the statements of fact contained therein; (ii) the due authorization, execution and
delivery of the Documents described above by the parties thereto other than the Authority;
(iii) that all Documents submitted to us as originals are accurate and complete; and (iv) that all
Documents submitted to us as copies are true and correct copies of the originals thereof.

BASED ON SUCH EXAMINATION, IT IS OUR OPINION THAT:

1. The Authority is a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the
State of Texas (the “State™), duly created, organized and existing under the laws of the State,
particularly Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”), and has the right
and power under the Act 10 authorize, execute and deliver the Indenture.

2. The Authority has duly and lawfully authorized, executed and delivered the
Indenture. The Indenture is in full force and effect, is valid and binding upon the Authority, and
no other official action by the Authority for the authorization, execution and delivery of the
Indenture is required, Pursuant to the Indenture, all of the Authority’s right, title and interest in
and to the Pledged Revenues, subject to the application thereof to the purposes and on the
conditions permitted in the Indenture, have been validly and effectively assigned and, upon
receipt thereof by the Trustee, pledged as security for the payment of the principal of,
redemption price of and interest on the Bonds.

38 The Authority has duly and validly authorized the issuance, execution and
delivery of the Bonds in accordance with the Act and the Indenture. The Bonds constitute legal,
valid and binding limited obligations of the Authority as provided in the Indenture and are
enforceable in accordance with their terms and the terms of the Indenture and are entitled to the
benefits of the Indenture.

4, The Bonds are issued pursuant to the provisions of the Act and constitute limited
obligations of the Authority and are payable from and secured solely by a senior lien on, pledge
of and securily interest in the Pledged Revenues and not from any other revenues, funds or assets
of the Authority. Neither the State nor any other agency or political subdivision of the State,
other than the Authority, is obligated to pay the principal of or interest on the Bonds. The Bonds
are payable solely from the Pledged Revenues. The Authority has no taxing power.
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5. Firm banking and financial arrangements have been made for the discharge and final
payment of the Refunded Bonds pursuant to the Escrow Agreement and the Report, and
therefore such bonds are deemed to be fully paid and no longer outslanding except for the
purpose of being paid from the funds provided therefore in the Escrow Agreement.

THE AUTHORITY HAS RESERVED THE RIGHT TO ISSUE ADDITIONAL
PARITY BONDS subject to the restrictions set forth in the Indenture.

THE RIGHTS OF THE OWNERS of the Bonds are subject to the applicable provisions
of the federal bankruptcy laws and any other similar laws affecting the rights of creditors of
political subdivisions generally, and may be limited by general principles of equity which permit
the exercise of judicial discretion.

IT IS OUR FURTHER OPINION THAT:

I. Interest on the Bonds is excludable from gross income for federal income tax
purposes under existing law.

2. Under existing law, interest on the Bonds is not {A) a specific preference item
subject to the alternative minimum tax on individuals and corporations or (B) included in a
corporation’s adjusted current eamings for purposes of the alternative minimum tax.

IN PROVIDING THE OPINIONS set forth above, we have relied on representations of
the Authority, the Authority’s financial advisors and the underwriters of the Bonds with respect
to matters solely within the knowledge of the Authority, the Authority’s financial advisors and
the underwriters of the Bonds, respectively, which we have not independently verified, and we
have assumed continuing compliance with the procedures and covenants in the Indenture, the
Resolution and other documents relating to the requirements of the Code that affect the exclusion
from gross income of interest on the Bonds for federal income tax purposes. We have further
relied upon the Report regarding the mathematical accuracy of certain computations. In the
event that any of such representations or the Report is determined to be inaccurate or incomplete
or the Authority fails to comply with the foregoing procedures and covenants in the Indenture
and the Resolution, interest on the Bonds could become includable in gross income for federal
income tax purposes under existing law from the date of original delivery thereof, regardless of
the date on which the event causing such inclusion occurs.

EXCEPT AS STATED ABOVE, we express no opinion as to any federal, state or local
tax consequences resulting from the receipt or accrual of interest on, or acquisition, ownership or
disposition of the Bonds.

OWNERS OF THE BONDS should be aware that the ownership of tax-exempt
obligations may result in collateral federal income tax consequences to financial institutions, life
insurance and property and casualty insurance companies, certain S corporations with
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Subchapter C eamings and profits, individual recipients of Social Security or Railroad
Retirement benefits, taxpayers who may be deemed to have incurred or continued indebtedness
to purchase or carry tax-exempt obligations, low and middle income taxpayers otherwise
qualifying for the health insurance premium assistance credit, and individuals otherwise
qualifying for the earned income credit. In addition, certain foreign corporations doing business
in the United States may be subject 1o the “branch profits tax™ on their effectively-connected
earnings and profits (including tax-exempt interest such as interest on the Bonds).

THE OPINIONS SET FORTH ABOVE are based on existing law, which is subject to
change. Such opinions are further based on our knowledge of facts as of the date hereof. We
assume no duty to update or supplement our opinions to reflect any facts or circumstances that
may thereafter come to our attention or to reflect any changes in any law that may thereafier
occur or become effective. Moreover, our opinions are not a guarantee of result and are not
binding on the Service; rather, such opinions represent our legal judgment based upon our review
of existing law and in reliance upon the representations and covenants referenced above that we
deem relevant to such opinions. The Service has an ongoing audit program to determine
compliance with rules that relate to whether interest on state or local obligations is includable in
gross income for federal income tax purposes. No assurance can be given whether or not the
Service will commence an audit of the Bonds. If an audit is commenced, in accordance with its
current published procedures the Service is likely to treat the Issuer as the taxpayer. We observe
that the Issuer has covenanted in the Resolution not to take any action, or omit to take any action
within its control, that if taken or omitted, respectively, may result in the treatment of interest on
the Bonds as includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes.

Very truly yours,



4-D. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING THE SH 32 VALUE
ENGINEERING RECOMMENDATIONS



MEMORANDUM

TO: Chairman and Beard Members
—
FROM: Pete Sepulveda, Jr. [ 59

RE:

Item 4-D

DATE: August 14,2014

Following are the items [ would like for the Board to consider in moving forward with
recommendations from the Value Engineering study:

1.

Reduce medians

A. From U.S. 77 to Calle Milpa Verde — keep the 16 foot raised median

B. From Calle Milpa Verde to the end of the project at SH 4 and the future Port
Road, replace the 16 foot raised median with a 4 foot flush median

Recommend to keep shoulders at 10 foot
Recommend to keep 4 lanes in the west side of the project

Recommend not to mill the existing roadway and add 117 CRCP { On existing
FM 1419 from Paloma Blanca to FM 3068)

Recommend not to use different pavement designs for travel lanes and shoulders
or to have designated truck lanes

Reduce the bond breaker from 2” to 17

Recommend the special intersection design at major intersections on East
Avenue, FM 1419, FM 3068 and SH 4. At SH32/SH4 keep the overpass for the
ultimate phase of the project.

Reduce the right of way beginning at Paloma Blanca to the end of the project,
from 150’ to 120°. At SH32/SH 4, 400 foot right of way would be needed for
ultimate phase to accommodate an overpass.

Recommend not to defer sidewalks and establish partnership with the City/MPO
to fund those costs.

Effective Mobility.... .. From Borders To Beaches

1390 Seott Brown Boulevard ® San Benito, TX 78586 ® 956-548-9594 ® fax 956-574-8734



4-E. CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 69
WITH HNTB FOR THE WEST RAIL RELOCATION PROJECT



Work Authorization No. 69

CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
General Engineering Consultant Services

WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 69
West Rail Bridge - RFI/Shop Drawing Review and CEl for Security Fencing, Gate, illumination, and DHS
Building Components (U.S. portion of bridge cnly)

This Work Authorization No. 69 is made pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
Base Contract, effective February 16, 2008, hereinafter identified as the
“Agreement”, entered into by and between Cameron County Regional Mobility
Authority (the "AUTHORITY"), and HNTB Corporation (the “CONSULTANT").

Part1. The CONSULTANT will provide the foliowing engineering services:

Changes relating to the West Rail Bridge as further outlined in Exhibits A, B, and C.

Part 2. The compensation to be paid for the performance of the Services identified
in Exhibit B is based upon direct salary cost times a muitiplier as defined in the
Agreement. Total compensation, including subconsultant costs and direct expenses,
will not exceed $49,549.00. A fee schedule used to establish the amount payable is
attached hereto as Exhibit D. The CONSULTANT may aiter the compensation
distribution between individual phases, tasks or work assignments to be consistent
with the services actually rendered, within the total not to exceed amount.

Part 3. Payment to the CONSULTANT for the services established under this Work
Authorization No. 69 shall be made in accordance with the Agreement.

Part4. This Work Authorization No. 69 is effective as of August 14, 2014 and shall
terminate December 31, 2014,

Part5. This Work Authorization No. 69 does not waive the parties' responsibilities
and obligations provided under the Agreement.

WAG9 Attach E Revised.doc Page 1 of 2 8/14/2014
40619 Attach E



Work Authorization No. 69

Part6. This Work Authorization No. 69 is hereby accepted and acknowledged
below.

CONSULTANT: AUTHORITY:
HNTB Corporation Cameron County Regional Mobility Authority

Slgnature Si ure _
Richard L. Ridings, P.E. W

Printed Name Printed Name
Vice President Zlce~ Chairman
Title Title
BYe /)¢ P
Date 4 Date

LIST OF EXHIBITS
Exhibit A — Services to be Provided by the AUTHORITY
Exhibit B — Services to be Provided by the CONSULTANT
Exhibit C — Work Schedule
Exhibit D — Fee Schedule

WAG9 Attach E Revised.doc Page 2 of 2 8/14/2014
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4-F. CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF SUPPLEMENTAL WORK
AUTHORIZATION NO. 2 FOR WORK AUTHORIZATION 40 WITH HNTB
FOR THE WEST RAIL RELOCATION PROJECT



Supplemental Work Authorization No. 2
to Work Authorization No. 40

CAMERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY
General Engineering Consultant Services

SUPPLEMENTAL WORK AUTHORIZATION No. 2

WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 40
UPRR West Rail Relocation — Bent 41 Assistance/Department of Homeland Security Items

This Suppiemental Work Authorization No. 2 to Work Authorization No. 40 is made
pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Base Contract, effective February 16,
2006, hereinafter identified as the “Agreement”, entered into by and between
Cameron County Regional Mobility Authority (the “AUTHORITY”), and HNTB
Corporation (the “CONSULTANT").

Part 1. The CONSULTANT will provide the following engineering services:
The responsibilities of the CONSULTANT are detailed in Exhibits B and D.

Part 2. The compensation tc be paid for the performance of the Services identified
in Exhibit B is based upon direct salary cost times a multiplier as defined in the
Agreement. Total compensation, including subconsultant costs and direct expenses,
for Supplemental Work Authorization No. 2 is a Lump Sum amount of $180,901.00
increasing the total fee from $171,150.00 to $352,051.00, unless mutually agreed to
and authorized in writing by the Authority. A fee schedule used to establish the
maximum amount payable is attached hereto as Exhibit D. HNTB may alter the
compensation distribution between the phases, tasks and work assignments {o be
consistent with the Services actually rendered, within the total not to exceed amount.

Part 3. Payment to the CONSULTANT for the services established under this
Supplemental Work Authorization No. 2 to Work Authorization No. 40 shall be made
in accordance with the Agreement.

Part 4. This Supplemental Work Authorization No. 2 to Work Authorization No. 40
extends the previous termination date to August 1, 2014, unless extended by a
Supplemental Work Authorization.

SWAO02 WA40 Attach E.docx Page | of 2 12/10/2014
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Supplemental Work Authorization No. 2
to Work Authorization No. 40

Part 5. This Supplemental Work Authorization No. 2 1o Work Authorization No. 40 Is
hereby accepted and acknowledged below.

CONSULTANT:
HNTB Corporation

By: Z@/
Signature

Richard L. Ridings. P
Printed Name

Vice President

Title
m
Date -

LIST OF EXHIBITS

AUTHORITY:

By:
Signature

David E. Allex
Printed Name

Chairman

Title

1.2[12] 201y

Datel

Exhibit B - Services o be Provided by the Consultant

Exhibit D - Fee Schedule

SWAO02 WA40 Attach E.docx
40619

Page 2 of 2
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4-G. CONSIDERATION AND AUTHORIZATION FOR THE CAMERON COUNTY
REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTORITY EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO REQUEST
ASSISTANCE FROM TXDOT FOR THE CDA PROCESS FOR THE spi 2™°
ACCESS PROJECT AND THE OUTER PARKWAY PROJECT



CAMLERON COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY 2

To: Chairman and Board Members

From: Pete Sepulveda, Jr. 6

Date: August 14, 2014

Re: Item 4G

I would like to request authority to request assistance from the Texas Department of
Transportation (TxDOT) to go through the Comprehensive Development Agreement
(CDA) procurement process. As you all know we plan on submitting the Final
Environmental Impact Study to the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) in late
October or early November. The CDA procurement process will likely start after that
submittal is made. TxDOT has the experience having done this multiple times throughout
the State. I would like to discuss with TxDOT and then report back to the Board with
TxDOT’s recommendations. Thanks,



4-H. CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF CHANGE ORDER NO. 18 FOR THE SH
550 PORT SPUR PROJECT



CAMERON COUNTY RLGI NALLI\IOB_II: VIENY 4

MEMORANDUM

TO: Chairman and Board Members

FROM: Pete Sepulveda, Jr. FSS
RE: ltem 4-H

DATE: August 14, 2014

The attached change order is being recommended by TxDOT to close out the SH 550 Port Spur
project. No additional funds are required from the CCRMA.

I recommend approval of the change order.



TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT CHANGE ORDERKUMBEeR: 10
Thied Party Funding Netification Sheet

This form ks used when the subject change order involves funding by a source ather than TxDOT/U.S, DOT, and involvas third
parties who are praviding funding under sn Advanca Funding Agreement or Danatian Agresment.

.Outside .
1.0u funding pravided by: cesy, 362201001
CCRMA
TOuIda Entity's Leged Foma] Projact; STP2009{852)ES
2.Type of outside funding agreement for this change: Highway; SH550
B Exsting [CJAmended  [] New County: CAMERON
{ Checkone)
Districe; PHARA
3. lndicate the type and amount of funding:
Contract
[ Fixed Price (Lump Sum) (Estimated Amount $683,216.10 ) Number; 03103002
Actual Cost
(a) Contract hems (Bid ltems}: $683,216.10 Usa o3 neaded:
-V Ihereby acknawledge sotification of the modfcaton
) B8 wx 3.5 . $23912.56 conerid by B8 i B )
- $0.00
( Indirect Cost™:  (a+bjx 0 = 57(-]7 — e B4
ToTAL — E}ﬁ‘
Typed/Printed Name Pe el T

Typed/Printed Thie E—! ec ._;.l‘;p bfr-et.fdf\-

*Tha percantage (%) for ESC (Engineesing and Contingencies) charges vasies from project to project
depending on the contract ameun of the project. Projects with a higher contract amount wifl have a lower ate
of EAC charga. Fora specific project, EAC rate () can be derived from tha cost of *Engineering and Contingencles” in
the “Estimated Cost* of the projecs.

** Use the statewide district e a3 establishwd by Finance Division esch year, This ne 3(c) i for Servica Project only,
uniess otherwlse specified In the Advance Funding Agreement. Sea Stind Alone Mantal Notlce $8-2 for instructions.

Funding for this Change Order has been erranged:

TxDOT Representaiive
Typed/Printed Nams:

THDOT Form 2145-AFA Rev. 03N Page | ol Y
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